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To be the most admired
bank in Pakistan providing
world class service and
innovative solutions
through its people and
technology, yielding
superior returns and
demonstrating responsible
corporate citizenship.

Equal Opportunity
At Samba, we ensure all
employees get equal
opportunity to succeed. We
value diversity and ensure
fairness for all employees

Respect & Dignity

At Samba, we respect every
individual irrespective of their
background and evalute them on

his/her potential and performance.

Samba values such individual
contributions and encourages
employees to excel

Integrity

CORE VALUES

To become the most admired bank by:
* Providing world class solutions to
our customers by exceeding their

service expectations.
* Investing in people by hiring,

growth and efficiency of all
stakeholders.

MISSION

investors.

* Benefiting the communities in which

we operate,

Meritocracy

We believe talent is brought to
the fore by advancing individuals
not for who they are, but for what
they can produce. At Samba, we
value the role of each employee
from the highest to lowest levels

Teamwork

Samba believes single units
when joined with many like itself,
combine into a powerful force
that can achieve great things.
We are encouraged to think as a
group and to support each other

motivating and retaining best talent.
* Creating sustainable value through

* Delivering superior returns to our

At Samba, from top management
to junior interns, we demand and
maintain highest level of integrity.
This is not just something we do; it
is what we are
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BRANCH NETWORK

Currently, SBL has a network of 77 branches located in 36 major cities across the country
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.BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Mr. Mustafa llyas serves as an adviser to Saudi National Bank {("SNB"), Kingdom
of Saudi Arabia since 2021, and also serves as Chairman of the Board of
Directors of Samba Bank Limited Pakistan since October 27, 2022.

Prior to this, he was at PwC for over seventeen years, the majority of which
focused exclusively on the banking sector. The early part of his career with PwC
focused on providing external audit services to listed companies. He then
specialized in due diligence assisting corporate and private equity investors on
both buy and sell side.

Mr. Mustafa llyas is a Chartered Accountant and member of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants England & Wales (UK). He holds a Master of Engineering
from the Imperial College of Science, Technology and Medicine (London).

Mr. Mustafa llyas
Chairman

—_— s

L

Ms. Kholood K. Al-Khelaiwi is a banking professional with over two
decades of experience in the financial sector in Saudi Arabia. Throughout
her career, she has held key leadership roles across prominent financial
institutions, including the Saudi National Bank {(SNB)-formerly known as
the Mational Commercial Bank (NCB)-the Capital Market Authority
(CMA), Samba Financial Group, and Mizuho Saudi Arabia.

Currently, Ms. Al-Khelaiwi serves as the Head of Talent Acquisition at
Saudi National Bank (SNB) since 2024, transitioning from her extensive
career as a global markets expert. Previously, she held the position of
Head of Trading, Global Markets. Before that, she led Structured
. Solutions, Treasury for nearly eight years, demonstrating her expertise
Ms. Kholood Khalid in treasury operations and financial solutions.

AID IIF::;S;WI Prior to joining SNB, she served at the Capital Market Authority (CMA),
Saudi Arabia, as a Senior Authorization & Inspection of Market
— Institutions officer for two years. Before that, she worked at Mizuho
Saudi Arabia Company as Advisory Head for nearly two years. Her earlier
tenure at Samba Financial Group spanned several years, where she held
the role of Manager, Structured Finance Products & Sales, Treasury.

Ms. Al-Khelaiwi is skilled in global treasury operations, investment
strategies, regulatory compliance, risk management, and financial
reporting. She has also completed multiple certification programs
relevant to her field, further enhancing her professional expertise.

She holds a Bachelor's degree in Economics (Quantitative Methods) from
King Saud University, Kingdom of Saudi Arabia.

ANNUAL REPORT 2025 “.B_E
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Mr. Mazen Ali AlDhabi is a banker with post 20 years of Management
Experience in Board membership, Audit, Compliance, Engineering and
Risk management with more than 10 years in Operational Risk function.

Proven wide range of leadership experience and exposure across various
units and functions, strategic outlook and execution ability, ability to
build and leverage internal and external networks and manage
stakeholders, strong problem solving and decision—making skills. He has
Extensive experience of managing change and transformations,
inspirational leadership and creating winning teams, demonstrated
negotiation and influencing skills.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Mr. Fahad Ali AlHunaiti is a seasoned financial executive with 17 years
of experience in banking and investment management. He currently
serves as Head of Principal Strategies at Saudi National Bank, where he
oversees SR 260 billion in proprietary investments across global asset
classes. He is also a founding partner and board member of Pillars
Holding, a prominent F&B investment group. Mr. Fahad A. Al Hunaiti
holds a Finance degree from KFUPM and has completed executive
education at Wharton and Columbia Business Schools.

Mr. Mazen Ali Mr. _M_azen_ Ali AlDhabi possesses a _Master's degree in Busine;s Mr. Fahad Ali AlHunaiti
AlDhabi Administration from Brunel University in the UK, as well as MSc in Director
Director Industrial Engineering from King Abdulaziz University in Saudi Arabia. >
s 3 5 it ; this . - &
® 2 ﬁddltao_nallv, he has Obta!neq various qualifications and certl_flcatm_ns

from different esteemed institutions from USA, UK and Saudi Arabia.

Currently, Mr. Mazen Ali Ai[.‘{habl is also on the Boards of Turkey Finance Mr. Shafgaat Ahmed brings 48 years of comprehensive experience in

Bank, and Abu Nayyan Holding Company. Saudi Arabia. the banking sector, including 30 years serving as Country Head, CEO,
and President, where he has consistently demonstrated exceptional
leadership. He founded Al Baraka Bank in Pakistan and served as its
CEO/President from 1992 to 2018, playing a pivetal role in the bank's
growth and evolution. Under his leadership, Mr. Ahmed successfully

Ms. Zeeba Ansar possesses over 27 years of diverse experience in the mana_ged the SRERICL of Al B_araka _Ba“" Pa_kistan with Emirates._ Global

Corporate & Ban[;cinq - - tha‘tf ol aqgresi.?ve - Islamic Bank in 2010 and with Burj Bank in 2016, strengthening the

: st

development, client coverage, marketing of corporate products, setting bank's market position.

up of early warning systems, and strategizing/structuring facilities for Beyond his leadership at Al Baraka, Mr. Ahmed has held several

Non-Performing Loans and instituting strong and diligent recovery prestigious directorships across public and private sector organizations,

drives. Ms. Zeeba was with NIB Bank Limited, where she served as Group Mr. Shafgaat Ahmed contributing valuable expertise in corporate governance and strategic

Head, Corporate & Investment Banking Group for two years and prior to Director management. His distinguished career also includes key positions at

Bank of Credit & Commerce International S.A. in Bahrain and United

L J

that she worked in United Bank Limited for more than nine years where

o

Ms. deha Ansar
Director
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her last role was as Regional Corporate Head. She was also associated
with Faysal Bank Limited for about five years where she progressed to
the position of Corporate Head (Southern Region) and before that, she
was with Deutsche Bank Limited, where she worked for almost eight
years. She started her career from Shell Pakistan Limited, where she
worked for over 4 years in their Planning department. She holds an MBA
Degree from the Institute of Business Administration, Karachi. Currently,
Ms. Zeeba is also on the Boards of Gul Ahmed Textile Mills Limited,
Cherat Cement Company Limited, Lucky Investments Limited, Lucky
Electric Power Company Limited, and YB Pakistan Limited holding the
position as Independent Director.

Bank Limited in Bahrain and Pakistan.

A certified director, Mr. Shafgaat Ahmed has completed specialized
training programs at renowned institutions such as Lahore University of
Management Sciences (LUMS) and the University of Lahore. His areas of
expertise encompass banking leadership, mergers and acquisitions,
corporate governance, strategic planning, and a thorocugh understanding
of Islamic banking principles. Currently, he serves as a director at
Gharibwal Cement Limited and Security Papers Limited. Mr. Ahmed has
addressed a number of Islamic seminars and conferences globally.

Mr. Ahmed is a graduate of Foreman Christian College, Lahore with
Majors in Economics. He has served as the Vice Chairman of the Pakistan
Banks Association and is a fellow of the Institute of Bankers in Pakistan.
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Hafiz Mohammad Yousaf is a highly qualified professional having
diversified qualifications from the renowned Institutions of Pakistan,
USA, and Canada. He is a Fellow Member of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP), Fellow Member of American Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (AICPA), Member of Canadian Institute of
Chartered Accountants (CICA) and Member of Canadian Institute of
Chartered Professional Accountants (CICPA) besides being member of
many other renowned international professional institutions.

Mr. Yousaf possesses over three decades of diversified post qualification

experience as a Chartered Accountant in various specialized fields,

having served on various leadership positions with key governmental,

l-la¥z “"fh':r“éi“" public and corporate entities (including two decades at a Big 4

ousaj, professional accounting firm as Partner in Pakistan) which covers

Director corporate compliance and regulations, governance and oversight,

’ accounting and auditing standards setting, assurance and audits,

corporate finance and restructuring, consulting and financial advisory
services, etc.

In recent years, the key areas of his focus are the high-end policies formulation and implementation,
strategic directions, oversight of regulations and business operations, governance initiatives and
organizational reforms and business decisions making, etc. at some of the most important corporate sector
entities of the country. Mr. Yousaf has a unique and versatile exposure of having served Pakistan's top
regulators including State Bank of Pakistan (Central Bank of the country) and Securities and Exchange
Commission of Pakistan (SECP) as a board member and chairman of audit and oversight committees
respectively besides being President of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP).

Mr. Yousaf has the honor of serving the council of ICAP for eight years (2009-17) in various leadership
positions including being its President for 2015-16 term and represented Pakistan on various prestigious
international forums including International Federation of Accountants (IFAC), International Accounting
Standard Board (IASB), Asian Oceana Standards Setters Group (AOSSG), CA Worldwide (CAW) and South
Asian Federation of Accountants for many years on different meetings and conferences.

Currently he is serving as a Board Member of some leading corporate entities of the country including
SAMBA Bank Limited, Kot Addu Power Company Limited, Pakistan Security Printing Corporation, Security
Papers Limited & SICPA Pakistan (Pvt.) Limited where he is also the Chairman and member of various
important committees of the respective boards.

In recognition of his credentials, Yousaf is appointed by the Accounting and Auditing Organization for
Islamic Financial Institutions (AAQIFI), as a member of its very prestigious forum namely Public Interest
Monitoring Consultative Committee (PIMCC) to represent Pakistan. The seven member PIMCC has an
oversight on the functioning of the AAQIFI Accounting Board (AAB) and AAOIFI Governance and Ethics
Boards (AGEB) to ensure that public interest is duly served.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Mr. Rashid Jahangir, President & CEQ is an accomplished finance
professional and a career banker with more than 24 years' industry
experience and having expertise in the areas of Strategic Planning,
Digital Transformation, Finance, Taxation, HR and Business
Management. Mr. Jahangir has worked on assignments in Pakistan as
well as overseas including Europe, Africa, Central Asia, Middle East and
Malaysia. Mr. Jahangir joined Samba Bank Ltd in January 2016 as Chief
Financial Officer (CFO) and member of the Bank's Executive Team. In this
tenure, he played a key role in supporting the Board of Directors and the
Management in setting the Bank's strategic direction, technological
initiatives and business decision model. In 2021, as a part of growth
Mr. Rashid Jahangir strategy, Mr. Jahangir was asked to head the Bank's new Digital Banking
President & initiative, where he successfully led the team that introduced a full scope
Chief Executive Officer suite of digitally enabled banking products and services for Samba Bank.
In 2023, in recognition of his business, tech, governance and leadership
expertise, Mr. Jahangir was appointed to the role of Samba's first Deputy
Chief Executive Officer.

L

As Deputy Chief Executive Officer Mr. Jahangir also had oversight of Retail & Consumer Banking,
Operations & IT, Digital Banking and Human Resources & Training divisions of the Bank. Recently he was
also entrusted to spearhead bank’s transformation into fully Islamic Bank. Prior to joining SBL, Mr. Jahangir
worked with MCB Bank Limited for more than 10 years, where his last role was Head, Strategic Planning &
Investments. Mr. Jahangir started his career as a Chartered Accountant working with reputed Chartered
Accountancy Firms KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co. and Huzaima lkram & Associates. Mr. Jahangir holds a
Bachelor's degree in Commerce (B.Com) from the University of Punjab and is a Fellow Chartered
Accountant (FCA) from the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan. He has attended several
trainings and conferences internationally and in Pakistan including business technical and Leadership. Mr.
Jahangir is also a Certified Director from Pakistan Institute of Corporate Governance and has previously
served thrice as member of Banking & Finance Committee of the Institute of Chartered Accountants
Pakistan (ICAP).

1‘1;2 ANNUAL REPORT 2025
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.BOARD COMMITTEES

Board Audit Committee (BAC)_

Constitution_

Hafiz Mohammad Yousaf
Mr. Fahad Ali AlHunaiti
Mr. Mazen Ali AlDhabi

The Board Audit Committee (BAC) oversees the effectiveness of the Bank's
internal and operational control framework, the integrity and adequacy of
financial reporting and the performance and independence of the Bank's
External Auditors and the Audit & Risk Review function. The Committee also
reviews the Bank's processes for monitoring compliance with applicable laws,
regulations and supervisory requirements.

The Audit Committee is appointed by the Board of Directors of Samba Bank
Limited and derives its authority from the Board to which it reports on a reqular
basis. In carrying out its oversight responsibilities, the Committee is authorized
to investigate any matter within its scope of responsibility or any issue it deems
appropriate with full authority to engage external legal counsel, auditors or
other professional advisors as required.

The responsibilities delegated to the Audit Committee by the Board are intended
to enhance the effectiveness of financial management, strengthen internal
control systems and reinforce the Bank's risk management and governance
framework.

Board Risk Committee (BRC)

Constitution,

Mr. Shafqgaat Ahmed
Mr. Fahad Ali AlHunaiti
Ms. Zeeba Ansar

Mr. Rashid Jahangir

1&2 ANNUAL REPORT 2025

The Board Risk Committee (BRC) oversees the risk management function,
including credit, market, liquidity, operational, environmental and information
security risks. In addition, Compliance risks are also reviewed, as presented by
the Compliance Function. BRC provides appropriate supervision and governance
of these risks within the Bank. Additionally, business segments’ related Product
Programs are also approved by the BRC. BRC in its periodic meetings undertakes
detailed risk reviews of the portfolios and provides the requisite oversight and
guidance to the management.

BOARD COMMITTEES

Board Nomination and
Remuneration Committee (BNRC)_

Constitution_

Hafiz Mohammad Yousaf
Mr. Mustafa llyas
Ms. Kholood Khalid Al-Khelaiwi

The objective of the BNRC is to provide general direction, oversight and
supervision of the affairs of the Bank in formulation of policies and standards on
Human Resource Management including compensation, ensuring financial
soundness and promoting effective risk management.

In its compensation supervisory role, the BNRC is tasked:

a. Toreview and monitor on an annual basis that an appropriate compensation
system is in place which is aligned with appropriate international standards
and best practices subject to primacy of local laws & regulations.

b. Reviewing directors’ nominations for suitability with regard to the Bank's
needs and reqgulatory requirements.

c. Reviewing and recommending to the Board selection and appointment of
President & CEO.

d. To consider and approve/recommend to the Board appointment,
compensation, increments, performance bonus etc. and succession plan of
Key Executives.

Other major responsibilities and duties of the BNRC, include the following:

a. Periodically review and evaluate the Remuneration and other Human
Resource Management Policies to ensure their adequacy and effectiveness.

b. Review the remuneration policy and remuneration setting mechanism at
least once every three years to ensure alignment with the evolving internal
as well as external dynamics.

c. Review and recommend annual fixed and variable compensation pools for
approval by the Board of Directors.

d. Review and approve the Management Structure/Organogram for the Senior
Management of the Bank.

Board IT Committee (BITC)_

Constitution,

Ms. Zeeba Ansar

Mr. Fahad Ali AlHunaiti
Mr. Mazen Ali AIDhabi
Mr. Shafgaat Ahmed

The Board IT Committee (BITC) has been established at Samba Bank in 2019 as
per the regulatory governance framework, to provide oversight on IT and Digital
Strateqgy, entity level Technology initiatives, its planning, Cyber Security status,
and their governance in a strategic and proactive manner.

The BITC monitors the progress of technology initiatives, so as to keep it aligned
with overall Bank and Business Strategy, and reports into Samba’s Board on the
status of technology activities and digital initiatives of the Bank.

ANNUAL REPORT 2025 14_2
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Board Executive Committee (BEC)

Constitution_

Mr. Shafgaat Ahmed
Mr. Fahad Ali AlHunaiti
Mr. Mazen Ali AIDhabi

The Board Executive Committee (BEC) has been established by the Board to
provide effective oversight of the Bank's operations and to facilitate timely
decision making on urgent matters arising in the course of business.

Board Level Governance Committee (BLGC)
for Islamic Banking Conversion =

Constitution

Hafiz Mohammad Yousaf

Mr. Shafgaat Ahmed

Mr. Rashid Jahangir

Ms. Samina H. Khan

Syed Zia—ul-Husnain Shamsi

1&2 ANNUAL REPORT 2025

The Board Level Governance Committee (BLGC) - for Islamic Banking
Conversion oversees the Bank's governance framework, with a specific focus on
ensuring an effective and Shariah-compliant transition from conventional to
Islamic banking. The Committee provides strategic direction, monitors
governance practices, and ensures alignment with requlatory, Shariah, and
ethical standards.

The role of the Committee is to review & recommend the Bank's corporate
governance framework in line with Islamic banking principles, monitor
compliance with SBP's Shariah Governance Framework & other applicable
laws/requlations, ensure adequate policies, controls, systems, and resources
are in place to support the transition, and review & approve key
governance-related milestones and documentation.




CHAIRMAN'S MESSAGE

SIHAIRMAN'S MESSAGE

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | am pleased to present the Annual
Report of Samba Bank Limited for the year ended December 31, 2025. As
Chairman of the Board, | continue to place strong emphasis on upholding
the highest standards of integrity, transparency and accountability across
the Bank's operations, while remaining focused on creating sustainable
value for our clients, employees and all stakeholders.

During 2025, Pakistan's economy showed further stabilization, with
continued improvement across key macroeconomic indicators. The State
Bank of Pakistan (SBP) played a proactive role in managing external
account pressures, contributing to relative stability in the exchange rate.
Additionally, SBP's timely and measured monetary policy actions helped
contain inflationary pressures during the year.

Against this backdrop, the Bank maintained a cautious and disciplined
approach, prioritizing the protection of its earning assets, further
strengthening its balance sheet and enhancing risk management through
prudent provisioning. These measures, despite a challenging operating
environment, enabled the Bank to deliver a profit before tax of PKR 1,555
min for the year. In addition to this, the bank also managed to realize an
amount of PKR 941 mIn on account of capital gains on Available for Sales
securities which were directly credited to Other Comprehensive Income.

Retail and Consumer Banking Group
@

During the year 2025, the Retail Banking grew its CASA book by PKR. 15 bln and on-boarded ~ 9, 500 new accounts. Particularly,
our LCY Current Account has grown by ~ PKR 5 Bn resulting in ~ 53% (YoY) which shows that the network is focused towards
profitable growth of the portfolio. The Consumer Assets book continued to forge its place in the market and closed the year with
an ENR of ~ PKR 5 bIn - a 40% growth YoY.

In addition to the 10 new branches opened in 2024, the bank further opened 20 new branches in 2025 to close the year with 77
branches in 36 cities and territories across Pakistan. Amidst the challenging market conditions and intense price, based
competition in the Retail Asset'’s, the Business continue to navigate these conditions by maintaining a disciplined approach to
lending and maintained one of the lowest NCLs in the Consumer lending industry.

On the Digital Banking front, the bank is finalizing its alliance with one of the leading AMCs in Pakistan for the digital cross-sell of
Mutual Funds. The initiative shall provide customers with access to host of investment vehicles through all digital channels. The
bank is also launching its One-touch Biometric Banking solution which is aimed providing convenience to branch banking
customers. All branch banking customers will be able to a host of conduct branch-counter transaction by giving only their
Biometric Verification without the need of providing any signed cheque etc.

The Retail Business is also venturing into Employee Banking / Retail Cash Management solution, with an aim to provide hassle
free bulk account opening to entities of varying sizes all across Pakistan. This initiative shall provide the business with a
large-scale customer onboarding and at the same time provide the bank with access to retail lending cross-sell opportunities at
affordable pricing.

Looking ahead, the bank envisages opening of 50 new branches at strategically venues across Pakistan in order to tap
mass-market segments across Pakistan. The Retail Assets team shall continue to expand its presence in the market and shall be
focusing on growing its book and capitalize on the steady discount rate trend whilst maintain optimum standards of asset quality
as we navigate the evolving economic landscape.

Corporate and Investment Banking Group (CIBG)

®

The improved economic indicators paved the way to resume lending business, which was earlier on halt for some time. The gross
loan book of CIBG started picking up from Q3 onwards, which resulted in an increase of 15% in the last quarter of 2025 on the
back of booking several new credit worthy top tier corporate relationships along with increase in exposure of existing names. The
upward movement in advances and related trade based facilities is expected to improve profitability and customer outreach to
various segments of performing industry sectors. In 2026, the group will focus on continuing its growth momentum in advances
in line with the credit policy of the Bank. A key driver of profitability will also be achieved through recovery of delinquent obligors
thereby bringing down its loan portfolio infection ratio.

CHAIRMAN'S MESSAGE

SME continues to be an important segment for the Group assisting small businesses in meeting their financing requirements.
Accordingly, we have enhanced focus on SME business, which was earlier limited to 2-3 urban localities only and taken an initiative
to reach out to this business in the commercial hubs of the country by taking the advantage of our existing branch network. In
addition, Digital Supply Chain Financing was launched during the year within this segment to digitally facilitate suppliers of
corporate customers in gaining access to financing their working capital requirements. Accordingly, we anticipate substantial
increase in the SME loan book going forward on account of these initiatives.

Within CIBG, the Cash Management function was rebranded into Transaction Banking, which remained a key enabler of the Bank's
cross-sell strategy during 2025, delivering resilient performance in line with an improving operating environment. Strategic
emphasis continued on the migration from manual to digital payment solutions, driving operational efficiencies, enhancing
straight-through processing and strengthening client stickiness.

In parallel, the Bank launched a dedicated Trade Sales function in 2025 under the Transaction Banking umbrella to accelerate
growth in trade finance and support broader cross-sell objectives. Through focused execution and close coordination with
coverage and product teams, CIBG trade volumes grew by 25% from last year. The momentum achieved positions the Bank well
for further growth in 2026, aligned with the strategic expansion of the CIBG lending portfolio and deeper engagement across
client trade ecosystem.

Global Markets/Treasury (GM)

o

The strengthening macroeconomic environment was positively reflected in equity market performance, with the index gaining
51% during the period, positioning Pakistan among the strongest performing markets in the region. Against this backdrop, the
Bank's Equity Desk delivered a strong performance, consistently outperforming the benchmark index. The Money Market
portfolio demonstrated a robust turnaround, driven by a ~187% increase in capital gains over the previous year. In parallel, the FX
Desk generated meaningful income despite operating within a subdued and largely range-bound market environment.

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)
L J

At Samba Bank Limited (SBL), we believe that true success is measured not only by financial performance but also by the positive
difference we make in people's lives. Our CSR philosophy is rooted in compassion, responsibility, and sustainable community
development, guided by a formal policy that ensures purposeful and impactful engagement.

Throughout 2025, our CSR initiatives were centered on Education and Healthcare, recognizing these as foundational needs for
social progress. By supporting underprivileged children's access to education and facilitating essential medical care for
marginalized communities, SBL aimed to improve quality of life and create opportunities for long-term empowerment.

We continued our valued partnerships with leading organizations including The Citizens Foundation (TCF), Indus Hospital, Pink
Ribbon Pakistan, Shaukat Khanum Memorial Hospital, Kiran Foundation, Patients Aid Foundation, Akhuwat and The Kidney
Centre. These collaborations have enabled us to contribute to life-saving treatments, awareness programs, and educational
development across Pakistan.

In addition, we expanded our outreach by supporting LRBT, Labard (Lahore Bussiness Association for Rehabilitation of the
Disabled), Zindagi Trust, Aga Khan University, Saleem Memorial Hospital, WWF, Orange Tree Foundation, SOS Children’s Village &
KDSP. Through these partnerships, SBL reached new communities and addressed critical needs ranging from vocational training
and disability support to specialized healthcare services.

Looking ahead, SBL remains committed to deepening its social impact by strengthening partnerships, responding to emerging
community needs, and fostering a more equitable and resilient society.

Performance of the Board of Directors

O

| would like to extend my appreciation to the Board of Directors for their continued commitment and valuable contributions to the
sustained progress and performance of Samba Bank. During 2025, the Board upheld the highest standards of business integrity
and professional conduct in the discharge of its responsibilities and oversight of the Bank's affairs. The Board remained actively
engaged in setting strategic direction and providing guidance to ensure the effective execution of strategic priorities in alignment
with the Bank's vision, mission, and core values.

The Board continued to exercise robust oversight over the financial and operational soundness of the Bank, with particular focus
on the effectiveness of the governance framework, internal control environment, audit processes and the risk management
architecture. Through prudent judgment and collective stewardship, the Board has played a pivotal role in reinforcing the Bank's
resilience, stability and long-term growth trajectory.

Acknowledgement
L J

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | would like to convey our sincere appreciation to the requlatory authorities, including the
State Bank of Pakistan, the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan and the Federal Board of Revenue, for their

continued guidance, cooperation, and oversight of Samba Bank's operations.
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Economic Highlights

During the year 2025, Pakistan's economy has shown signs of recovery, with real GDP growth rate reaching to 2.68%
and inflation easing steadily. The KSE-100 index rose to 174,054 points as at December 31, 2025, while monetary
policy rate was reduced to 10.50% during the year.

On the external front, current account posted a deficit of USD 1,174 million during current FY26 (July 25-December
25) as against a surplus of USD 957 million during the similar period last year. The deficit was driven by increase in
imports by USD 4,305 million, which partially offset the increase in workers' remittances by USD 1,886 million (11%).
As of January 2026, country’s foreign exchange reserves stood at USD 21.3 billion.

Bank's Operating Results and Financial Review

The bank has posted following financial results for the year ended December 31, 2025:

Rupees in million

Decembe 0 Decembe 024
Profit before provision 2,199 3,662
Credit loss allowance and write offs - net (644) (1,758)
Profit before taxation 1,555 1,550
Taxation (828) (850)
Profit after taxation 727 699
Earnings per share - PKR 0.72 0.69

DIRECTOR'S REPORT

During the period, net interest income declined by 23% over last year, which is attributable to decrease in policy
rate in the FY 2025. Non-interest income increased by Rs. 441 million and closed at Rs. 2,128 million, the increase
is mainly driven by capital gains of Rs. 596 million on investments. In addition to this capital gain realized in the
P&L, the Bank also realized a gross capital gain of Rs. 941 million (Rs. 442 million net of tax) on FVOCI equity
investment portfolio, which has been directly recognized in the Statement of Changes in Equity (SOCE) in
accordance with IFRS-9 requirements.

Despite undertaking key strategic initiatives, including the expansion of the branch network to 77 branches during
the year as compared to 57 branches in the corresponding period last year, operating cost remained flat,
reflecting the Bank's continued emphasis on cost efficiency, productivity and operational discipline.

On Balance sheet side, total assets as at 31st December 2025 increased by 13% (Rs. 23,956 million) against 31st
December 2024. This increase was driven by increase in investments of Rs. 17,086 million and increase in loans
and advances Rs.4,541 million. On the liabilities side, deposits grew by Rs. 11,785 million [11% over Dec'24] whereas
interbank borrowings increased by Rs. 9,733 million. The Bank's deposit mix strengthened during the period, with
the Current Accounts (CA) mix improved from 21.4% as of December 31, 2024, to 24.7% as of December 31, 2025.
The Bank's Current and Savings Accounts (CASA) mix improved from 44.0% as of December 31, 2024, to 59.8%
as at December 31, 2025.

Credit Rating

The Pakistan Credit Rating Agency Limited (PACRA), premier credit rating agency of the country, have assigned
the entity ratings at ‘AA/A+' (Double A/A-Plus) to the Bank with ‘Stable’ outlook. These long-term and short-term
ratings of the Bank denote high credit quality with adequate protection factor and strong capability for timely
payments to all financial commitments owing to strong liquidity positions.

Statement of Internal Controls .

The Board is pleased to affirm and approve management’s statement on the evaluation of internal controls, as
presented in this Annual Report.

Receipt of non-binding offer for shares held by Saudi
National Bank

L
During the year, the Saudi National Bank ("SNB"), as the majority shareholder of Samba Bank Limited, has notified
that they have received a non-binding offer from Najd Gateway Holding Company relating to the proposed
divestment of SNB's 100% stake in Samba Bank Limited ("Samba Pakistan ") (representing approximately 84.51%
shares in Samba Pakistan) (the "Potential Transaction "). Any decision relating to the potential transaction or
process relating thereto, including access to information for purposes of diligence, shall be subject to internal and
regulatory approvals and execution of definitive agreements.

Risk Management Framework .

Effective risk management is a prerequisite for achieving our business objectives and is thus a central part of the
Bank's risk culture. To ensure that an effective risk management framework is implemented in the Bank, the Board
of Directors and senior management are actively involved in the formulation of policies, procedures and limits.
Accordingly, the Bank has a comprehensive risk management framework that establishes risk management
principles, guidelines and the governance structure. This framework defines the various committees established
to undertake effective risk monitoring by the Board of Directors and the senior management, of the various types
of risks which include Credit, Market, Liquidity, Operational, Fraud, Environmental & Social, Cyber Security risks
and AML/CPF/CFT risks. These are discussed in more detail in note 45 to the annexed financial statements.

Through the risk management framework, bank-wide risks are managed with the objective of maximizing the
risk-adjusted returns while remaining within the risk parameters approved by the Board. The Bank's risk
management framework is designed to balance corporate governance with well-defined independent risk
management principles. Refinements were continuously undertaken in the overall risk management governance
throughout 2025, based on the guiding principles established by the Board Risk Committee.
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Statement under Code of Corporate Governance/Corporate and
Financial Reporting Framework

The Board of Directors is aware of its responsibilities under the Code of Corporate Governance
and is pleased to report and certify that:

25 E ANNUAL REPORT 2025

The Bank is a subsidiary of Saudi National Bank of Saudi Arabia, which holds 84.51%
shares of the Bank as at December 31, 2025 (2024: 84.51%));

Vision and Mission statement monitoring the effectiveness of the company’s
governance practices and overall corporate strategy for the Bank is prepared, adopted
and reviewed as and when deemed appropriate by the Board;

A formal code of conduct is in place that promotes ethical culture in the Bank and
prevents conflict of interest in their capacity as member of the Board, senior
management and other employees. The Board takes appropriate steps to disseminate
code of conduct throughout the Bank along with supporting policies and procedures;

Adequate systems and controls are in place for identification and redress of grievances
arising from unethical practices;

Proper books of account of the Bank have been maintained;

The financial statements prepared by the management of the Bank fairly present its
state of affairs, result of its operations, comprehensive income, cash flows, and
changes in equity;

Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in the preparation of
financial statements. Accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent
judgment;

International Financial Reporting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan and adopted by
the State Bank of Pakistan, have been followed in preparation of the Bank's financial
statements, and departures, if any, have been adequately disclosed;

The system of internal controls is sound in design and has been effectively
implemented and monitored on best efforts basis;

There are no doubts about the Bank's ability to continue as a going concern;

There has been no material departure from the best practices of corporate governance,
as detailed in the listing regulations;

A summary of key operating & financial data for last 6 years is included in Annual
Report;

A statement showing the Bank's shareholding pattern as of December 31, 2025 is
annexed,;

There are no statutory payments on account of taxes, duties, levies and charges which
are outstanding as of December 31, 2025, except as disclosed in these financial
statements;

Statement of Compliance with Code of Corporate Governance is annexed;

The financial statements of the Bank have been audited without qualification by
auditors of the Bank, Messrs. A. F. Ferguson & Co., Chartered Accountants;

The profiles of directors and their positions as directors in other entities are provided

DIRECTOR'S REPORT

under a separate section in this Annual Report;

+  The composition of board committees along with their brief TORs is provided under a
separate section in this Annual Report;

+ The Directors for whom Directors’ Certification was required from an authorized
institution pursuant to Section G-9 (8) of the Corporate Governance Regulatory
Framework ("CGRF"), have completed their Director’s Certification program except one
Director, namely Ms. Kholood Khalid Al Khelaiwi;

+ Directors’ Fee is paid in line with Board approved remuneration policy for the Board of
Directors in accordance with the Corporate Governance Regulatory Framework
("CGRF"), Companies Act, 2017, and the Code of Corporate Governance (“COCG");

* In line with the requirements of the COCG, the Bank encourages representation of
independent and non-executive directors. Currently, the Board of Directors of the Bank
comprise of three independent directors, four non-executive directors and one
executive director;

+  The Board evaluates its performance by the overall performance of the Bank. The
Directors reqularly attend the Board meetings and actively participate in the
proceedings. The Board ensures that the Bank adopts the best practices of corporate
governance in all areas of its operations and has a robust internal control system. The
Board is fully cognizant of the Bank's commitment to its sustainability strategy based
on social, environmental factors and has issued appropriate policy guidelines to ensure
continued performance in these areas.

Meetings of the Board .

Five (5) Board meetings and Twenty-One (21) Board Sub-Committee meetings were held
during the period under review. The Board granted leave of absence to the Directors who did
not attend the meetings. The number of meetings held and attended by each director is as
under:

Nomination &

B'oard of Aud_it Ris!( Remuneration IT‘ Board Level Boarq
Directors Commlttee Comnyttee Committee Comm_lttee Govern.ance Executive Total
(BoD) Meetings = Meetings Meetings Meetings Committee Committee

Number of meetings held 5 6 6 2 2 4 1 26
Number of meetings attended:
Mr. Mustafa llyas 5 0 0 2 0 0 0 7
Mr. Fahad A. AlHunaiti 2 0 3 0 2 0 1 8
Mr. Mazen Ali AIDhabi 2 3 0 0 2 0 1 8
Ms. Kholood Khalid Al-Khelaiwi 3 0 0 1 0 0 0 4
Hafiz Mohammad Yousaf 5 6 0 2 0 4 0 17
Mr. Shafgaat Ahmed 2 0 3 0 2 3 1 1
Ms. Zeeba Ansar 5 0 6 1 2 0 0 14
Mr. Javed Kureishi * 4 4 3 0 0 1 0 12
Mr. Nasser Al-Fraih** 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
Mr. Hussein Eid** 1 3 0 1 0 0 0 5
Mr. Timour Pasha** 1 0 3 0 0 0 0 4

*Resigned w.e.f. September 1, 2025
**Retired w.e.f. April 17, 2025
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Share Acquisition by Directors and Executives

L J
The Pattern of shareholding and additional information regarding the pattern of shareholding are annexed
separately. Furthermore, Hafiz Mohammad Yousaf, Independent Director, sold 900,000 shares of the bank and Mr.
Shafgaat Ahmed, Independent Director, purchased 500 shares of the bank.

Statement under Revised Guidelines on Remuneration Practices’

The Bank, in line with State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) Guidelines and Disclosures on Governance and Remuneration
Practices, has formulated & implemented a Remuneration Policy to specifically deal with employees who are
materially responsible for risk-taking or risk-controlling activities i.e. Material Risk Takers (MRTs) and Material Risk
Controllers (MRCs). The key objectives of this policy include promoting sound and effective risk management,
promoting and supporting long-term performance, attracting, retaining and motivating highly qualified
employees.

The policy defines the inclusion criteria for determination of MRTs & MRCs whose goal setting, performance
measurement processes are based on a balanced scorecard approach linking financial performance evaluation
with associated risks. MRT/MRC inclusion criteria takes into account both qualitative i.e. President & CEO, Direct
Reports of the President & CEO, Board & Board Committees, members of critical management committees and
heads of critical functions responsible for managing business, risks and controls as well as gquantitative criteria
covering all major risks e.g. Credit Risk, Market Risk, Operational Risk, Liquidity Risk, financial expenditure
approval authority thresholds etc. MRTs and MRCs performance is measured through risk-adjusted balanced
scorecards for ensuring correlation & alignment of risks and rewards, incorporating financial, non-financial and
qualitative as well as ‘risk-adjusting’ factors. Each category within the scorecards includes multiple factors/KPIs
for performance assessment based on appropriate benchmarks and targets.

Under the policy, compensation structure consists of (a) fixed remuneration i.e. compensating employees on a
monthly basis in the form of gross salary, grade and role-based fixed allowances and benefits, and (b) variable
remuneration i.e. performance-based remuneration paid in the form of annual bonus/periodic incentives. Level of
fixed remuneration is based on the role and position of the individual employee, professional experience, seniority,
education, responsibility, job complexity, local market conditions etc., whereas variable remuneration takes into
account the Bank's, Group's, Business Unit's/Product’s, and individual's performance for determining payout.

A certain portion of the eligible MRTs and MRCs variable compensation is deferred for a defined period (three
years) to align employee and stakeholders’ interests and link it to longer-term sustainable performance.
Proportion of deferment is based on categorization of the concerned MRT/MRC i.e. President & CEO, Senior
Management & Other MRTs & MRCs, ranging from 20% to 30%. Deferred remuneration is paid proportionately
over a period of three years through yearly installments following the year of the award. Malus provisions provide
for cancellation or reduction of the unvested compensation award due to specific crystalized risk, behavior and
conduct or performance outcome. Remuneration of MRCs working in control functions such as Risk Management,
Credit, Compliance, Internal Audit, Financial Control, Legal etc. is determined independently from the business
units monitored by them. No guaranteed bonuses are allowed.

In accordance with the regulatory requirements, the Bank has a Board Nomination & Remuneration Committee
(BNRC) comprising of non-executive directors and headed by an independent director. While the Board of
Directors has the overall responsibility for reviewing, approving and monitoring implementation of the bank-wide
remuneration framework, the BNRC is responsible for overall design and oversight of the compensation system of
the Bank. The BNRC also approves/recommends to the Board for approval, annual performance awards for the
senior management, as required.

Environment Social Governance (ESG)

The Board acknowledges that ESG forms an integral part of the Bank's governance framework in line with the
requirements of the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019, and the ESG Disclosure
Guidelines issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP). The Board periodically reviews
sustainability-related risks, opportunities, and performance metrics to ensure alignment with the Bank's strategic
objectives and reqgulatory expectations. A comprehensive disclosure of the Bank’s ESG initiatives is provided in
the note no 45.3.1 Green banking and Environmental, Social & Governance (ESG) in this Annual Report.

DIRECTOR'S REPORT

Auditors

Sy
The retiring external auditors Messrs. A. F. Ferguson & Co., Chartered Accountants (a member firm of the PwC
network), being eligible, have offered themselves for re-appointment. The Board of Directors, on the suggestion
of the Audit Committee, recommends Messrs. A. F. Ferguson & Co., Chartered Accountants (a member firm of the
PwC network) to be appointed for the next year at a fee to be mutually agreed. The Auditors' remuneration for
2025 is disclosed in Note 30.3 of the annexed financial statements.

Events after Balance Sheet Date

There have been no material events that occurred subsgquent to the date of the Balance Sheet that require
adjustments to the financial statements.

Future Outlook .

State Bank of Pakistan and the Ministry of Finance anticipate that real GDP growth will range between 3.25% and
4.25% in FY2026. The Bank plans to further expand its network with the addition of 50 new branches during FY
2026, while strategically enhancing its digital footprint to improve accessibility and customers experience.

Acknowledgment

We extend our sincere gratitud’e to our customers, business partners, and shareholders for their continued trust
and support. The Board of Directors and Management also acknowledge with appreciation the guidance and
oversight provided by the State Bank of Pakistan, the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan, the
Federal Board of Revenue, and other requlatory authorities.

We are particularly grateful to our employees, whose dedication, commitment, and teamwork have been
instrumental in strengthening the Bank and transforming it into a successful and resilient franchise.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

w‘\?

Rashid Jahangir Hafiz Mohammad Yousaf
President & Chief Executive Officer Director

February 17, 2026

Karachi.,
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SIX YEARS' PERFORMANCE HIGHLIGHTS

SIX YEARS' PERFORMANCE HIGHLIGHTS

Rs. in Millions

December 31 2025 2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
Statement of Financial Position
Assets
Advances - gross 7,304 66,121 80,712 80,529 85,256 68,573
Investments - gross 117,362 100,275 70,503 76922 94,88 68,199
Lending to financial institutions 1,500 - 8,192 7354 5908 9936
Cash and balances with treasury and other banks 10,451 10,578 10,504 7193 8910 8,743
Fixed assets 5157 3,501 2958 3132 2982 1939
Intangible assets 740 763 597 616 592 142
Deferred tax asset - net 3130 3,367 2,503 2]21 1,218 365
Other assets - gross 7635 8,077 10,278 7457 6,537 4,508
Total assets - gross of provisions 217,279 192,682 186,248 185,323 205,591 162,404
Provision against advances ECL - Stage 1,2 & 3 (10,693) (10,051) (7,276) (6,074) (4,079) (2938)
Provision for diminution in the value of investments - ©) (C)) 18) (213) (309)
Provision held against bad and doubtful other assets (144) (144) (147) (157) (161) (161)
Total assets - net of provisions 206,441 182,486 178,734 179,074 201,139 158,996
Liabilities
Customer deposits and other accounts 18927 107,142 14,732 105,244 79,267 78,426
Borrowings 52,207 42,474 30982 45,826 93,019 56,197
Bills payable 241 1,791 975 1,039 903 3,358
Subordinated debt 4991 4993 4995 4997 4999 -
Other liabilities 9105 8,861 10,687 7315 7,051 5,698
Total liabilities 187,640 165,261 162,371 164,421 185,239 143,679
Net assets 18,800 17,225 16,363 14,653 15,900 15,317
Share capital 10,082 10,082 10,082 10,082 10,082 10,082
Advance against proposed issue of shares - - - - -
Reserves 3,262 3n7 2977 2,730 2,730 1,032
Unappropriated profit / (accumulated losses) 5,074 4,050 3,578 2,590 3,623 3,748
Equity 18,419 17,249 16,638 15,402 16,435 14,862
(Deficit)/ surplus on revaluation of assets - net of tax 381 (24) (274) (749) (535) 455

18,800 17,225 16,363 14,653 15,900 15,317
Profit & Loss Account
Mark-up / return / interest earned 2212 28,721 28,705 22,545 13983 13,575
Mark-up / rerurn / interest expensed (16,518) (21,395) (20,604) (17,811) (9,676) (9,876)
Net mark-up / interest income 5,593 7,326 8,101 4,734 4,306 3,699
Fee, commission, brokerage and Income from dealing in foreign currencies 1,191 1,375 1,523 1,462 859 809
Dividend income and (loss) / gain on sales of securities - net 868 281 (339) (1,231) 581 523
Other income and unrealised (loss) / gain on revaluation of investments 69 31 25 13 31 10
Non mark-up / interest income 2,128 1,687 1,208 244 1,4M 1,341
Revenue 7722 9,013 9,310 4978 S5.777 5,040
Non mark-up / interest expenses (5,522) (5,351) (4,830) (4,059) (3/424) (3,018)
Other Expenses - levy - (354) - - - -
(Charge) / reversal / recovery of provision / against write-offs (644) (1,758) (2,286) (1,845) (1,049) (354)
Profit / (Loss) before taxation 1,556 1,550 2,193 (926) 1,304 1,668
Taxation (829) (850) (958) 498 (515) (657)
Profit / (Loss) after taxation 727 699 1,235 (428) 789 1,012
Other Information
Return on equity (RoE) 4.0% 42% 8% 2.8% 51% 69%
Return on assets (RoA) 0.4% 0.4% 0.7% -0.2% 0.4% 07%
Profit before tax to revenue ratio 201% 17.2% 23.6% -18.6% 22.6% 331%
Advances to deposits ratio (ADR) * 46.3% 45.0% 54.0% 58.4% 859% 709%
Efficiency ratio (cost to revenue) 71.5% 59.4% 51.9% 81.5% 59.3% 599%
Earning Per Share (EPS) 072 0.69 123 (0.42) 078 1.00
Market value per share - rupees 14.24 9.25 10.59 6.50 12.45 750
Number of employees - FTE 689 648 662 679 670 618
Number of employees - Bank Contract & 3rd Party Contract 421 287 295 331 320 321
Number of branches 7 57 47 47 44 40
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STATEMENT OF INTERNAL CONTROLS

.Statement of Internal Controls

Management of the Bank is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate controls for providing reasonable
assurance on effective and efficient business, its operations, internal financial controls and compliance with laws and
requlations. Internal Controls are designed to mitigate, rather than eliminate, the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable assurance against risk of material misstatement or losses. Whilst the
development of Internal Control systems is an ongoing process, controls are embedded in respective departmental
Policies and Procedures and self-tested on a quarterly basis.

The responsibility for adherence to controls mainly lies with the First Line of Defense. The Bank has formed various
Management Committees for continuous oversight over the controls’ environment. Compliance function acts as
Second line of Defense. Further, the Bank has clearly defined roles for certain control functions such as Operational
Risk Management Department (ORMD) and Finance in its Internal Controls Policy. ARR as third line of Defense
periodically carries out audits of branches and departments to monitor compliance with the Bank's controls and
regulatory requirements. Likewise, the Compliance function assists Senior Management in effectively managing the
regulatory compliance through Branch/Function Reviews, Advisories, Review of AML/Sanction alerts and ensuring
timely update of customer KYCs. The ORMD function within the Risk Management Group carries out quality assurance
reviews of processes and transactions of branch banking operations, to monitor compliance with bank's policies and
procedures. Risk & Controls Self-Assessment (RCSA) regime has been implemented throughout the Bank, whereby
each business/function, under the guidance of their respective Group Head, ORMD, ICFR Unit and Compliance
function, undertakes a quarterly self-testing exercise to test the effectiveness of their operational, financial and
reqgulatory risks & controls. To institutionalize a robust Operational Risk Management culture, Key Risk Indicators
(KRIs) for each function have been identified along with tolerance limits. The Internal Control - ICFR Unit under
Finance assists the Management in formulating an effective ICFR system, in line with the applicable regulations and its
reqgular monitoring. An accountability process is in place to ensure the effectiveness of the overall control
environment. Further, the Management gives due consideration to recommendations made by internal & external
auditors and reqgulators, especially for improvements in internal control systems and processes, and takes timely
action to implement their recommendations.

To implement Internal Control Guidelines, as required by the State Bank of Pakistan, ARR reviewed the detailed
exercise of documenting and benchmarking existing internal processes and controls, relating to financial reporting.
This review assists in further improving internal controls across the Bank and ensures compliance with the SBP
requirements. The Bank has taken corrective action to timely implement the improvements identified during the
previous ICFR Assessments and follows a formal action plan to timely address any deficiencies identified in the
ongoing assessments. As per the SBP roadmap of Internal Controls over Financial Reporting, the Bank has completed
all stages and is in compliance with SBP instructions and has obtained exemption from the State Bank of Pakistan for
submission of Long Form Report (LFR) certified by external auditors. As a result, ARR prepares the “Annual
Assessment Report on efficacy of Bank's Internal controls over financial reporting” under the Internal Controls
framework which is approved by the Board of Directors. Furthermore, submission of this Annual Assessment Report to
SBP has been discontinued vide BSD circular Letter No. 1 of 2021. The Management considers the existing internal
controls system of the Bank, including ICFR, to be adequate, with appropriate implementation and regular monitoring,
however, room for improvement exists.

The Board of Directors is ultimately responsible for the Bank's Internal Control system and endorses the above
evaluation of Internal Controls system by Management, in the Directors’ Report.

w"\g,.

Mr. Rashid Jahangir

President and Chief Executive Officer
February 17, 2026

Karachi

COMPLAINT HANDLING MACHANISM

gomplaint Handling Machanism

Samba Bank remains firmly committed to maintaining a customer-focused service culture, underpinned by fairness,
transparency, and accountability in line with the principles and guidelines issued by the State Bank of Pakistan (SBP).
Samba Bank has a centralized and structured internal complaint handling mechanism to ensure the timely, fair and
effective resolution of customer grievances.

During the year, the Bank continued to enhance its complaint handling framework by coordinating with concerned
departments and ensuring adherence to prescribed requlatory timelines. Interim responses were issued to customers
wherever required, in line with requlatory instructions, to keep customers informed of the status of their complaints.

In line with regulatory requirements, Samba Bank also ensures that customers are duly informed about the availability
of alternate grievance redressal forums in cases where complaints are declined. Relevant details of these forums,
including complete contact information, are clearly communicated to customers at the time of complaint closure. This
approach reinforces transparency, empowers customers with clear escalation options, and reflects the Bank's commit-
ment to fair treatment and requlatory compliance in its complaint handling process.

Customers may lodge complaints through multiple channels, including branches, phone banking, email, and the Bank’s
website. In addition, customers can conveniently track the status of their complaints through phone banking, email, or
by visiting the nearest branch, ensuring transparency, accessibility, and timely communication throughout the entire
complaint resolution process.

Modes of complaints lodgment

SambaPhone Banking Samba Branches Mail/Letter Email
: : Sunawai Complaint
WhatsApp Fax Social Media Portal

Summary of Complaints & resolution in FY2025:

As of year-end 2025, Samba Bank expanded its physical presence by increasing its branch network to 77 branches
across 36 cities, further improving customer access and facilitating prompt complaint registration and resolution at
the branch level.

During 2025, Samba Bank received a total of 4,175 complaints, reflecting a reduction of approximately 15% compared
to 4,907 complaints received in 2024. The average turnaround time (TAT) for complaint resolution improved by 20%,
decreasing to 4 working days in 2025 from 5 working days in 2024, demonstrating Samba Bank’s continued focus on
service efficiency and customer satisfaction.

Below is a snapshot of the complaints received/resolved by Samba Care during 2025.

Total Complaints Received 4,175
Overall Complaints
Average complaint resolution time 4 working days
Breakup up - Complaints
Total Complaints Received 258
Minor (3 working days)
Average complaint resolution time 2 working days
Total Complaints Received 150
Minor (7 working days)
Average complaint resolution time 4 working days
Total Complaints Received 3,632
Major (15 working days)
Average complaint resolution time 4 working days
Total Complaints Received 135
Fraud Related (30 working
Average complaint resolution time 6 working days
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AUDITORS' REVIEW REPORT STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

Independent Auditors’' Review Report to the Statement of Compliance with Listed
members of Samba Bank Limited Review Companies (Code of Corporate Governance)
Report on the Statement of Compliance Requlations, 2019

contained in Listed Companies (Code of T s i e e Lo o oo G
Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019

1. Total number of Directors are Eight (8) as per the following;
a. Male: Six (06)
. ) ) ) ) b. Female: Two (02)
We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance)
Regulations, 2019 (the Requlations) prepared by the Board of Directors of Samba Bank Limited (the Bank) for the year > h - . .
. e composition of the Board is as follows:
ended December 31, 2025 in accordance with the requirements of requlation 36 of the Regulations. POSIt I Y
2go Names

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the Bank. Our responsibility is to
review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the Bank's compliance with the provisions of the . Hafiz Mohammad Yousaf
Regulations and report if it does not and to highlight any non-compliance with the requirements of the Regulations. A Independent Directors* Mr. Shafgaat Ahmed

review is limited primarily to inquiries of the Bank's personnel and review of various documents prepared by the Bank to

. . . . Mr. Rashid Jahangir
comply with the Reqgulations.

P ° Executive Director President & Chief Executive Officer
As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the accounting and internal Mr. Mustafa Ilyas (Chairman)
control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit approach. We are not required to consider Non-Executive Directors Mr. Fahad Ali AlHunaiti
whether the Board of Directors' statement on internal control covers all risks and controls or to form an opinion on the Mr. Mazen Ali AIDhabi

effectiveness of such internal controls, the Bank's corporate governance procedures and risks.
. Ms. Kholood Khalid Al-Khelaiwi (Non-Executive Director)
The Regulations require the Bank to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation of the Audit Female Directors Ms. Zeeba Ansar (independent director)

Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and approval, its related party transactions. We are only
required and have ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent of the approval of the related party transactions
by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of the Audit Committee.

* The Independent Directors meet the criteria of independence as laid down under Section 166 of the Act.
3. The Directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than seven listed companies,

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement of Compliance does ) . )
including this Bank;

not appropriately reflect the Bank's compliance, in all material respects, with the requirements contained in the

Regulations as applicable to the Bank for the year ended December 31, 2025. 4. The Ba.nk hgs prepared a "Code of Cond.uct"’ and has. ensurgq that appropriate steps have been taken to
disseminate it throughout the bank along with its supporting policies and procedures;
5. The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy, and significant policies of the

Bank. The Board has ensured that a complete record of particulars of the significant policies along with their date

n-|rill-|" of approval or updating is maintained by the Bank;

6. All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have been taken by the
A.F. Ferguson & Co. Board/shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2017 (“the Act”) and these
Chartered Accountants Regulations;
Islamabad 7. The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a director elected by the

Date: March 5, 2026 Board for this purpose. The Board has complied with the requirements of the Act and the Regulations with respect

to frequency, recording, and circulating minutes of meetings of the Board;
UDIN: CR202510979kT9D2YcgL

8. The Board has a formal policy and transparent procedures for the remuneration of directors in accordance with the
Act and these Requlations;
o. All members of the Board of Directors and Executives have successfully completed the Director’s Training Program

from an authorized institution, with the exception of Ms. Kholood Khalid Al-Khelaiwi, for whom the Bank has
scheduled training in 2026. Additionally, Mr. Rashid Jahangir has been appointed as President & CEO. Furthermore,
Mr. Fahad Ali AlHunaiti and Mr. Mazen Ali AIDhabi were appointed as Directors on the Board during the current year.
In accordance with requlatory requirements, their Director’s Training Program will be completed within one year
from the date of their appointment.
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

10.

4|1_E ANNUAL REPORT 2025

The Board has approved the appointment of Chief Financial Officer, Head of Internal Audit, and Company Secretary
including their remuneration and terms and conditions of employment and compiled with relevant requirements of
the Regulations;

Chief Financial Officer and Chief Executive Officer duly endorsed the financial statements before approval of the
Board;

The Board has formed committees comprising of members given below: -

a) Board Audit Committee ('BAC'")
(i) Hafiz Mohammad Yousaf (Chairman)
(i) Mr. Fahad Ali AlHunaiti (Member)

(iii) Mr. Mazen Ali AIDhabi (Member)

b) Board Risk Committee (“"BRC")
O] Mr. Shafgaat Ahmed (Chairman)
(i) Mr. Fahad Ali AlHunaiti (Member)

(iii) Ms. Zeeba Ansar (Member)
(iv) Mr. Rashid Jahangir (Member)

c) Board Nomination & Remuneration Committee (“"BNRC')
(i) Hafiz Mohammad Yousaf (Chairman)
(i) Mr. Mustafa llyas (Member)

(iii) Ms. Kholood Khalid Al-Khelaiwi (Member)

d) Board IT Committee (“BITC")
0] Ms. Zeeba Ansar (Chairperson)
(i) Mr. Mazen Ali AIDhabi (Member)

(iii) Mr. Fahad Ali AlHunaiti (Member)
(iv) Mr. Shafgaat Ahmed (Member)

e) Board Level- Governance Committee for Islamic Banking Conversion (“BLGC")
0] Hafiz Mohammad Yousaf (Chairman)
(i) Mr. Shafgaat Ahmed (Member)

(i) Mr. Rashid Jahangir (Member)
(iv) Ms. Samina H. Khan (Member)

(v) Syed Zia-ul-Husnain Shamsi (Member)
f) Board Executive Committee (“BEC")

(@ Mr. Shafgaat Ahmed (Chairman)

(ii) Mr. Fahad Ali AlHunaiti (Member)

(iii) Mr. Mazen Ali AIDhabi (Member)

The Terms of Reference of the committees above have been formed, documented, and advised to the committee
for compliance;
The frequency and number of meetings held of each committee is as follows: -

Board's Committees Frequency No. of Meegings Held
Audit Committee At least once every quarter of the financial year | 6

Board Nomination & Remuneration Committee At least twice a year 2

Board Risk Committee At least once every quarter of the financial year | 6

Board IT Committee At least twice a year 2

Board Level- Governance Committee for Islamic

Banking Conversion Need Basis 4

Board Executive Committee Once every financial year 1

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

15. The Board has set up an effective internal audit function that is considered suitably qualified and experienced for
the purpose and is conversant with the policies and procedures of the Bank;
16. The statutory auditors of the Bank have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory rating under the

Quality Control Review Program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and registered with the
Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they and all their partners comply with International Federation of
Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan
and that they and the partners of the firm involved in the audit are not a close relative (spouse, parent, dependent
and non-dependent children) of the Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Head of Internal Audit,
Company Secretary or Directors of the Bank;

17. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other services
except in accordance with the Act, these Regulations, or any other regulatory requirement, and the auditors have
confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard;

18. We confirm that all requirements of regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33, and 36 of the Regulations have been complied
19. IZV;:)T'anation for non-compliance with requirements, other than regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33 and 36 are below;
1) Role of the Board and its members to address Sustainability Risks and Opportunities

Regulation 10A:

In terms of Regulation 10A, the Board is responsible for setting the Bank's sustainability (including diversity, equity
and inclusion) strategies, priorities, and targets to create long term corporate value and for its periodic review and
monitoring. Further, the Board is required to understand and address sustainability risks and opportunities,
including climate-related risks and opportunities relevant to the Company. These matters are also required to be
disclosed in the directors report. In order to achieve its sustainability related obligations, the Board my establish a
dedicated committee or assign additional responsibilities to an existing committee. Currently, the Board oversees
and governs the Bank's initiatives related to sustainability matters. Further, the Bank has engaged a consultant for
assistance in compliance with these requirements.

2) Nomination Committee (Regulation 29(1)):
In terms of Regulation 29, the Board may constitute a separate committee designated as the nomination
committee. Currently, the functions of the Nomination Committee are being carried out by the Board Nomination
& Remuneration Committee (BNRC), with adequately documented Terms of References (TORs) of the said board
committee.

3) Significant Policies on Website (Requlation 35):
In terms of Regulation 35, the Bank may post significant policies on its website, the Bank has noted the matter and
intends to comply with this requirement in future.

4) Directors' Training (Requlation 19):

In terms of Regulation 19, it is encouraged that a newly appointed director on the board may acquire, the Director’s
Training Program Certificate within a period of one year from the date of appointment. However, the training has
not been conducted for Ms. Kholood Khalid Al-Khelaiwi since her appointment as a director dated October 23,
2023. The Bank will arrange a Directors' Training Program for the aforementioned director in due course.

In terms of Regulation 19(3) (I & 1), the Bank may arrange training for at least one female executive and one head
of department every year, the Bank has noted the matter and will therefore arrange a Training Program for
aforesaid employees in due course.

')ﬂj'w W’%‘Mnto* %/

Mr. Rashid Jahangir Mr. Mustafa llyas
President & CEO Chairman

February 13, 2026
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ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice Of The 23" (Twenty-Third)
Annual General Meeting

Notice is hereby given that the 23rd (Twenty-Third) Annual General Meeting (“AGM") of Samba
Bank Limited (the “Bank") will be held on Thursday, March 26, 2026, at 12:00 pm (“PST") at the
Hotel Margala, Islamabad, Pakistan, to transact the following business:

-
"

Ordinary Business
1. To confirm the minutes of the 22nd Annual General Meeting held on April 17, 2025.

2. To receive, consider, and adopt the Annual Audited Accounts of the Bank for the year .
ended December 31, 2025, together with the Reports of the Directors and Auditors @&5‘:
thereon.

3. To appoint Auditors and fix their remuneration for a term ending at the conclusion of the next Annual General
Meeting. The retiring Auditors, M/s. A.F. Ferguson & Co., Chartered Accountants, being eligible, have offered
themselves for reappointment.

Any Other Business
To consider any other business with the permission of the Chair.

By the Order of the Board
March 05, 2026 Zia-ul-Husnain Shamsi
Karachi Company Secretary
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NOTES:

1. Share Transfer Books of the Bank will remain closed from 20-03-2026 to 26-03-2026 (both days inclusive). Transfers
received in order, at the Bank's Registrar, M/s. FAMCO Share Registration Services (Private) Limited, 8-F, Near Hotel
Faran, Nursery, Block-6, P.E.C.H.S, Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi, up to close of business on 19-03-2026, will be considered in
time and be entitled to attend and vote.

2. Copies of the minutes of the 22nd Annual General Meeting held on April 17, 2025, are available for inspection by members as
required under section 152 of the Companies Act, 2017. Members who will join the meeting through a video link and are desirous
of inspection of the minutes of the 22nd AGM may send his/her requests via email at zia.shamsi@samba.com.pk.

3. Up-dation of shareholder addresses & other particulars:

Members holding shares in physical form are requested to promptly notify the Shares Registrar of the Bank of any change
in their addresses or any other particulars. Shareholders maintaining their shares in electronic form should have their
address updated with their participant or CDC Investor Accounts Service. Further, to comply with the requirements of
section 119 of the Companies Act, 2017, and Regulation 47 of the Companies Regulations, 2024, all CDC and non-CDC
shareholders are requested to have their email addresses and cell phone numbers incorporated / updated in their physical
folio or CDC account.

4. Requirements for attending the Annual General Meeting:

(i)  Inthe case of individuals, the account holder or sub-account holder whose registration details are uploaded as per
the Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited (“CDC") Regulations, shall authenticate his/her identity by
showing his/her original Computerized National Identity Card (CNIC) or original passport at the time of attending
the Annual General Meeting.

(i) In case of a corporate entity, the Board of Directors' resolution/power of attorney with specimen signature of the
nominee shall be produced at the time of the Annual General Meeting, unless it has been provided earlier, to the
Bank, along with the proxy form.

5. Participation in AGM through electronic means:

The Bank will provide the facility to all the shareholders to participate in the Annual General Meeting via video link.
Shareholders are encouraged to attend the AGM proceedings through the video link facility.

The entitled shareholders whose names appear in the Books of the Bank by the close of business on March 19, 2026, and
who are interested to attend the AGM via video link are hereby requested to register themselves with the Company
Secretary Office by providing the following information at the earliest but not later than 48 hours before the time of the
AGM through Email agm@samba.com.pk with the following particulars:

Name of CDC Account No./ :
Shareholder CNIC Number Folio No. Cell Number Email Address

The bank will send the login details/password via email to the members who are registered, after the necessary

verification. On the AGM Day, shareholders will be able to login and participate in the AGM proceedings through their

smartphones/computer devices from any convenient location. The login facility will be opened 30 minutes before the

meeting time to enable the participants to join the meeting. Please note that only those shareholders who have already
registered themselves through the above process will be able to participate in the meeting.
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The members can also send their comments/suggestions related to the agenda of the Annual General Meeting (AGM)
through email at zia.shamsi@samba.com.pk or WhatsApp at +92(307) 3278728.

6. Requirements for appointing proxies:

(i) A member entitled to attend and vote at this meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend, speak, and vote on
his/her behalf. A proxy (except for a corporate entity) must be a member of the Bank. Proxy form, in order to be
effective, must be received at the Registered Office of the Bank, duly stamped and signed not less than 48 hours
before the time of the meeting. In case of a corporate entity, the Board of Directors’ Resolution/Power of Attorney
with specimen signatures shall also be submitted along with the Proxy Form to the Bank. (No account shall be taken
of any part of the day that is not a working day).

(i)  The entitled shareholders are requested to keep with them their original Computerized National Identity Cards
(CNICs) / Passport along with their folio numbers / participant(s) ID numbers and CDC account numbers at the time
of attending the Annual General Meeting in order to facilitate identification of the respective shareholders. The
proxy shall also produce his/her original CNIC or Passport at the time of the meeting.

7. Audited Financial Statements through e-mail:

In pursuant to Section 223(6) of the Companies Act 2017 and SECP S.R.0. 389 (I) / 2023 dated March 21, 2023, the Annual
Report 2025 which includes Auditors’ Report along with Audited Financial Statements, Directors’ Report, Chairman'’s
Review Report and Notice of Annual General Meeting are being e-mailed to the members who have provided their e-mail
addresses. Members are also requested to inform change (if any) in their registered e-mail addresses to the relevant
Participants / Investor Account Services of the CDC / Share Registrar of the Bank (as the case may be) for the aforesaid
purpose. Members of the Bank who wish to receive the hard copy of the Annual Report are requested to send a standard
request form to our Share Registrar. The standard request form can be downloaded from the Bank’s website link,

https://www.samba.com.pk/samba/overviews/notices.

The Annual Report of the Bank has also been uploaded on the website of the Bank which can be downloaded from the
following weblink or QR enabled code given on the top right of this notice. Weblink

https://www.samba.com.pk/samba/overviews/financial-reports.
8. Submission of CNIC (Mandatory):

(i)  Shareholders who have not yet submitted a copy of their valid CNIC or valid Passport to the Bank, are once again
reminded to send the same by March 19, 2026. The CNIC number /NTN details are mandatory and are also required
for checking the tax status as per the Active Taxpayers List (ATL) issued by the Federal Board of Revenue (“FBR")
from time to time.

(i) Individual Shareholders (including all joint holders) holding physical share certificates of the Bank are requested to
submit a copy of their valid CNIC to the Bank or its Share Registrar if not already provided. The shareholders, while
sending CNIC must quote their respective folio numbers.

(iii)  In case of non-receipt of a copy of a valid CNIC, the Bank will be constrained under Section 243 (3) of the Companies
Act, 2017 (“"Companies Act") to withhold the dividend of such shareholders.

9. Provision of IBAN for payment of cash dividend electronically (Mandatory):

(i)  Incompliance with Section 242 of the Companies Act, 2017 it is mandatory for a public listed company to pay cash
dividends to its shareholders through electronic mode ONLY, directly into the bank account designated by the
eligible shareholder.

(i)  Therefore, all shareholders, who have not provided their bank details are once again, through this notice, requested
to update their accurate and complete 24 digits IBAN together with the bank’s name, branch address, CNIC number,
and correct email address with respective Participants/Investors' Account Services of CDC, for electronic form of

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

shares, and in case of physical shareholding with our Shares Registrar, M/s. FAMCO Share Registration Services
(Pvt.) Limited, at the address given above. This will enable payment of past-withheld dividends.

(iii) Please note that, as per Section 243(3) of the Companies Act, 2017, listed companies are entitled to withhold
payment of dividends if the necessary information is not provided by shareholders.

(iv) E-Dividend Mandate Form is available on the Bank's website for the convenience of shareholders.
10.Deposit / Conversion of Physical Shares into Book=-Entry Form:

The shareholders having physical share certificates of the Bank are advised to place / convert their physical shares into
Book-Entry Form in CDC as required under the provisions of Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2017.

11. Registration in the CCDR Web Portal of CDC:

Central Depository Company (CDC) has developed a Centralized Cash Dividend Registrar (“CCDR"), on its eService's web
portal, which contains details pertaining to cash dividends paid, unpaid, or withheld by listed companies. CCDR maintains
a recent history of dividends paid to shareholders by listed companies and access to such information is provided to the
respective shareholders including details of Income Tax / Zakat deduction etc. (if any) and the net amount credited into
their accounts.

Shareholders of the Bank are requested to register themselves on CDC's e-services Portal
https://www.cdcaccess.com.pk to access the above facility.

12. Unclaimed Dividend / Shares Certificates U/s 244 of the Companies Act, 2017:

An updated list of unclaimed dividends/shares certificates of the Bank, which have remained unclaimed or unpaid for
three vyears from the date these have become due and payable, is available on the Bank's website
https://www.samba.com.pk/samba/overviews/notices.

Claims can be lodged by shareholders on the Claim Form as is available on the Bank's website. Claim Forms must be
submitted to the Bank's Share Registrar for receipt of dividends/ shares.

13.Prohibition on grant of gifts to Shareholders:

The Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (the “SECP"), through its Circular 2 of 2018, dated February 9, 2018
and S.R.0.452(1)/2025 has strictly prohibited companies from providing gifts or incentives, in lieu of gifts
(tokens/coupons/lunches/takeaway/packages) in any form or manner, to shareholders at or in connection with general
meetings. Under Section 185 of the Act, any violation of this directive is considered an offense, and companies failing to
comply may face penalties.

14.Proxy Form:
The proxy form is enclosed and also available on the Bank's website

https://www.samba.com.pk/samba/overviews/notices.

433 ANNUAL REPORT 2025

ANNUAL REPORT 2025 46_2




ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

5
.

el U E e 12 d S

;2026@/“9.,.;},/’4/’32-&;gw.J(,fg!uy’»dﬂ);zoze@Lzsc;;zoze@/uzof%};-if,@ 1
S finsi8F e L (Lo f1)) oo IR o L B P BB Kol
%g@ 20261267 ke 1-(23) U1 (LB o L fe bk T2 L1 LB ML st S s o G St e PSS 8-
g% ﬁjﬁ e L AT E (12:00) sib oo b L 3 e s
® & SRy LR S WL AP 78 2 eI A(22) o84 2005 1T s dl Ll A3 1525 2017 K1 2
(UL pegtets iy sE s Sl un JE Ut a5 By be2 o Uns- g A JFEUPL
_ugééf{c/Lé;u:!aj_u’Lde!/?zia.shamsi@samba.com.pk?ug,cf'?!}LL/;Zb»

71(85%
UL Pt 0 (22) 5 i 2025 1T
Sulsly 7 B 2025 531 b B1e L  aSo ST A AU 5 e T s el wd bz O gt 3
'Ll?d)dub/ Lwﬁ/}:ﬁiVE;u:ufd/&,«;ut¢uﬁ/ﬁgug’%.mf‘¢Q@J_wl}/m_ c)fcugézj//';ﬂf.ﬁu'/:”

PRIV (RIS M - Ve g R B thm:t/g:“%,u»Luwd//&ﬁ;t -r SISt e Ll § oS o e i AR A S
RSP SO NS o TV S S s

2y ’/f)

. _ , SIS nd SSya et ool 4TS5 202425 110552 201708124 1z
ﬁjifg’ -tU/}QJLf‘ ’/‘:)Ld/}b‘” (,(uﬁ S "

. qu’,;uﬁysmg“u’jJg,é}ﬂy'%u/u}ﬂw/gﬁgr%lufc,3{7d/e/'?m*—bﬂn/"ii«ﬁ?ﬂ'u’
S +2026%.5 -/

SpEE S

Bt el UL 4

("CDC" 2L ST U U s S 2 St 2361 5L e 2361t e Gl 1
Wy J’”L(CNIC)Lbeﬁd;’.ﬁy’!}’{{)”lglg};z:ﬁuﬁrugugwuL«uug’fif AL st
Ly IG i esi2gL)S

L/L%&)}o}ﬁfﬁb‘&/lﬂdﬁ)& /)’)J‘}JJ/)"{//@JTDXE’[/Z: (JG O/'{ u:cur’d/gzbfé’{./{f/g Gii
G E LA G AL 5 AL b S T ez

4|7_E ANNUAL REPORT 2025 ANNUAL REPORT 2025 48_2




ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

e Utz -5

L M § by b o\ P S pe e S P e 0l 2 5 By ks f | PP U
—e Qe F Ut kSt il a s

ey telzUassslUsng b B s 2026501905 J,@(ciu%u&sgﬂmr&
L{J)bdu’JbU:;;/Muﬁ‘_/Tdﬁ/gdf;f‘L(}bd/n_"/’iﬂc,uwu;fﬂ’ié :/72.{_115 Jz’éuﬂ
:uj’/lgn/bbéjkﬁagm@samba.com.pk ﬁdtj£48ﬁl&;_~ﬁ,£(uquewuu

i Asligps | AbAesdssis | A SIS

L peteliv_be Sz 5L 0 KOIE o 22t L e s S Sho £ 3 ad S
e TS Pl Lty e S L5 L A }’{J/u}@w?_lu@'w’ﬂj;mu;
S EHE QTG S SIS S 30 sl pUtbl- L GEL ot Sk S e
J}w‘&?;/siﬂkezﬂé.uﬁu@g%;.}/f u:'t).a]()?u_fz_lgd;wfzg.:,{?uﬁ(uguyf

LU WL S e SUs k1 e L 2

de!/? zia.shamsi@samba.com.pk ;/P/gﬁ‘%'ﬁwacfc;!i(AGM),’l& Sl U
_@éé"{’ﬁi—uzﬁ%luju/?+92(307)3278728 |

ZJM/V‘/ K/)gd//ﬁd/ﬂ{

s JS| L“;//}‘J%/%G/L /»u”:;fc‘;J" lnga'!,:,i“a%ff ¥, g;wwlgf/“utuugumufwﬂ
e Ut S S ool bl ey KA s e S e e §
it gt S 485 e I ST ;ZJL.,@U‘“LLLW;J(/%@
s S S5 hist ST AT AL 65 g ot St g Kot S T
CrohGhs KRR b S EL2 S L st DKo

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

LCNIC) sK G757 MG S Qb Sertbne iy ML = F Ut 12 5t s i

eIt esdulehnl Bt eS| el e VA sICDC A AS38TH S A de teme
Bl S B LONIC P =l St 1 S5 - e

Sl L SISV SIS K e sToul -7

&A215.:<S.R.0. 389 (1) / 2023 z:uu@Jﬂ@iﬁ@ﬂg@nzzw)ﬁizm7.&1!;:'{
Go7 bl ot ey 1§ A A e 1 Qs 3Tee iy § e 3TUE 2025 2y s UL ZL 2023
U.uggﬂl/'“%d'fw'%&uﬁgg;&édﬁ’&t[ﬂﬂ&gﬁgg JESs KrlolelsUbusl sy
df(’%iliu’dﬁu‘/%g sl £ 3 uE S S L OIS e S tbne T
2 Ul e 3 Ll i o STt e SIS G Lo 1 220 L o S
AP35 SN 2 L mse gt 2 bt S v Sy sl

:‘gcﬁlgQﬁ’)df’j@u@dj@/}é:&l/%)d/u@pBM’}/)))’/%!

https://www.samba.com.pk/samba/overviews/notices

T2 g I sd 5Tne e Fo M A s S 2 12 IS
B Fisna 5L

https://www.samba.com.pk/samba/overviews/financial-reports

(FEDUSECKFESH7ueNE TS -8
sl Az e S U D P\ St s STpisUs e ES L U uiL PP
8 2 G S Qe A ST o St 20265419 75y Jlp 1./
A5 S G A P AT e s P 1 S 5066 $re b S CFBRY 1T

A

ANNUAL REPORT 2025 50_2

4|9_E ANNUAL REPORT 2025




ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

e Qoberttne yigpari i AL G\ L P (BT U DL AT (i
SepisiL A7 e SEU o SN G 2l oD S s dTpis b e
_J”/:/j//;//,‘/)g}’,ﬁl’/lg’{/)bLLb’:J}éd

L P15 I 243(3) 0 20170k 15 et § 2 FUs S5 G
-gnz}:{/?guué:b’d/fég’jé:

(FSDEIS IBANZ L E i b 1201854955 -9
Il e S P K s S L LG L 282752017 LK1
e Dk 3B 5 1A 3 5

éngu}n‘w_ufaﬁ./sLJJw%g,@wJuf(?l/'c,wﬁd/&m,@zv_u;uﬁu@gw‘?au‘u Gii
Pkl ISt A5 8Tept Sem £ Blapb L B S IBAN I vt 24 Falansty S
K2 2203 et S H Sl s ps S I il s 83 2 6
nd”/[up‘/ﬁblJﬁézﬁg@é’aéu’ﬁu‘i_ufl,/;',«;ﬁ/'vLf/i/?“%o/}jiéff}}(aﬁf’{,)fyﬁﬁ/f;
deb

e L Sl P L 243(3) FEL 2017 L1 A S AT S G
UL E Skt A e S s e

_‘L??)/?Jx’V%;Jw@:pﬁqk{ﬁfﬁdiii:/J}?'U/U@LJ/? (iv

e GIE s S5 F 10
L(CDOVF S ik Ao bl msP oz P 2 A L Foitin sl
e K EL T2 201717 e Sl Pt el

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

H 2t g CCDRE il s 11
LU e (CCDR) 22 k4 43 ufsy’u;::wg{Jjg%,ifmwugu(CDc)&f;;;w;e
s 1(CCDR) 22 k3 P30 st st b Skt hd P Lasoit ol L2 3L i
1A m/ﬂﬁu:u%‘a A3 B eI 1k e sl U 59750 0 6 s
e SEAGATS G S (G

St s SILCDC L S P ehrssbim e erbne s 8 G
o /b/’/c/i -~/ https://www.cdcaccess.com.pk

(J£244f£2017.f ;/ )J"G ///-“/ ST T Y

S losbbra Gt $8F bt fil e N R eer dor oit L /:‘/J,v,gmﬁ&ﬁ/{z:.,@

-« —yhttps://www.samba.com.pk/samba/overviews/notices

G’Jg L/W}ﬁé ..«@,’/Gf:i-‘a)ﬁ//?dfbf%{,j J..«@:}?(@éb/@/} (_’5}5[2:'2.{./51 (/G(ﬂﬂn}?
_£yzd'?dr‘)d?/f'§/)féﬁft"’algy}/

ng/?‘%;.?d/%gwnﬁé -13
312018 $ss2 9 5,3 2018 b 2/%/4_1 . ("SECP®) uu@ 7 u*{ 5(! el 2k
Wil S5 e L I oo S Seealp e (V752 158 R 0.452(1)12025
1L 185 PEL 1L S A3 Fl g Gl 1758 = p L e S
e Pyl 2 s LouTo Fp b ez s b Sl

5T 14

u”'//? https://www.samba.com.pk/samba/overviews/notices :=* V%:J,@/;!‘LJJ(/GU/T/?

—‘L??)

SILE ANNUAL REPORT 2025

ANNUAL REPORT 2025 52_2




FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

l l
SHAREHOLDER'S AUDITOR'S CASH FLOW
EQUITY REPORT STATEMENT

STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION

INCOME
STATEMENT




INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the members of Samba Bank Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of Samba Bank Limited (the Bank), which comprise
the statement of financial position as at December 31, 2025, and the statement of profit and loss
account, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the cash flow
statement for the year then ended, along with unaudited certified returns received from the branches
except for 10 branches which have been audited by us and notes to the financial statements, including
material accounting policy information and other explanatory information and we state that we have
obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were
necessary for the purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
statement of financial position, statement of profit and loss account, the statement of comprehensive
income, statement of changes in equity and cash flow statement together with the notes forming part
thereof conform with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan, and, give the
information required by the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 and the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of
2017), in the manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the Bank’s
affairs as at December 31, 2025 and of the profit and other comprehensive income, the changes in
equity and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in
Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Bank in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan
(the Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of
our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters.



Following is the Key Audit Matter:

S.No.

Key Audit Matter

Credit loss allowance against advances and
off-balance sheet obligations:
(Refer notes 5.1.8, 5.1.9, 5.1.11, 10, 21 and 33
to the financial statements)

The Bank records credit loss allowance against
advances and off-balance sheet obligations in
accordance with the requirements of IFRS 9 as
applicable in Pakistan and as per the
instructions of the State Bank of Pakistan (SBP).

Under IFRS 9, the Bank assesses on a forward-
looking basis the Expected Credit Losses ('ECL")
associated with advances together with off-
balance sheet obligations including letters of
credit, financial guarantees and irrevocable
unutilised financing commitments. A lifetime ECL
is recorded on advances and off-balance sheet
obligations where there has been a Significant
Increase in Credit Risk (SICR) from the date of
initial recognition and on advances and off-
balance sheet obligations which are credit
impaired as of the reporting date. A 12 months
ECL is recorded for advances and off-balance
sheet obligations which do not meet the criteria for
SICR or "credit impaired" as at the reporting date.
To assess whether there has been significant
increase in the credit risk, the Bank compares the
risk of a default occurring on the advances and off-
balance sheet obligations as at the reporting date
with the risk of default as at the date of initial
recognition. Both lifetime and 12 months ECL are
calculated at facility level. The credit loss
allowance is increased by provisions charged to
the statement of profit and loss account and
decreased by charge-offs, net of recoveries.

The Bank records a charge for Stage 3 based
on the higher of provision under Prudential
Regulations or ECL under IFRS 9, as per the
instructions of the SBP. This assessment is
conducted at the facility level for wholesale
(corporate, commercial and SME) loan portfolio
including off-balance sheet obligations, and at a
segment level for retail portfolios. If one facility
of a counterparty becomes 90+ days past due
(DPD) or is otherwise defined as impaired under
Prudential Regulations, all other facilities of that
counterparty are classified as Stage 3.

How the matter was addressed in our
audit

Our audit procedures to verify credit loss
allowance against advances and off-
balance sheet obligations included,
amongst others, the following:

We obtained an understanding of
management’s assessment of credit loss
allowance in respect of advances and off-
balance sheet obligations including the
Bank’s internal rating model, accounting
policy, and model methodology.

We obtained an understanding of the design
and tested the operating effectiveness of
key controls over correct classification of
counterparties based on loss events and
monitoring of parties with higher risk of
default;

We selected a sample of counterparties and

performed the following substantive
procedures:
» assessed the reasonableness and

accuracy of the data used for credit loss
allowance computation based on
accounting records and the information
system of the Bank as well as the related
external sources used for this purpose;

» checked repayments of advances / mark-
up instalments and tested classification of
the counterparty exposure based on the
number of days overdue;

» tested the staging of advances and off-
balance sheet obligations as per the
criteria of SICR and in accordance with
the applications instructions as issued by
the SBP for IFRS 9;



S.No.

Key Audit Matter

The measurement of ECL involves evaluating a
range of possible outcomes, considering the
time value of money, and incorporating
reasonable and supportable information
available at the reporting date about past
events, current conditions, and forecasts of
future economic conditions.

The net credit loss allowance for the year is
charged to the statement of profit and loss
account. The accumulated credit loss allowance
against financing is netted-off against advances
and the credit loss allowance against off-
balance sheet obligations is reflected under
other liabilities.

The Bank has recognised a net credit loss
allowance against advances and net credit loss
allowance against off-balance sheet obligations
amounting to Rs. 644 million and Rs. 0.98
million respectively in the statement of profit and
loss account in the current year. As at December
31, 2025, the Bank holds a credit loss allowance
of Rs. 10,693 million and Rs. 139 million against
advances and off-balance sheet obligations,
respectively.

The determination of credit loss allowance against
advances and off-balance sheet obligations based
on the above criteria remains a significant area of
judgment and estimation. Because of the
significance of the impact of these judgments /
estimations and the materiality of advances and
off-balance sheet obligations relative to the overall
financial statements of the Bank, we considered
this area as a key audit matter.

How the matter was addressed in our
audit

» evaluated the management’s assessment
for classification of counterparty exposure
as performing or non-performing under
prudential regulations and application
instructions as issued by the SBP for
IFRS 9, based on review of repayment
pattern, inspection of credit
documentation and discussions with the
management; and

» assessed the ECL model used by the
management to calculate expected credit
loss against advances and off-balance
sheet obligations of the Bank for
appropriateness of the assumptions used
and the methodology applied. We also
tested the mathematical accuracy of the
model used in the calculation of credit
loss allowance.

Assessed the reasonableness of the
forward-looking assumptions used by the
management in calculation of ECL; and

Assessed the relevant disclosures made in
the financial statements to determine
whether they comply with the accounting
and reporting standards as applicable in
Pakistan.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibilities of Management and the Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan, the requirements of
Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 and the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and for such internal
control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Bank’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Bank or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the Bank’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

= Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Bank’s internal control.

= Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

= Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Bank’s ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Bank to cease to continue as a going concern.

= Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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We communicate with the Board of Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide to the Board of Directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Board of Directors, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Bank as required by the Companies Act,
2017 (XIX of 2017) and the returns referred above from the branches have been found adequate
for the purpose of our audit;

b) the statement of financial position, the statement of profit and loss account, the statement of
comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and cash flow statement together with
the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the Banking Companies Ordinance,
1962 and the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in agreement with the books of
account and returns;

c) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were in
accordance with the objects and powers of the Bank and the transactions of the Bank which
have come to our notice have been within the powers of the Bank; and

d) Zakat deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980), was
deducted by the Bank and deposited in the Central Zakat Fund established under section 7 of
that Ordinance.

2. We confirm that for the purpose of our audit we have covered more than sixty percent of the total
loans and advances of the Bank.

Other Matter

The financial statements of the Bank for the year ended December 31, 2024, were audited by another
auditor who expressed an unmodified opinion on those statements on March 17, 2025.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Tahir Shah.

A. F. Ferguson & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Islamabad

Date: March 5, 2026

UDIN: AR202510979b3Ez80SNW
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 11, 2015
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CasSH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YE&AR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2038
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SAMBA BANK LIMITED
MOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENMDED DECEMBER 31, 2025

11

1.2

2.1

31

3.4

33

STATUS AND HATURE OF BUSINESS

Samba Bank Limited {ihe Bank) i & banking comaany noorpersied in Pekstan and = engaged in commercial banking
and relaled services. The Bank is listed on the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited. s principal office = lscated at Sth
floor Sedeo Avenue Centra, Maulana Ceen Muhammad Walai Road, Karachi, whereas, the registered office of the Bank
is located &l 18t Floor, 1% - Saleam Pisza, Bue Ama, Jinnah fAvenus, Islamabad, The Bark i5 engaged in banking
sanaces as describad i the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1952 The Bank & operating hiowgh 77 branches
{December 31, 2024: 57 branchas) inside Fakistan

The Bank I3 a subsidiary of Sawdi Mational Bank of Kengdom of Saudl Arabla, the Parent entidy, which hotos  B4.51%
shares of the Bark 3% at Decamber 31, 2025 (December 31, 20247 34.51%}).

Fakistan Cradit Rating Agency (FALGRA] has assigned iha Bank's medium o long-ledm ading as A4 and the sharl-
farm rating as ‘4 +'

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

These financial siaiements have been prepared in accordance with the format for pressntation of e annual fnancaal
statements of banks lmsued by tha Siate Bank of Pakistan (SBP), vide 45 BPRD Circular Me. 13 dated July 01, 2024,

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

Thess financial staiements heve been prepared in aoccordance with the accounting and repoding standards as
spplicable in Pakistan. The accounting and repoding stendards comprize of:

IFRE Accounting Standards sseed by tha Internalional Accounting Standards Board (IASE) a5 are nolifed wder
I Commpanes Acd 2017,

- lalamic Flrancsl Accounding Standards [IFAS) issued by fhe Insfitute of Charered Accountanis ol Paksian
(ICAP) 25 are nolified under the Companies Act, 2017,

Provisions of direclives and nolificaticns msued under the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 and the
Companies Act, 2017 and

- Directives issuad by the State Bank of Pakistan {S8P) and Ihe Securifies and Exchange Commission of Pakstan
(SECP)

Whenevar the reguirements of the Banking Companies Qrdinance, 1962, the Companies Acl, 2017, or the directivas
and nodifications ssued by the SBP and the SECP differ wilh the requirements of IFRS accounting standands or IFAS
the reguerements of the Banking Companies Ordnenca, 1982, the Companies Act, 2007 and he sad direclives and
ralificalions, shall prevail,

Tha SBF has deferred ihe applicability of Internatomal Accounting Standard (IAS] 40, Thvestmenl Progery’ for bankieg
covmpanies iouegh B30 Circular Letter Moo 10 daled August 24, 2002 Il furthar mstructions, Further, the SECP has
deferred the appiicability of Intermalional Financial Reporting Standard (IFRE} 7, Financial Instruments Disclosures’ on
banks through its notification 5.R.0 417(1)/2008 dated Apnl 28, 2008. Accordingly, the requiremeants of these standards
have ot been considenad in the preparation of these financial statemends,

Tha SBF has issued BPRD Circular Letter Mo, deted 22 Januany 3025 nowhich carlain refaxetions [ clanfications have
been pravided upon adopban of IFRS which ara disclosed in pote 5.1 fo thess financial stalamanls



1.5

1.6

Tha managament of the Bark believas that nara & ma sgnficant doubt an the Bark's ability @0 cantinue as a
going condam. Thenafore, thess financial statements have teen prepanad oN 3 QNG CONCREM Dasis.

Standards, interpretations of and amendmenis to publahed accounting and reporting standards that are
effactive in the current year

Theare ahe cengn amaendmenis @ re standards [sesed by 1he Iniemations Acoounbng Siandards Board (1A58].
that are. mandatory for tha Bank's accounting perods beginning on or after 1 January 2025 bul are sonsidored not
iz ba ralevant orda nol have any matcal effec on the Bark's oparations and hawe therefore nol bean disclsed
in thess finantial statemsanis

Standards, interprelations of and amendments ta published accounting and reporling standards that are
not yet efective:

There are cefain new ard amerded standards, issued by e Interrational Accouning Standands Baard | IASH],
mimprataions and amendments that sre mandatary for the 8ank's acounting panicds beginning on oo after 4
January 2026 but are considered nol fo be relevant of will nat have say malessl effact on the Bank's financial
siadameands axceps for

- the new standard - IFRS 18 'Presentation and Disclosare in Financiel Siaements’ (pubdshed o Apnl 2004}
wilh appBcabiity dal= of January 01, 2027 by 1ASE. IFRS 18 has yet 1o be adopted in Paiislan, IFRS 18
when adopied and applicable wil impacl e présantaton ol 'Statement of Proll and Loss Account wah
cortas addiional disclosures in the fnancad sEtements

- amEndmants 1o FRS 9 ‘Francsl insruments and IFRS 7 'Foancial Instiumanis’ Disclosures’ daify ihe
bming of mcognition and derecogniion of certain fnenoial nstrumants ncludieg settiermand of lisbilites
trzagh hankng ingrumanis and chamals inchading akctrone varsfers. Further, guidance oo the SP0|
engegament, and diclesure reguiramants for instruments with cash flows modfving fasturas and aouity
instrurrEnis designaied al FYOC have slse besn amanded These amendments are effectve from January
01, 2026 The amesdmearts, when applied, may impacl the accounting and presentaton of the financial
inglrurnars

Critical accounting estmates i.ndjudgnhnu

The praporation of financel statements in corformdty with acceunting ard moporting slendsrds o spplicasie in
Paliztan requirat managament to makas jedgrmants, estmales and assumptions that affect the applicafon of
policies and repered smount of assets and l@biiles and mcome and expanses. The estimates and associaled
assumptions ara based on historical eapenence and various ofer factars hal are baliesad 1o b= faasansbie
under tha circurnsiances, tha resulls of which form basis of makmg the judgments abaul carrying vabtues of sssels
and habistes which are not readily apparent from ather sowcas. Actual rasulls may difer fram these ostmates
The eshriales and underyng assumplians &e rsvidwsd an & angong Dasis. Fevisidh 10 acoounbng eslimaies
ara recognised i Me pariod in which the astimate & revisad il the revision affects anly thal penad, arin the penod
ol e revinon ard fulure paricds § e revigion aflacls both curmant and fulua pancds

Matenal acconling eslimates and amgas whara [edemants wira meda by the managemant in tha sppication of
accowmling palcies are as follows

] clessilicaten and credit loss abowancs a3ams! nancisd insfrumants (noles 518,10 and X1
iy curfent and defered laalan (nokes 5090, 14, 24.3.1 &nd 34);

i} ceprecaion, amortEation meihads and uselul lives of groperty @nd egquipment and nlangibles (neles 5.6,
58,11 and 13

i) righl of use assats s relsted lease ligbililes (ree 57, 12 and 18); and

Wl Fair value measuraman] of inancal ingtiumeants (note 40}



4.1

4.2
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6.1.1

BASISE OF MEASLUREMENT

Aceounting canweniion

Thase Foancal stataments have been orepamed wndar the hestoncal cost converbon except mvesiments
classilied ar Tair valueg I|H'I'.‘l|.lg|'| [H'Elﬂl amnd loss end fair vaue |.|"|I'I:ILIﬂ"I alher I}II'I'II‘.'II'-EI"IE-I'IE-i'dE WSCHME le"Egl'l
gxohange contrecls and dervathee fnancial inslrarments arg measwed al far value, nght of wse of assel and
relztad ieasa liakilty are maasured at peesant walus an initial recogntion end stall and TERF loans are maasumd
af faar value on mitisl recognition

Furctional and presentation currency

ltems mciuded in the financia! statements are measurad using fhe currency of the prmary ecanamic environment
i owihich e Bank cpergtss These firancdl atslamens gre presented in Pakistani HI.I[.'IB! which is e Bank's
functianal ard presentsion currency.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

The materal gocounting policies adopled in the preparalicn of these lirancial staberments & consisben] wakh
thasze fallowed in the preparabion of the fmancal slalemenls for the year ended December 31, 2024

IFRS 8 Financial Inetrumenis

The Banx had adopted IFES 8 effective fom January 01, 2028 wilh moddied mircespeclive approach fpr
msEiemEsl permitied under IFRS @

Tna SEP_ uia ater SBPHOK-BPRO-RPD-5BL-B21560 daled January 22, 2025 nas alknwved &0 extension 1ar the
application of the Effieclive intarest Rats (EIR) up to December 31, 2025 Themlore, mansgemant will incsrporate:
tha impact of EIR ino tha Bank's financal statemants for the repoding perods of 2028, Curmandly, the Bank is in
procass of finshsng the irpacts of spplcation of EIR on the financisl sisemanis

Clazsification and measurement
Fimancial assets
Dokt based financial assets

Debt based francial Bssets Beld by the Benk nclude, sovances, lending b financial nstlubons, invastment in
federal govemment securbtes, cask and balances wilh teasury banks, balances wilh ather banks, and ather
fnancesl assets. Thesa financal asseds are miblally recognesed as follows:

&) Thess are measured ai amortised cost # they mest both of the folowing condiiors and are nol designaled
&8 FWPL

= fhe assers ane held wihin a8 bsiness model whoas gbjeclive s 10 hold aasals 1o colact conbrachual
zasn flows: and

= tha confraciual terms of the tnancal assels geee rise an specfied dates o cash flows that zre solely
paymanis of prircipal and marest ( prafil on ke grincipel amount oulstandineg

by Debt based financial asssts s measured a1 FYOCanly if thase mesat both of the fallawing corditons and
arg nod designated as FUPL

- WiE assel s beld wilhin 8 business model whose objeclive is achiaved by Dot collecing contacheal
cagnfiows and selling fnancial assets; and

- Ta comreciual terms of the fingnciel azsat give rise on spacified daies b cash fows that ara SPP
c]  Debt besed financial assats it these ara hald for trading purposas are clessiies as measured at FyPL
¥ sddition, an initied recognition, the Bank may rrevocably designate a fnancial asset thal olheryise meels e
recpuraments o be messurad al amsrtizad cosl or @l FWOE as at FYPL # doing so sliminales or significanty

reduces an accountng mismatch that wauld sihefeise arigs

Sdvances aré carned 3l eost net of expecled credit loss glowances, excapl Tor TERF and stafl lears, which ang
mifially recagrised & fair valus and subsequanily measwnad 81 emortized cost
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Equity based fnancial assels

An gquity instrumant held by the Bank for rading purpeses s classifisd as measured 8l PYPL On inkal
mcogniion aof en eguety ineastmang fhal is not held for frading, fhe Bank may irevocsbly skect bo presenl
subsequent changeas in fair walue in 3G This elecbon i made on Bn myestimani-oy-investman bass

Financial Liakilies

Fingncial liphiities are siher classifed s lair vale throwgh prafi ar kese (FWPL), whan they are heid for rading
plpsses, or &l amarised cast. Fmancal iakidfies dasaifed =8 FYPL are magsurad at Tair value sng &l fhe fae
valus changes are recognsed mostatement of profit and loes aceouat. Finandal labilibes assiisd at amortised
cost are irifially recorded af their far value and subseguently measured wing the effactive interest rate method.
intargs! sxpenza and foraign axchangs gains and lpsses ane recagnised in skxiermenl of predil @nd bbsg aoccound.
Ary gain or loss an derecogniion is also recognisad in shatemant of profit and ioss acooung

Financial assets and fnancial Habilites primarily includes Tellowing.

Financial statermant linag iboam Cwsoripiian
{ash and balancas with treasury banks rigbe 5.2
Balsnces with other banks nole 5.2
Lendings %2 finanzial inslitulions naba 53
Inwastmanis nale 5.4
Apvances nake. 5.5
Bill: payabla nabs 16
Barowings note 5,13
Deposds and olhar accounts naba 5,12
Subordinated cebt nabe 5 20

Bursiness model assessmant

The Bank dewmrmines ils busmess model 8 the &yvel hat besi rellects how i manages groups of financal assets
I achiava its hissmess abjactis

Tha Bank's busress modal s el sesessed on an insinament-by-nstnement basis. but &l a highar leval of
aggregated parlalics nd & based on obsenvalle factors such &5

- The objectives lor the gonfoba, in perbcular, whathar the managemenys strategy focudes an Eaming
confractual revenes, mainsaining & paticular yisd Eofile, makhing the duralien of the fnancal assets o
the duratien of tha ipoiites ihat are funding those esseis or realising cash flows throwgh the sale of the
assois

5 Heow the pedormanos of the busmess model and He hinancial asgats held withan 1hat Dusiness micdsl ang
evaluated and reporiad 1o e Bank's keéy mansgement parsonnal;

- The rsks that sffect the perdomance of the bysiness moded {and ife fnancisl Bsseis held wilhin ihat
business mooel) and, 0 perticuler, the way (hosa risks are managed. and

The espacted frequency, valee and fiming of sake ere alse imparant aspects of the Bank's: assessment.
Howawvar, information abod sales adiviy i nol considersd in oabon, but gs par of am ewersll
aasasemeand of how the Bank's siatad objective for managing the linancial assels & achieved and how cash
flaws gre raglasd

The business model assesamean is based an reasonstly sxpecisd scanarnios without faking ‘waorst cese’ of ‘stregs
resR soenaros nio accounl

Evantually, the fnancal assels (&l undesr eilher af 1 fclltesing thres Dusingss modeis

Hald 1o Cofact [HTG) buginess madel Holding esseis in omder to ocolect conlrachual cash fknwe

: Hedd 1o Collect ard Sedl (HTCAS) business model: Collecling contracheal cash Aows and saling financial
ansals

- Qe buslinass models - Resuting In classécation of financinl sesals &8 FWVPL
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Aaspssment of whathsr confraciual cash lows am sobsly payments of principal and interest (SFPI)

Az & sacond step of s dasaifcaben process, the Bank assesses the contraciual berma of finencial assats fo
idertily wheiher ihese ssasls meed the 3PP iesl ‘Principal far the purpase af (b 2st s defined as e fair vale
of ihe Imancial asset # inf@l recogniion and may changs aver th lile of the finangial asset |for edample, d there
ang repayments of princigsl or emartisation of (he premiim  decount). The most signifant elemants of inseres |
prafit within a firancng armangement are typically the consideration for the tme salue of money and ciedit Ak To
maka the SPPY assessmaent, fio Bank apphes judgment and considess ralevant faciors such &z, bui nal Emiled 1o,
the curfency in which the financal assal is denaminaled. and {ha pericd for which the intenest | profil rate & sab.
Where the confracual tarms indroduco axposum 9 nsk or voladifbty that are inconsistend with basic lending
arrangarnant. tha relatad fnancial assat s classilisd and measured at FYPL

Initial recognition and subsagqueni maasunement

Firancial assels and fmancal liabilties are mocognisad when the enbty becomes pasty to the contracival
provisions of the instrumant. Bequiar way purchases and sales of fingncial assats are racognsad on trade dase.
2 daks & which fie Bank purchasas of sells he siael, Diher Pnancial asgels aad labilibee ke sdvances.
|El‘llﬁl'lg 10 linanca instindions, dcpu:ill‘. [ ol 1] rh:-l.'.gl'l'ﬂ!ﬂ when furds are ranslemsd 12 ke cuslsmens acoount
or financial msbiubons. Howaver, for cases, whare funds are transfomed o deferred payment bases, rezogniian
is done when underlying asset i$ purchased

a] Amoriised Cost

Firanczial aesats and finencial labliies undee arorlised cost catagory are imdtially recogrised at fair valig
edjuated Tor directhy afinbulable ransaction cosl These are subsaqueantly measured Bt emarlised cost An
expecied crodit kass allewancs (EGL) & recognised Tor financsl assels in the statement of profit and kss account
Interast come / profi ! expenss on fhese aesets | Babites am recognised n iha staement of profil and loss
accourd. On derscogrition aof thess fnancial sssels and Badsklilies, capilal gain ! lese & recogresed it he
statement af profit and loss account

b Fair value through other comprehensive income {FVOCT

Financial assels urder FWIIG) categony e indialy recognised Al fair value adjusted for dwecty aliribulable
renaaction cesl Thase sseels are subssguanty messurad &t Fair walug with changes recordad in QCL An
expecied credt oss alowance (ECL] is recognised for debl Dases fnancal agsas n 1he sialemsis of ool end
lo=s nocount. Inkeresi J profd | dredend income an these peseds are moognisad inthe satement of prafitand oes
gecourd. On desscognition of dett bassd financial apsats. capdal gaan / loss is recognised in the sfatament of
profil and loss accouni For egquily based financial asssis classified s FYOCL capital gain § loss is translermad
from surplus | deficit to uneppropriated prodd

£] Fair value through profit and loss (FWPL)

Financial assats wndar FWPL category are initady ecognised at far vatue. Transaction cost is dinesctly recorded in
the slmtaerant of peafit and lods eccount These essels ar subsacueontly measured al far valuo with changas
racarded in he stalemient of prafl and lbas sccounl Intemest § diedend incoms on Ihese as8a5e ang rﬁlf-l:gn.fiﬂlj in
e Hlalermen of pruﬂ'l and logs acosun! On -ﬂﬂfémlllﬂﬂ of hess linancial gessets, capilal dam ! hxsg s
racagnisad in tha statemand of profit and loss account, An espected credil lass allcmance (ECL) is nol resagnasd
for thasa financiel assats.

Calculation of markup income and expense

Incoma from padorming sdvances m moogreed on accrusl Basis as pe the lenrs of the conirag Hpwever
whare dabl secunties, classified s Fvesimenis n the financal stal@ments, are purshased al Gremmesm or
gigzaunt, such pramism ¢ @soount including the rensaclion cost & amorieed thraugh the staterment of profit and
lngs perount pwer Bhe rermaining matarily al the debt secunty weing the effectws mterest rete mathod. Tha amterast
incamie on stadf lears and TERF s ran:gn.i-:ud in ling-with the EIR, whils ary sagectad cedil besses ane asseasad
ane accounted for @ eocordence wih the reguirements of IFRS-% Income from advances exsepl for stafl leans
gnd TERF are recognized in stetament of proft and 1088 Bccount wsing confractual rate. Similarly, under tha local
reguimlory requimmenl, income recowerasble on o dasadfien advances and invesimenis [(debd secunibes), 5
racagnized on @ ecaipl bas

Incoma on reschedulad ¢ restructured advances and invesimants & recognized 48 panmiied by SEP rqulabons

farkup axpenss on financial liabdites. {comprsing deposits, subordinaied debls. and borowings] B recegnizad
on &N Bocrual basis m the pencd I which # s ncurred, based on contracied rale,
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Derscognilion
Financial Agastis
The Bank derecogrisas a finanzial assal wnen:
@ e conbacuel g b e cash Rees Tom e financial assal axpie; o
=]} il ransfara the rghis 1o recenes the coniracieal cagh News in o iranaactien n which allher
- substanially @l of the nsks and rewands of canership of the inancial asset se ansfened: ar

the Bank nefber rarsles ror ielsns substanially 88 of the ideka and rewards of swneeshiz and & does
riad refain comtral of the Enancal asset

Cn derecogniien of & Ninarciad assel in = aniinely, 1he diferance Debvean e camying amouni of iha assel |or
the carmping amount afocaled b the porton af e assed deresognized), and ke Sonaickraton reeevad [Iclding
any new ateel obtainad less ary new liability assumad) and any cumulabee gan or lose Bal had been recagnized
in G s recognized in the statament of profit and loss accound, extap! thal in case of he decesoqniian of aguily
securites held at FVOCH curmdative gains o losses are ransiemed o unapproprhabéd profil

Where Ihe Benk emems inlo ransaclions i which & fransfers assets moognised in ds stalement of financial
positon, but reteins aither all of substantaly all of tha neks and rewards gt tha transfemad assats. the ranstemed
azseis are nat derecognised

Financial labilities

The Bank derecognises a3 tnancal labilily when ik cantractual oblgatans & dischanged, cancalled o eqpinad.
Tha Bank glsa derecogmses 8 finangal habdity whan s jerms are modied and the cash Mows of (e modiled
liabilty sra substantially different, in which case a new financal §abily based an the medilied leome -2 recognised
al far valus

On gerecognition of a financal labily, the cilference bDetween the camying emount exlinguished and ihe
cansderation paid decliding any mon-cash assets transiered or liabiliies asswmed) is recognised in lhe
stabament of profit and loss accownt

Modification

The Bark somatimes rensgotistes of ctherwisa modfas the canfraciual cash flows al inancing & ils coslomers,
The Bank assessas whelhar (he modifed erma result in the financiad asset beng significantly madified and
therefore derecognised. When the eoniraciual cash flows of 8 financial asset ere ranagofabed or otherwse
mediied and the renegotistion or mogsdication does ndt resull = the derectgnilion of 1het financal essel in
accondancs with IFRE, the Senk recalkculates the gross camying amount of ihe financial amsef and shnoll recogrise
a medifealion gan or koes in glalemanl of proft and foss sccourt. Tha gross carrying amaound of e financial
asgat = recalzulaied ss the prasert walue ol the menepotiated of modifed contractoal ceah fows thet are
disesunied al the lirancie! assel's ignal effaclive interast rate {or craditbadjusted efpclive inlesest rate for
purchased ar anginaled credit-impained fnancial assa%) Any costs or fees incurmad adius the carmyg ameant of
the modified financial asset and are amadised averihe remaiming term of the medihed tmancial assal

Expected Credit Loss [ECL)

The mmpairment requirentents apply b financal Basets messured 31 amortized cosl and FYQCH {alher shan egquity
wrErurmanla), advances al cost and off batanoe shest obligabans including itars of Gredl, inasdal guaranisas
and ravocaple unutlissd financng cammilmants At infal meognition, an impairment afowance (or provisian in
the case of commitments dnd quadanisas] (8 reguired for axpacted creds oeses (ECLY resuling from default
avents het ane poseibia within tha nest 12 manths [12-manth ECL') |0 the svenl of & significant incresss o credit
nak &8 provision & required for ECL resweling from all pessitle default evenls ever 1he expectsd life of the fmancial
irgtrurnesnl (lifetime ECL'}



Maasaramant of ECL
ECL are a probablity-weghied estimese of credil losses, Thay ae messuwsd a6 fobows

= firancie! assels (hat are not credit-impainsd at the J'E-P'I'.'II'"HQ date as the pI'EB-EI'ﬂ walua of &t cash shorifalls
jLe. the difference between the cash flows due o the enidy in accordance with ihe conlrac] and the cash
Towes thad the Eank sxpachs 10 receiva),

# firancial aasets ihot are credit-impained at b reporting dabe: s the differanoe between the gross camying
amount and tha present valua of sstimatad future cash floes:

- urndrawn ioen commiimenis: a3 the present value al the dieence eieaen e conraclus cash llows Mal
are due o e Bank i the commiiment & draswn down and the cash fiaws (hat the Bank especis io receve!
and

- firanciad guarantes contracts e expeciad payments o resmburss the holdar kess ary emounts that tha
Bank expacis 10 recomar,

Mon-Parfomming financial assets

A sach regorling dawe, ihe Bank sscesces whether fnancisl asgsis camed al amirsed cost, &1 cost and dabt
francial Asssbs carried at FWOCL ond finance lease recehabiles are credib-impeired (rafared o a8 "Slage 3
fmancial assets’) A fnancaal asset & ‘nen-pedforming’ when ane ar mare avenls thal have a defnmental mpact
on tne eEfimaied tutiee cash fows of tha mancad assat have poouneg

Ewidenca thal & finandaal assel s credit-impaired includes ihe foliowng obearvabe dats.

significant fimancial difficulty of the borrower or issues

- A breach of sonlragl such a8 & defaull o pash dus evant

- the restrectunng of & lcan by the Bask on terms that the Bank would nof consisar olhanatse
it is becoming probablie that the Barmawer will entar bankrualey oo others linantial reorganisatan of
tha disappearanca of an aciee mackel o0 a secunty bacause af financial SiMicefes.

A Inan thal has bean renegolisted due o a didgrigralion in the borrowers condilion i usually considened |0 be
credi-imgained uniess e B evidenta hat e rsk of not receving contrachzal casn llows has reduced
significanily and thene are no othar indicators of mpaiment. i addiion. & rabail lean that is overdes oo B0 days o
morg B conpldared credi-mpared avan when the regulatory dafinition of defauit s dffarant.

Under the SBPs IFRE. 9 Appication instructicns. the Bark & mol regueed 1o corrpule ECL an Goversmant
Sacimties and on Governmmant guaraniead credit axpasure 0 incal currency. The Bank s raquired o calculate
ECL on s non-parlerring financal assals as highar of provision undar Pradential Ragulations (PR) and ECL
unger IFRS 9 Fumher, e Benks are sdwised 1o rcognize mcome on mpaired assals (oans classded under
Frs ie., OAEM end Blage 2 loansh on & racaip! basie n accondance with tha requiraments of PRs issaed by
SEP

The Bank caiculaies the ECL against wholesals {corporate. commercial & G88E) lean parifolic as higher of FR
asd ECL urdar IFRS B &l berrowsanTacilily leval. wharaas sgans! tha ratail bormowars the Bank calculales the ECL
o higher af PR and ECL under IFRS B ai segrent | pioduct Dasis s nsircied under Anrssurs & of BPRO
Crcular no 16 of 2024 datad 29 July 2024

Based on the rapuiremends of IFRS 9 Applicaton Irstruclians, the Bank has pedommed an ECL assesamand
coaisidenng 1 felowng key elements

- FO- The protabdity that @ couniemasty wil defaull ower he next 12 months rom (he reporting dawe (12-
ronth ECL, Stwagel) or over the fedme of the product (Metime ECL Siage 2) PD is estmabed using
internal mbng classes and one based on lhe Bars's miberesl dek raling. The Benk has used Transibion
Maatrix appreach for estiration of PD for aach intarnal rating, Tha Bank has used rolkrate methed using the
days past dpe [OPD| crteda ta eslimated PO for its retail portfalia. PO e then adusted with forwand
izoking imfomrmaltion for celculation of ECL
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- EAD: The sspecied balance sheel exposure &l the tme of dafault incorporatng espectsdiors an
drawdoens  amonisation. pre-payments and forwand-looking information whers relevant The Bank
astmates EAD for financial Bssets camied &t 80 amonised cost and camed at cost egual ko principal ples
markug Each repaymert data is assumed o ba dsteult pont in the madal and the ECL is calculated on
EAD at sach reportmg date and discounled =i the sfeclive Elerest rals or conbeecleal inlsnest e for
adwanoas othar than siad koans and TERF for whach effective irderest rate is used. Furthe:, cesh and cash
anulvalent collatenals thal e Bank hilds ggains! ihe non-redsll lacllies ara adushad from e LGD

- LGO: An estrrabe af (b loss meurred on & faclity upon defaul by & borrower. LGD 5 calculaled as the
difference babween contraciual cash Mows due and those thal the Bara espects bo recaive, Incioding from
the bguedation of any form of colladarsl i 5 expressed as & percentage af the expasure guistanding on ihe
dufe of classifcation of an obligar

Preseniption of allowance for Expested Credit Loss in the Statement of Financial Position

Lose allpwances for ECL are peesented in the statament of financia! position a6 follows:

- Frantial asseis messured al amortized cost as 8 deducton lrem the grods carmying amaowent of ha assals
- Lean commeimants, fnancie guarantee confracts and kters of credik as & provasion in other liabiklies

whera a fimangal msirument moludes both a drieein &d an undrasn Seanpaneant, E0d e Bank does mcd
Idenbly iy EGL an the lzan commitment companent separabely from thoses on fhe drssen componend and
ingtaad prasenie & combingd lose allgwence for both commponants, The combined amount & pressnted == a
deduction fom Ehe grass carryig amourt of the drawn componant Any excess of e loss allowance cuar
Ehe gross amauil of the deawn semponenl & presentad &5 a provision, and

- dett instruments messused at FVWOCE na loss slipwance & recognged m the stalement of irancial pesmban
bec@use the carfying anounl of these assets = 1hair 18F valua, Hewewer, the loss allesance is disclosad
and o recasnized n QCIL

Signilicant increasa in credit risk (SPER}

A SICH 15 assassad in the condend of an moreasa n the rsd of a defauk oocuring ower the lile of the tinancal
insorument when companed o Higt expeced 81 e ime of infal recogreiion, B % not assessed in ihe conlead of an
MErEaas in e ECL The Bank uses @ maimbar ol qualilatve and guantilative measures 0 assessing SpCR.
Quantitslive measures ralale 1o detedicralion ol Obligor Risk Ratiegs (QORR) or whare principed and | or intenast
paymanis ane 45 days or maa pasl dua Cualtative faclors nolude uravaitabdity of firaacial infarraion and
panding |itigationg

Any borovwer dentified by the Menagement Cradit Committes (MCC) ‘where enhanced manstoring & requred by
ike Baric's Credil l=am. it may be perseived &3 8 cage of signiboant moraase in ceadit risk of the bormgwer,
iharefore  all axpasure which has been maked as ‘waich |, may b considered 1o De downgrased and
cHsgorzed Indo Simge 2 on case 0 cose basis. Apert from the sbove ob@échve Dased SICR crtadim, e
managenant may shift exposues fraom Slage 11o Stage 2 based an cerain rek madcatars snd indugiry oulioos

The managemant of the Bank may ssercee iis judgeman { making any changes inthe ECL compitaton of tha
borrowes. In case of such overdays &he managemant shall decument e reasons o detaill  Any
caviation/changses in ECL computation shall be approvad by the BAGE, The oweray may ba applied b avermids the
resufis produced by e Model where the manegemeant beleves, bassd an addbgnal infomaticen which fhey ae
privy bothat e resulis would ba differant if the same could be acocounbed for by the moded

fa fegured by the Sppheston Instructions. financal assels may be mclassfied ouf of siage 3 i they meel the
ragquirgenanits af PR ssued by SEP. Financial aSsels in stage 2 may be reclassified 1o s1age 1 if the congitions
that led 0 8 SICR mo longer apply. Howesear, @ minimum pered of 3 meaths friom inital gowngrede i reguirad
pfora eny laciiy is moved back o Sapa 1 from Hage 2. For a faclily o move back nom Stage 2 1o Sage 2, il
shaud mest the ocritsriz defined under the mepedtive Prudanbal Requlations for de-classification of accound |
faciliy. A axposure cannal be upgraded from Stega 3 o Stage 1 direcily and should be upgradsd 1o Stags 2
initiadly

IFRS O nciudas 3 rebutiabie preswmpbon Tist 8 default doss not Gocur [aker than 90 deye past due end 9 elsa
presurmes that there & SICR i credd axpasdrs & mone than 30 days past due In gedes So feing consistency. SBP

has allowad the backsiop o e rebuttable peesumplion of deye past due of cradi porfolc against a speafic
cradi facility snd its slage allosation undes IFRS B as mantioned in Annesie-C of BPRD Circuar no 3 of 2002,

Hiovepavar, banks dre fres 1o choose mone siringent days past due crileda, The Bank kas appies the guidance of
FR whara dafaull is tealed when e loan s BD days past dis
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Diofinition of default

The concept of “mpairment” ar “default” is ontcal to ihe implamentaton of IFRS % as it drvas delsrminaticn of
risk parameters e PO, LGD end EAD

Az per BPRD Circular Mo, 08 of 3027 dated July 08, 2022 and BPED Croutar Lefier Ho. 18 of 3024 cated July
Zi, 2024, ECL of Blag= 1 and Stage 2 is caksulalsd as par IFRS B, whie ECL of Slege 3 has baen. calculaled
based on higher of githar the Prudondal REegulabons or IFRS § of borrower [ faciity lewel fof corporade §
commarcia [ SME lzan portfolins ang ar segment ! progict basis for ratail portfolis

Thits imphas that f ana facilty of B countarpany becomes S0+ OPD in repaying ts contractual duas o B8 dafined
in PRs: ad other fecilties would deam 8o be classified &5 stege 3.

Wi'rite-offs

Firancial as=efs are writen off (ether perizaly o in full} when thers is no reasanable spectation of recovering 8
fmancial agsat in its entredy of & poion fheraof, This is genersby Tha casa whan the Bank detarmnes that fha
barrgwer dees nal have asgels o ssurces of ncome thal sould generate sufficant cash flows te repay tha
amaunts h.l-t#ﬂ: I o werie-oll. Ths assessmenl & camied aul 8 the indivisual assed lewal

Recowaries of amounts prewiously witien off are included in 'impasment losses on financal instrumenls’ in fhe
statement of prafit and less account

Fittamncial Basets hial afe wiilbsn o7 coukd sdll be subject (9 enforcamsad aciiviliss in order jo comply Wil 1ha
Bank's procedures for recovery of amounts dus

Undrawn kxan commitmaents and guearanieas:

Firancial guasaniese are conracts thal reguirg 1ha Bank to make sperified payments 2 reimburse the holder for
@ loss that il incurs Gecause a spaciied tabior iads 1o make payment when il is duwe in accarsancs with the terms
of 3 dedt instrument ‘Lean commitments” are frm commsmanis o provide credit under pre-specilied issms and
COMEEtions

When e=limating LTECLs for undrawn Frencirgs commitments neluding révehmg facildias the Bank aslimalas
tha ewpected parbon af e inancings commiiment that will Ge drawn dows awer 18 sxpeciec e Tha ECL & ihan

tased on the present value of the expacted cash fiows if the financings is drawn down, based on & probsbisly-
waignting of the thres soenanas,

Gowernance, pwmership and responsibilibes
Tha Bark has atopied a govarnance framewnrk reguinng the Risk, Finance Inermal Audt, HR anrd |T funclions

o gffeciively work tgether b ensuie input from all business ings. IFRS 8 reguies robust credit nsl medets fhal
can predicd Probabdity of Dedautt {PD), Loas Gevan Delpal (LGE) and Exposure af Dalaull [EAD}

The Bank's Risk Management Divisioa bas desehoped mocdels | methodolegies for PO LGO and Credil
Convarsion Factors (CCF ) Thesa modals ane validated on annual bass consideding the faliaing aspacis:

- Cluslitalive Vaisetar: Expected credit kes {ECLI modal design validahon data quality walidation and
penchmarking with exlermal basl praclices

- Quantitalive Validatan, Cabrafon 1esling wiich ansuires e socuracy of thie chzarved POs,

Tha Riss; Dapartmean dedires. Haa slaging criweria fior the rew impasment moded and take ownership of all modeds,
mathodalogies and the ECL calculalion approgch. Addifonaly, the Rk Depariment ako teha e ownarship of
thg impact of ECL onsani's capital

Tha Hank's Finanze Division assass tha Snancal impacl and mast e linancisl Bparing reguifamenis

Trar IT Chagarimani & sespansiie (o idenafy, prepare 8nd esbract ihe deta eguired for N ngk pafamaians
modelding and ECL calculatons. | T gapatment also suppor far syslem develapiiant and upgrades.

Az par tha Bank’s policy, the Bank's Infemnd Audit lunstion carnes aul pasadic review of IFRES 9 mathadalogy and
impacts cakulaiod by 1he Management
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Cash and cash equivalonis

Cash and cash eguivalents comgrise of cash in hard. balances with treasury banks, balances with olher banks n
currant and ceposd accounts, ralianal prize bonds, cverdrawn nastna sccounls and cal lendings having original
mahangy ol threg monibs or bess

Lendings 1o/ borrowings Irom financial instttions

Tha Bank aries Ints repurchass ageemants |(repo) ard meverss reparchasa agraomands (reserse repal al
coniracled rales for a secilied péncd af ime. These are recoeded as under

(&)  Sale of securities under repurchase agrepments

Securibes soki subject 10 & repurchase agreement (repoy ane retBnsd 0 the fmancial stalemanis as
invesiments and tha counier party labilty s ncluded in barrowings: The dilfarental in gake and repurchasa
walis i recognised evar the pariod of thie contract and recorded as an egpense

bl Purchase of securites under resale agreomanis

Bacuribes purchased under agmsement 1o esell (raverse sepa) are ancluded in landings ba firancial
instiiulions The undarlying securily = nol recogniesd &3 8 saparate sasetl in e financal stalements. Tha
difference between (he contracled price and reasls grice s recognisad over the period of e cantract and
recorded as moome

Spcurites hald 25 codaieral are not recognized in the financiol stedamenis, unboss fHase areacid 80 Mind
pamEe in which caga the chbligation o refum tham 15 recordad at fair value 2% a frading Rabiaty unders
boerowings Fram fnancal insltutions

izl BaiMusagjal

The securiies scid under Bai Muajjal agresrmsent are deracognised on the dale of Ssposal Payable against
such sale = rgcognised ab fhe agresd sake pics. The difference beteeon the sale price and ihe Carrying
waliie o D dabe of disposal ks 1gkan [0 mark-up expense on siraght line bass

(d} Call lendings { placamonis

Call lardings | placements with financial instiiutiors are staled net of prowsion. Retum on such lending s
accnied fo the stetemant of profit and loss accounl on & lie praperion bass @xcepl for mark-up on
mpaired ! delinguenl iendinge, which is recognized on recsipt bass,

@] Borowings

These are moorded sl tha procesds recaived. Mark-ug an such borrewings is charged on a lime proposson
basis fo tha siatermant of proft and loss aceound over tha pariod &f barrowings

invastments

Imesiments inckide Fedesal Govemmen securilies and - shares, Classfcabon and measurement of Faderal
Gavernmen] secuniies and shares has been deladed innole 51

An equity instrument held By the Bank for rading purpeses & cassfied as measured 2t FWPL. Onoinlial
reGagiiban of an eguily mwestment that is ol heid for trading, the Bank may irevocably efact o prasan
subsaguant changes ir fair value m OC|, Thisalection is made on an invesiment-by-nvesiment basis.

Advances

Loans and advances insluding ned mvestment in finance feasa are stated net of cradi Des allowancs | prosssian
Credit %oss aliowanca / provision againsl kans and advances in have been mate 0 accordanca wih he
requirements of tha Prudentisl Reguiabons and IFRE 9 apalication msirechions issued by iha S5BF. Advancas am
wrilien off | chaiged alf wien [here aie no fEeksls prospects of recovery o to clean up the balarce sheel as
hawesd by the SBP
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Property and saquipment and depreciation
ja} Capital work-in-progress

':Bﬂllﬂl w-:th—m-nn:-grﬁ&a 15 srated 81 cosl Bss accumulaled ampaErment Isgas  jf any Al EHPI:I"diLUI‘E
connected with specilic asgels incurred dising mistallabon and consiruclion | dewsiopment pericd ang
carred undsr this head Thsse arg Fanshannsd (o SpeCific Ss5E 85 and whan 355815 Detoma ayvadatla for
(-1

ib)  Property and equipment
F-I'ﬂ-]:!-l'tjl and equipment are sialed ot cosl mss accumulialed depreciaban and impairment lcsses, if any

Deprectation on propedy and aquipment (excluding land which is not depreceied) is charped wsing 1he sfraight
ling methed in &scordance with the ratas specified in note 11,2 1o these fingnoal siaterments aftar taking inbg
accourd residuasd vakies, The mesiduad valuas and usalul Ikes ane reawed and adjiushed, f Bpirogiiag, al each
rmportang dile Dapacalion on addions @ ﬂhﬂl‘gﬂ frorn e manth the asaals ane svalable ior use while in the
case of assets dsposed af, itis charged wpio ihe date of dispasal

Subsequent coste ere mcinded in 1he assat's canying amount or fecegniesed 65 a separale sssel 88 aaprapaals,
crly swhan it s prabable that luture acanamic Benefile ssasciatad with e ilam owill e 1o tha Bank snd the cost
of the e can be measured reliably. AN olhar repair and mainterance expenditune sre charged 1 the stalemen
of prafit and less accaual ag and whan ncurmed

An amsel's carrying Emount (s wntlen down immatiately (o s recoverable amount if ihe asset's camying amdauns
graabes than its eatmated moovemable amound

Gains and losses on disposal of propedy end aquipment are credied / changed 1o the sfatament of profit Bnd e
AcEoiint.

Leases

Tk Bank assesses at contracl incapbion whethar a conmiract = o confains. & Base. Thal i, i the contract
cofveyE he right 1o contiol e wia af &n (danlified asssl for a peniod of Bme in axchange Tor considaraBbon

Right-of-use assets

On inigial recognition, rghi-ol-use essels are measured af &n emount equal ba nilial lease liabilty 3djusted for amy
keasa payments made at or bafare the commencament dade, plus any indial direct costs incumed and an asfimate
af costs bo be incured fo dismanile and remove the urkderling asset or 1o esione the wedarlying assat o tha sile
an which it is located. Right-ci-use assels are subssquanily stated at cosl Iess any accumilabed depracistion |
Brumubabad npaimiant kosses and are adjusted for Bny remsasuramenl of lBass Rabilily, The remessueranl of
lonwn kabdily will ondy acour in capes whare the arme of the lesse e changed dunng the lassn fencs

Loase Gobilitus

At the commencerment dabte of the eese. the Bank recognisss leass listility megsured &0 the prasand value of the
conskierahon (lease payrnanis) o be made over the lesss arm and & edjusted for lease prapeyments. The kase
payments are discounied using the inleres] rale implicil in e ase, anless it s nol readly delesminabie, @ whish
ca%e the lesses may use the incremantz! rata of bonpeeng, After the commenosmeant date, fhe carmying amount of
b asa babiity & Increased o fellecl the acciation of intemst and educes for ihe BasE payments mata,

Dretermination of the lease term for lease contracts with renewal and termination options

Tha Bank detarmings tha lzase jarm as the non-cancelabie term of the lease, iogether with any perods covernsd
oy an opilon 1 enend the lessa Fif = reasonably cenen 10 be axendsed, or any peAods covanad by an aption o
larminale Be =ase, i ilis reassnakly c2rian not o be axercseed.

Thie Bank has secenal Ease contracts thal incude extensicn and ermination cptions. The Bank appliee udgment
i evaluating whether if is ressomably cerliam whether of nod b exarcise he aption [0 renew or Bnrminala the
leaza. That is. it cansiders all ralevani faciors that creads an economas incendve for i j0 exeicse silher He
rendrevil ar leminalien aplisn



R 1

12

Aler iha commencament dale, e Bank reassesees the kase ferm d there i a sgnéficand event or charge in
clrcurnatances that i within ils sontral that aMlecls 85 abdity bo axerciaa or nod 10 exercie the opticn to renew or o
terminaba

Incremental borowing rate (JBR)

The 18R s tha rata of mark-u0 that tha Bank would hava o pay o borraw over a similar term, and swith a similar
secinty. the furds recessary to obdain an &seet of 3 simdar vale fo the rght-of-use assal 0 a3 similar economeas
erarsnmisil. The Bank eslimatas tha |1BR L] absersabde Imouts such as marked inlerest rabas.

Intangible assets and amortisation

inlangible asdels die meadued gl oesl kes sCCumivlaed amodisation and accumulated imoaiment osses
any. Iniengitée assels pre amorsed on o staaghi-ine basie n staberman of grofit and les Booount ever thair
extimasad useful lifa, from tha date in which tha asset is pul o use, whereas no amodisaton s charged [rom he
date i Bsset s dispased off The estmated useful life of ntangitia assats for the curiend and comparative year
is apaafied in nets 13 1o these nancial staterments. Amortsaton mathods. usaful Ives and residual vakies are
reviewved &l esch reponing dale snd adjusted § appropnaie

Subsequen) cosls are ncluded in jhe assal's carying amount or recogresed a5 & sSparate asse. a5 appropriabe.
coly sehen it s probabie that future sconomes benelils sssccisbed with e fem will Tow 1o e Bank and e casl
of tha ikem can ba messured raliably, &) cther axpenditure is recognised in sialermant of profl and loss sccaunt
a5t 18 mcurmed

Inlangible sxgets having an indefaile usaful lile Bre staled at acquisiion cosl less accumulsted imparmmend
Ipssas, & any, Gains and losses on disposals, § any, are credil ¢ charged 1o the sistament of profil and loss
aecoun inthe paried inwhich they arise

Impairment of non financial asset

&t each reporting date. tha Bank rewviaws the carmying armaunle af s rondinancial aeesls 3 delrming whgihar
them is any ingication of impaiment, I amy such ndicalion exials, fhen ke assels rAcaverable amount &
eshmaded. The resavarable amount of an essat ar CGEU i the graster of its value m use and 85 far walus s
COStE 10 sell. Value n use 5 based on he estmated future cash lows, discounled i eir pregen value wang a
pra=iax discount rate that efects curent markel assassments of the bma value of meney and the rishs specific 1o
fhe assed or CGLU

fn mpairment loss is mcognised @ e carying amount of an asset or CGU ewceads its recoverabds amaunt,
fmpairment lcases sre recogrisad in profit or lss acoount,

Impairment oss is reversed only to the extent al ke sssel’s caryng amount does not sxcaed the carrying
amaund that would have heen determined, net of deprecadion ar amortigalion. i na Wpeirmant 0ss hed bean
regnsad

Taxation

oame ldx axpense comprises cunent and deferred tax Income tax expanst & recopnised in the stalerant of
profit and loss account escepl o e exient thal A reizies 1o ems racognised direclly in olher comgrehensive
incoma, nowhich case it is recognsed in stalemen of ather comprahansive incaome

jm}  Curroni

The provision far currant faation = based on tasable income for the year, | any, at curent rates of faxation, alter
fakireg Mo consideraton avelabie tax credits. rebates and 1ax losses as speciied under the saventh schadule ta
ine Incame Tax Ordinance, 2004, The amaunt of cument tax payabls 5 the best estmate of the tax amount
erpecied 10 ba pald. tha nefiects unceranty relslsd o ncome Exes, 1 any. The charge Tor cuneni tax aiso
ncludes adjustrants, where consilaersd nacessery relaling fo prior years, whath arges frem assacaments |
developments made during (ke yess Current 18 assats gnd lisbities are pisal only § corlam criberia ane mel.

b) Prior years

This charge includes tax charge for pror yes's arising fram assassments. changas in @stimales and change in
L
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(e} Deforred

Dafarred bax s recoghisad uglng the belance shaet kabiity method on all tlemporary siflerences arsng betessn
i carmpng emounis of assets and Liebiimes for finencal reporting purposas and ampunis weed Tor the taakon
purposes, The amount of defsmed lax provided & based on the axpecisd manner of realisation or selllement of
lne casmying amaunts of assats and abililles ussg the [Bx Bies anacted or subsiantwely anaced at e repetng
date. & deforred tar assal s racognised only 10 the exdent that @ is probable that fuure taxable profils will be

available and ths credits can be utilised, Deferred tax assat i= reduced fo fhe exiant that & is no longer probable
treat the ralated tax benafits wit be realisad

Tha diffarence betwesn the carnang valig and the mecovarsble valie is mrognssd throvgh the stiatement of prakit
angd loss gccount a5 a dolermad tax espanss, The Bank alse records a doferred fax assel | liabily on #gms
iacagnised dingcily in the slalement of Compranansive iNCOMS Such 35 SUIEIUS ! dafich on ravaluation of a5546is

Provisions

Provision for clasms under guaraniées and other olf balance shesl abhgations & recoghied whan idanidied and
masonable carlanty exisis for tie Bank to satie the ohligabon

Other provisions ang recognised when the Back has & legal or constuctve oblgation as & resull of pasl svents, i
is prabable thed an outlow of ressuries ambadysg econamic panalis will b raquired to seitia the abligation and
a reliable estimate af the amounl can ba macs Pravisicns Bee reviewad al each reparing fate and are aousies
i refiact the curmend best eslimage.

Staff retirement benefits
Defined contribution plan

The Berk ooerates an appraved Turdad pravident fung schems for gl its permanent amgloyees, Equal monihly
contributians are made beth by e Bark and (ks emgloyses, 1 the Furd at the rate of 8.32% of basic salanes of

e emplapess.
Borrowings | deposits and their cost

Borowings and deposils are recorded al (hi prociesds recehved exeept for Temporary Economes Refinance
Faclity {TERF} barrowing from the SEF which has bean récoended At Talr vaiue ononitial recogninan. Unsinaing af
pxgense on fair walue adjusiment is recogniged in the statement of prafit end loss account Cost of deposils and
barrowings arg recognised as an expense in the period m which these are incured wsing conlracied mask-up |
intarest rate methad. Swap cost arises when sumplus foreign curency funds are sold o puichase losal curency
funds fram the markal. Swap coBt 15 recardad 85 an expanse in the period m whach f is mcured

Dividend and apprapriation to reserves

Dividend decisred and spproprations mode subsegeent o e doe of the staement of finoncial pasilicr ans
considared 8 non adustng @wanls and are recarced a5 a labilty in ihese financial slalemenls = e year in
which Tase are approved by ®ie diractors ¢ shamsholders. 55 appropriate excesl appropriatans which are
required by tha: law

Ravanus recognition

Rewvanum s ecegnisad 1o fig extens that e eccramic bensfils sesocisted wilh & ransaction will e o ihe Bank
g 1he ravarue can be reiably measand

- Mark-up / raturs | FlEras! an #3vances and invastmants & racognised on accrual basis. excopt in case of
achvancas classified wndar fhe PrudenSal Regulatans on which mark-up 8 rRoogmead on recept bazis
Mark-up f mium | imarest on raschaduled ¢ resbractured lcans and advancss and ihvesimenis s necigneaad
as permdied By the ieguiatons of SBP

. Fee, commission and biokerage incorme are accountsd for on anaccua!l/ time propestion basis.

- Dwwidend incoma from myvesiments & recognsaed whan 1he Banks Hgnt 10 recaive e dividand has Dean
eaimblishad
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Financing method is v=ad in accaunling for income fom lease nancing, Under this methad. the uneamed
leazs moome (excess of the sum of tolel legse renale and estmated residual valua gwer the cost of thae
easad assels) i defesed and taken b income oves e lerm of G lkase 30 88 10 produce & conslant
pencdic rate of retum an tha ouisanding net investment in the ease

Unrealised legse incoma in raspesl of nonpadoming finance Gkases and mark-up foretuin on none
performing acvancas is el in suspenss acsoun.

Pramium or decount an acguisition of dabl myvestiments is capitalsed and arsorlised hroegh the siatament
af peofit ard loss account cver the remaning pencd 1l mabandy

Zains | lasses oo larminalion of leyse cantracts. documanisban G"IBI'GB’E fromt @nd fee and other lagsa
income are recognised as noome when realised

Gain /085 o0 sale of imvestmants & credited / charged o statament of proft and loss account,

Foreign ourmencies

)

iy}

Foreign currancy transactions

Transactions n faregn curmangies ana transixed nto Pakistani rupeas at the sschangs rales prevaiing an
tha vansaclion dale Foresgn sxchange gains and losses resufing from the setllement ol sweh fransacions
and from the translaton al yea-end exchangae rades of monetary aszets and labililes densminsted in
lareign cusrencies are recogmaad in e statement of prodit and less acoount Fomvard contracis ralating to
farmign curency deposts ane vakied &l forvand rales applicable o tha mspectiva maluntias of the relevant
foreign rechangs contrac

Tranaiation gains and losses

Translatedn gains and losses are inciuded in the stalement of proft and loes socounl

ey Contingencies and commitments
Commitments for owsianding forward foresgn axchangs coMmracts ame geclosed al conlracied rates.
Gontingnt llabileses ¢ commibmants for lotbers of cedit and Ietbers af guarsnbee dencrminabad 0 farsgn
CLMTEnCies gre sxprassad in mupee teems at the exchange rales rulng on the repofng dale.

Begment reparing

The Bank has struchsred ils key busingss sreas n various segmants in @ manrnar that sach sagman besomas a
distnguishable componenl of the Bank that = engaged ether in prowiding producis or 5Erdices (Dusiness
sEgmiantl. ar in prowding products or services within a paticular sconomic snvirenment (geographical ssgmsnl],
which s subject o Aede and rewards thal ane different from thosa of othar sogments. Tho segments meparisd
below are consstenl 1o thoss reporled o the Fragident and Cheaf Exacutive Officar of the: Bank.

Busintss segmenis

)

fiil

Whalesale banking

Whalssale banking includes project fimance, neal estae, expor] financa. frede inence. laasing, landing
guatanises, bille of axchange and deposis and inchiries services praviced in connackon with merpers snd
acquisiion, underwibng, prvatzalion, securilizalion, sesarch, dabts (gowsrnemand and high yiald] and
aquity syrdication, IP0 and secondary private placements. These services ase baing offared 1o Ikige

corparaie enklies,

Il alsn neoldes lkendngs. expart linence. tade finance, bils of eachange and depogits. Thede sevicas are
being offened b commersial eustamers and small & madium sized entitias

Global Markets

Il mcludes fived inctene an cebl secunties. equity, foneign mechanges. commodiies. credil furding, own
position securilies, lending and repos, Broharegs dabt gnd pome brokerago
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il Retail banking

I ineludes relail | cansurmer lending and daposits, bandng senicas, fruat and esieles, privale lending snd
deposits. banking service, rust and astates imvesiment advice, menchanl | cammensia | conporale carnds
and private labsls and ratai

Geographical segiments

Tha operafions of the Bank am cerently based anly m Pakaian

Earnings por shara

The Bars presenls basic and diluied earmings per shame (EPS) for ks sherehaldars. Bessc EFS 5 cadculeiad by
dividing the profil of loss altrbutable ta ardinary sharehalders ol the Bank by the weighled sverage nurmbed of
ordinary Shares catélanding curing the year, consclidaling the impgact of easury siocks, i any, Dikiked EPS &
deiermeraed by adjusting the prafit or lods attnbutabée o ordinary sharehalders end ihe weighbed avesge number
af Gidinary shases outstanding o the elfects of al Silitive potentsd ordinary shares, ¥ any

Financal instrumants
Financial assets and Babilities

Al financigl assals and habdines are recogrised al the bme when the Bank becomes o pay 1o ihe contractual
prondsins of the nstrumant. Financidl assets are derecogisad when (he Bank oses controd of the contractuad
rights thal compriee the finarcal aspats. Finarsal listiltles are derecegresad when thay are extinguiishad, La
when the obligahon specified in the contract 15 dischanged. cancaliad ar axpered Aoy gain | lgss an darecagnibon
of the fmancal assets and finarcial Bbililies is faken to income drecly. Finansia idiruments carmed o the
sietarmant of fnancial posdion mckide cash and balanoes wih ireasury banks. balances wilh cther banis,
krdings ta firancial inslibtions. nvesimens, advances. cetain other assets. bills payables, bomowmgs. deposis
gnd cenein offes lobistes. The partcular recegniicn methods edoptad for significani fmancial assels and
financial habilfies ares dsclosed in ihe ndividies] policy ststemenis assooated wilh (bess sasals and labiltses

Off-sefing of financial instrdmeania

Faaricaal aghiris and finencial Edslilies ena of-set and the ned amdoeni mported m e finsnclal statamonts ondy
when (here s o legally enfarceabia dght bo seb-all the recognised ssrount enid the Benk ntends. eitnar to satta on
a nel basis, o 1o realise the aaseis and bs Selle he kabilibes simullanesusly. Incoms and expense ieme of such
aseats and liabiitas are also off-sat anod the net amount & reported in (he linancial stalements ooly when
permitied by #ie aocowaling and reparing standards as applicabde in Pakistan

Darvatives

Deriveines fnandal instrumens, i any. s ndtislly recogrised al Fair walua i (e dale on o whsh 8 daridaties
oonired is entared imo ard ara, subsequantly, remeasured at for value using appropnade Yalualan technigues.
All derivabive financial ingtnuments ana ceried as asesls when fair value & posstive and liability when far value is
negalive. Ary ehange n the fair vaue of dervatva financis! insrumanis & taken to the statermant of prafit and
LT T

Fiduciary assais
Assats hald in 8 fiduciary capacity ara not featod as assets of the Bank in thess insacisl Salemeants
Aoceplances

Acceplancas comprise undertakings by the Bank ba pay bils of exghange drawn on gusiomers, The Bara expacts
masl poceotances o ba smulanecisly seitled with the resmbursemeant ram the customers. A8 regursd Oy the
Stats Bark of Pakisten through the amanded foemat for financal statermnends for Banks, acceplances arge
accourded for as ancbalance shes! fremsaclions and are reported in “other mssels” and “pther lakilties”
simultanacushy
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Sub-ardinated debt

Subordinsbed debis she inilialy recorded sl (he amounl of procesds recaived. Mark-up acciued on subordinated
debis is recognised geparately & part of other Gagiliies and (s charged 1o the stalemant of profit and loss account
aver the pericd on an ascreal basis,

Razares

Rasares on the sistament of financal posstion comprise of slatutory raserye and capidal resenrsa Capital resares
represents amoun receved by e Bark amountng 1o WER 10 millan from s parani company - Samba Fnancial
Group (e Saudi Malional Bank) in O 2029 for refwancing / madkeling and 10 selup he dgfal banking
madmap, 1o launch dgitsd product | sarvices such 25 credit cards elc The amousl & hon fefundable and
therafore has been classiad a8 ransactans with cwnens in equity.

Maota 0@ 202a
CALH AND BALANCES WITH TREASURY BANKS ammees UL i D00 =
Irs e
Local currency 1,380,918 803,932
Fareinn clfranciss ABX 116 481 515

1843031 1.385. 467
With State Bank of Pakistan in

Local curmency cumrent accounl 8.1 4,725,388 4,970,585
Foreign ciarancy cunmant accaunt 8.1 20,204 an1 249
Faarmign curmamsy deposit accoun| 8.3 2937 4358 2002 834

7183032 .84, 758
With Maticnal Bank of Pakistan in
Local currency Cunmeni accoum| 5,858 -

i)

Kational Prize Bonds -
8635858 5210303

Less: Cradi ieas allowancs held against cash and balancas

with traesuwry banks [Z.95d] e
LCash and oalances with reasuny banks - ned of cedl less
alicwance FEET m

Tha kacal cumency currant ascound i6 mainkained with the Stale Bank of Pakistan (SAP} as per the equiamenis
af Sacton 22 of Ihe Banking Companies Ordinance. 1562 Ths secbon mouires banking companiag o maintan &
lacs! cutrancy cash reserve in curment aecoun] apened with the SBP 81 & sum nof less than such percandage of its
tima ard demand babislies in Pakisian as may be prescibed by ik SEP

Thasd regresant hocal curnanty Garsent socound maimtained under the cash sezense requiremant of the SBP
Thesie balances ncleds forelgn curmancy depasit account mantained under the specied cash raserve of the SEP

Profil rales an thess dapoaits ane flived by the SBF on e menthly basis. These daposss camy inferest rate rangng
from 2.86% 1o 3 35% (2024 3 83% to 4 35%:) per armum
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Note 28 2024
BALAMCES WITH OTHER BAMNES ===-=- RUpees in 000 —-—
In Pakistan
Ire cLrranl accounts B, A0R 11.517
In depost accounts T 25 25
B,431 11.642

Quiside Fakkstan
In currgni accounts T2 809,725 1,358.211
B1B, 166 1,568, 753

Less: Cradit loss asowance held against batances with other banks [N (2243}
Bialancss with ather bankes - net of credit lces allowanca B8, 147 1567571

Thesa carry mark-up at the rate of 9% (2004: 13 75%] par annwen.

Thie above amount includes balanca with Saud Mabkonal Bank (2 related pasty) amountng 1o Bs, TEO11 millian
(2024: R 115,151 emilon)

Hote 2026 2024
[ HIJPI'II if 000 ssssse
LENMHMMGES TO FINANCLAL INSTITUTIONS
Call mongy lending B.1 1,500,000 -
Less Cemdit boas allowance bald against landing te finencial instbuticns 7
Lending to Fingncial Institutions - net of credd Ioes siowancs (483 883

This represant shor-tam lending {o Meszan Bank Limited. This casry mark-up al the rabe o 11.25% per annum
and will mature by January 02, 2028

2025 2024
wmeeens RUPEES IN 000 =eeeeee
Particulars of landing
In bocal curnency 1,495 983
2025 224
= Creditloss Credit loas
Lending allowance Lending allowance
Lending to Financial Institutions - held held
Particulars of sredil loss allowancs - Aupeas kn 000 ----—
Domestic
Performing Srape 1 1, 540000, 0000 (17} - -
2026
Slage 1 Tatal
smmamees RUgEes in 000 —---mm
Bialance at the start of the yesr =
Maw fingncial 55518 onginated of purchased 17 17
Biafance at the end of the year 17 [T
024
Stage 1 Taotal
weeenes RUPERS iN 000 —--—
Batanoe at the start of the pear -
Mew fingneial assels ergineled or purchased - .

Biatance ol the &rd of the year 2
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924

BMVEETRENTS

Inwestmants. by type

-}

25 s
Ml emmss Seda — i i < s
fiise [ by T Macaiattr ilomy el Gy
1 Hapem = T
- T I P
Pt salew Shrough profE orloes
Fislah Casnintmnl Secanimn 153148 1416 164,56 1726 - k] ] 17,524
HayzFaawar Zefean B5ER5T v v BEE§E3 14511218 - ' LKLTE
Hen Goverrmen) Detr Securssn & 3 - - SR - 1.2 350
10¥&8:7 P 1416 181111 1ATEAEL (LR H] LETT.IE3
Fair splwn throug h other comoreh eresve
laznam
Fiali i TabedivB T 1l Biraidan RAEE. Tk - TR §| 114 468,554 B 50 4B - AT Q5167383
Hon Boverereni Dt Sacumies . . i : = i X
b Yol - THLERS . TLRERSN B AE - W3R 0EY; 95 167,363
At o2
Felon BowirrneT] Dty sl mess - B 0D B i b R L]
- Equiy linmeris
Fair wilhen Beroagh prole o1 logy
Loz comgenes 9 S v [ ELH] R FRLY, 5] & FALE FA]
Fair vakie Barough other comonhersive
nzome
Ll o pares 1295853 137 1 IR A7 e = v TAEREF]
Tl nweaimenia 1057 . B 17,301,541 “‘i!”ﬁ [ALad] |51|IHi 1I:ﬁl‘.'|"!|.45l]
Investments by segmest
L rid 2
Gedl!
HI L Femha i [T 3 Credi lnm
n:-:ﬂ Skt Carrying Vaka i oy epheniiOekctl ey i
3 ool
Fiadierad s il (Sedi nithies
Farsarn rvesimieni Soady 105557 T - TR || 1IN FIRTIN AR T ThETH 555
Hape Fienias Cordcnis 55 B 4 2656 IE1 2 EI LI
Wkl Tremairy il R s AR 3381 1L 285774 216538 LR e
1R TR TS ' PIDTI1 TS AT b R L] HER B W TEEER
Shares: .
L] Cormprases 1847 #18 - 1237 13%,73 154E544 18] 82y il .l
it Corpares = s 3 ; :
1E47 Aim s 3330 1AM 134555 LR 1,530,255
Hen Govemmaent Cebt Socuribm
L . 3 - || 250090 u.w-:+| HHTED
Urisies 5 . - - o] [l : 1A
- - - - 550000 (1B1 11,253 LR
Totdl iviestrenis 118 G57 402 BRLORE 1971510 Hog AT A BT 151,850 ||I'.!5“: FE
b —— ——— ——— I —
0% 2024

Investments given as collabisal

Pamsian Irve siment Bonds

e Bupoes in 00 cmas

“IE‘IHR |EIEEEIEE
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Paniclurs of cradil loss allowanos

Investments - oo

Gpening balsnos

Efec! of agaplion of IFRS 0
nvesimerds derecognised or repnid
Choung balancie

Imvestments - Crodit loss sllovance

GrosE cArmyng amauns - Suirert year

EMes] of adoplicn of IFRS 9
FwvaEled e doracigniged o fegund

Change in risk palsmeiens
Cansing bakknoe

Crodit lees allowanss ¢ provision far dimingtion in valuee of Inveslmants
Dpening balanos

FRE @ rantfon impach a6 ab Januany 01, 2024

Ravargnl for Fs yaa

Clasireg Bslanos

Pariculars of credil loss allowance against debl saourites

Parammng Sabge 1

2035 224
Bmpge 1 Slage 1
meme RUpESE (0000 e
200,030 =

- 691,529
=03, 00 a9 629}
(B T] SN0
5 300,000
2025 204
Stmge 1 Stage 1
e Rupaes in 000 —— -
181
. 2 A0
[1E1) 19,872}
i) w2z
: (a1}
. BT
2025 2024

Frreee ﬂupuu: I ' vmssmes

181 B0, HET
. s, 35y
[181] {2,499
= B
A5 2024
Cradi kces Cradi kes
Culstandi Quistind
mmt"i' illowancs Im:“m Hlowsce
Hald Hald
s e B pE s 1 DI e




5.4

8.51

&0

Quality of available for sale securities 2025 2024
Cost
Cetails reganding qualiy of securites hed dnder "Hedd to Collect and ———- Rupaes in M —-—-—
Sell” model are as follows;

Federal Government Securities - Government guaranteed
Pakistan Inviestment Bonds 105,398,608 TT.A10.363

harkat Treasury Bils 8,291,661 18, 289 063
113,890, 258 T GG A4S

Shares

Listed Companies - sector wise exposurne

Comrmercial Banks 295,713 158613
Qil & Gas Explorabion Companies 229 877 113281
il & Gas Marketing Companies 219,501 635,340
Technology & Communication 143,211 142 274
Food and Personal Care Froducts 120.046 85,5495
Power Generation & Deslibulion 80,334 BY7 462
Pharmaceuticals 44,005 22,164
Enginesaring 40,813 82,570
Textle Compasibe 38,418 38 647
Cable & Electrical Goods 28,338 -
Refinery 76,505 45668
Paper & Board 168,692

hcdarabas 104 10
Transpar 12 24606
Cameni . 168,580
Fertilizer . 91,385
Atomobde Pards & Accessaries - T8 266
Cables And Elecirical Goods " 59,182
Glass & Ceramics . 52 888
Chamical 25658

1,285 455 1,333 Y53
—_— e T

Particulars relating to securilies classified under "Held to Collect” are as follows:

2025 2024
Cost
Mon Gevernment Dabt Securities reeemeee RUpEEE i D00 -ee e
Lirlis bed
Categonzed based on lomg term rafing by Crodif Raling Agency
- A+ A A - 300,000.00

The market value of securilies classified as amorised cost as af December 371, 2025 s nil (2024 Rs. 300.018
il g
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10.2

10.3

19,31

10.4
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Hzie [} Hap Feifemang Tota
A H g ot Il Hu “ |] i
ADVANCES rrrmrp e Hapesm 1 BT —rrmme s mr v s e
|, ot owdh, raang B Ho L8] fpad e ECTOITE )] e Bk N | nog ls Akl e BILMS
Bl chsure] ard purthems] 1.0 1RLET i 350k 18 413
fidvaena o gruss EL KR SR 500 o bk R ] LELri ] TLNLETE [ REARE
T e T A T T
St 1 frelv o LT | = L |1
B ﬂu;m ma |m s
= FTEN] ' Ihllﬁ. BT FAT LT
Enil.i-ﬂl ;? 10, 34 E5A Wuﬁﬁ | DAL
Eahvarcan - rml el s ey sliascy _1ﬂﬂﬂﬂll
*Concht g slorawnry s NSVRRCET NB) TELSAE CTRES iner Aipwance sopinc ke | seotiphin pampl br sage Joopare
Ineclsdes it ipveslmedl in linance lRaad as disclodod balow!
i) ]
L Thian on g Ldes fgnom
e Mt e s hnn iien ks Tziai o and iy Ben || Doer b yween Toind
T Hp g ey ik ot v ywsira
T = ;
| nme e b rer R e N1Rd1 - ot 1] baBEd B dad
Aaiehed wibar LR . LTS AN 22475
Wewtud bi bl pTers 1Lt - RFrdty ] 171433 ERAER ]
Py e Uegs b biyn peeh ¥z ra] €1, s ] I'!_i!_'.
Pt v bl P
Wik baprearE 1393 18,128 T e LT
Laks. ot etk MAGvAES (K2 43 {52 3ET) 18 3 el BEEN
ERL] E] I AN
025 FE24
Particulars of advances (Gross| amees Rupoes iR V0 cme=
In lacal currericy BH, Z85, 819 62 OTR ERE
Rt R e
Adwancos to Womsan, Wiomen-pwnad and Managad Entorprises
Wman II'H-E ETI 253 san
Winman Crenad and Managed Erdarpmsas o kG4 4118

Gross laans disoursad (o wamesn, women-owned and managed enlesprises during [he yedr snommled 1o Bs 2735 milion (20e4e

Fa 118007 milign|

Particlurs of credit loss allowanco
Agwances - Exposure [ et | _ [ |
Siags i Hage 1 Slaga & Tl St 1 B & B 3 Tkl
—rr—— R'.p“ i EH et v Hﬁh i Tl

Dorgisl farmrg arvid - Cisitl ys &5 15 T 11444067 3531 [olf EE1H 138 ' i

& Fec o ol o (R MR B . . - - I T0EET S3EE T35 ALTNEATY

TR S AT P =TT GratEn [T

Eidvirvs doseCopt 802 5 1E0@E el badd TSR H Lo HE S

TR G g FEH ik I

Tipamiyr oy piage 7 = [l L ILT E ] e ]

Tidewhe s e 1 - |8 BB 11 By L FEL: 1] .
315 0% BARLIED (|17 AT 1R TR

Al wilih ol Tueged of . . [ 'y 1]

ey igan EELE RN WTEAN TIanGTE  Ermir e CLHE Y LR

-
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1042 Aéwvinoes - Credi loss allowance [ s | ey ]
Blage 1 Stage T Glagsd  Toied Fiage 1 Sages T Told
s i ps i THED e sase RLPERE ] e
Dping BGSLE 1,745 Mand  BEIRAE 1088
Eifec ol Booption of IFRS B 1 3 1546 EEE £ TRT 144 107 555
R Sadvarvine. 111 55 730 FEF] TEIA
Sy BoRRC ] 0 e el 63 938,220 {155 25 {530
Trarisdes fo sage 1 - L] REERES] 5[]
raree 10 Gae § . 15238 TH 5] FEALR
Trareo 1o Hags 3 . [H.ET JT T alim
(% 38T HAT WL IEEEET [REEREE]
seroaint wrden 58 suged of 2 -
Chargas i 5k [ardmiten B At b (e 18 1M 1984 848
Ciming botaace I [] TIass  I0FIbEen  TRRAaITh VAT IR ERIEEE e e
1043 Adwvances - Sategory of classication
: 2] I 7 |
Saige 1 Suged Bisga 3 Toaa Seagn 1 Staged Enge Total
B | L L. L1 I L1 PO prrr— - T T
Cuistabdiig ghoss i pedung
afrarrry FPR LR p MENFE 5RO - a5 THI
Lirtr parbsmiig . 10EE3ATR 1 ERIETD 1ndea it W &4 A7
Woe- prricirang
Daker dasetn Exprcialy Mermond ' v i i - = E
Gatrardan : ' 16 b 12 B B4E 173 BEIT]
Drisphibi - - 1T ER 1734 5 1T 1RELTEH
Loas . : LB L] - 12330 fir e ]
2 ' i 1.1 T4 014 . FERIH BATIIHE
Toai WEA T IAEEANTE  IOTAOTE TNaIAT  dLimie  WAEe LN (R}
Corresponaing ECL
St 1 LRI : . ML i L
Bups . 1L 1T 5 1an.=a . S 334 00
S 3 2 i 10216 B3 0575005 LiTi3E
T WSIEY ~ EidE OFREm “‘m‘ =1 m ENTE TEAE 272
- — . ] E——EEEE—
0.8 Advancas inchide B 10778 mikon {December 31 2024 Rz 9831 milian) which have been plamd undes nen-peifanmming sl
a5 delaiied below
Cmigery ol Classification n sage 1 [ . |I - |
m':m Cradi lgas  Men Puloinng  Cond) hos
At ¥ pigwasce Loams algmares
m——rrrys s erreryers s UG ERS 0 DED
Damanic
bt doneds By Maionsd 17000 EAN rm
SurEianiaig e i) a1 45133 TS
Digubul 1,185 1244410 | YA .48 28
Loes BISLIE BDORTHE TR I
IDITRITL _ WB2%650 E57 1048 SETRHE

10,51 Trea Bank has nol axiantad @y IDRNS OF A0vances Overseas
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0.6.1

10.68.2
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Particudars of credit loss allawance { provision sgainst agvances

926
Note [ Siaged || Seage? || Smge3 || Tatal |
[ —— T L ]
Opereng bafsnce 181, TET 344,000 5.5TE, 505 10081272
RS @ wanaibon impac B s i e
Festaied balance as at Jamwsny 1, 2034 18177 JA4.,0600 $ETE.505 40051372
Charge for the year 15611 T4, 050 2000660 3,267 331
Ripvarsals Jor the yosr =118 6,702 1357 AGQ 1633277
123 4586 {13Z842) B43.2 [LEN:1.T]
Beraunts written off t0.7 - - (Z.055) 5
Clasing halarce 25,263 141,558 10E1E,650 1069 ZTY

" _Staged1 || Swge: #wsmna [ Total ]

R Fouipsssrs in SO0

Dpening bakncs : - -
IFFLS 8 iranaiticn impact FH-204 1046, 550 AT, 144 B30T SiE
Rexlamd balance s ab Jarnmry 1, I034 ad poa 5040 650 ETET, 1da 3207 Spd
:hanga for tha wear 35,878 112,835 3.505.056 1855 500
Fevenals lar the yas |Z71,400) [ES 381 [Era6, 734) 2015533

|Z3E 527 [F32,658) 2.50B8,3E% 13432TE
Amaunig whlien ol 1.7 s : i :
Closing balsnce LA . Arasr —l}lﬂj—.

Paniculars of ceedli toss allewance { provisson against acvances

i)

e
[Stage 182 ][ Stage3 I 7owml |[Swgeidz|[ Swmged | Tomal |

Rupees Im T0F ==

in iscal currency 457 E54 10,216,658 10,584,304 ££7 ROG 0.575,505 10045 a0
I Ve CLmEni el 98T - B OeT 7,688 - 715649
ATEET TR O LY L N T A S - N [ T I AT

P ——— il Se——— e e | SEe————— e B — e v ma e

e ol December 31, X025, o Eangih of forced sale vaiue of the collaierals Beld by e Bank hea Deen isken wiels delaimmerrg he
orodil ioss ollrsance ageirst ron parkommieg kane 35 allowed yndies BSD cingular Mo, O datad Cetoher 21, 2011

Noin IS 2024
Partculors of writo-affa: wsssss Ruppoas i P00 ceeer
Against proviziors 108 2,056 N
nechy charped o orofiE @nd lass account - -
1.008 -
Wiritar offs of Rs. 500,000 snd abowe 108 1,088 -
Warita GlTe ol balow Fe. 500000 36,5.5 -

Retails ol lan wrils-alf of R&, S00,0007- and abowve

In igrms of sub-petion (3] of Secmon 334 of & Bankrg Companess Ordinance. 1962 [ stalemand i fespec of wiman-ofl bans or
anty olfer Tnencis relief of s huided ousand rupess of aboes aliowed 0 & peskon dulng the yeer ended Oecamber 31, B025 5
given i fmnoxuns-l ¥ losa Soancal dabemans. Thesa ans ana whibten off as o book enlry withaol prequdicg o @he Banks right af
racoaary agansat iha cusiomarn

M hips fraifet |
Propérty and aguiprnn ———-- Ruipses in 000 -———
(Cegial work-n-progmss 1A E4 501 174,812
Piomaity and sgupensiil 2 130,068 1 A7 BT

]

Capital worksin-progross
Gl works T1E6T3 1651718
Aldvancas 10 Bippkas pgatitg] wehides 13,8503 =
Egquipinest 11,628 23101

14T




11,2 Propsmy snd Eoguipmest @
Bulgngen || Fersilaraard | | Blecirical, office and
Sl | Pl | R—— compuiscagupmant || TR L
Aiigees 00
AL Janunry 1, 105
Son T10.240 50,514 w5317 1,200,078 148,258 3,421,408
Actinmulated desgreciaion a (1£3,810) (E)G.ES3) {BES. T2} 162, Baz [1,753,767]
bt Boak wnis ¥ 5 O £ 2. MLIT 5§ 3 R4
Yaar entded Decesber 26
Cpsnag el baok el %240 I8 il A9 B2 3T BE 21T 460, 842
Agdrons £ 500 445,072 &54 TT2 281785 a B4, 105
Renasat | wig-afa ' " {1,470 [Tdi} |99, B486| GEL BRG]
D ot O CHai G = £13,962) 0124, 243] {rra redg |7, 0ED| |3£7,045]
Dt edjabisnta ! earmfes & = 4 £ - M
Chiosng nin boak valks ni'l'ﬂ Elﬂ‘ ﬁd'ﬂ' % M 51§1||]EE
AN Dz i 31, 2S
Cast iI"II-.TiiI &3 A 1427, Bl AT 4312 4,121,745
Azrimal lanss] chsne B HEGT F1 H.H-1E| EMH [RACRRCR TS |45, 505 |1, 55, B8 Y)
Wit Bcak wil _@, — RS2 OT4 £98 17T S35 6EH 20808 ___Z1M1.06R
Raie of duprasEion |parcernega) E §010)30./38 14030/ 53¢ 40 i
ket ]
Bulkling Elecbrical, oifhcn
Lare2 on freshold FI'U:II:L:LH and compeer Wiehacles Total
s o
ugman
Mg Jarmasry 1, 2024
Tzl TG 240 F20.314 =587 112492 1E8, 191 3208 pad
Astumhulated degresigicn - (147,70 et Sds) LA RS [Ag6e0| __[LEXE AT
Ml ook vEus HIH Hi Hi ﬂinii ﬂﬂ !! ;E! 650 295
Year eveded December 2124
Dipsning net book snie TG 280 243 A4 o L b ] 306, 976 B8 771 % E58, 233
ASIREhE - B 106137 139,664 (§-1:] 237,588
Disociats | wiiie-oTs 2 - 1,5 (113} s (LTSN
Dipresiainn changs (15,8330 TEami 128100 | N2 221,780
Dt asdpatmenia | el . . - - . -
Closng net book wake 10240 __Zmgee =5 A2 TR T S5ai7 1ETEE4]
Al Decamber 31, 1034
Cosi T1o 240 m S14 1T 720807 1& 368 TAFT dou
Astiriuleted depresiaicn SEIE BRI fHEE TO3Y (BT G423 {1,753, 78T
M eeak v Jﬂ.ﬂ.&.& MM ssa7 iR
Rme of depreciaton (percertage) i giloranias JLlaniazisl. Fil

114

12

AFA |

Dmprosal of fiked asseis
Trs detars of dapoaals o assaE whoes GOk walse Eecepd hvd nundngd ThauSan nUpeRs ane grenin Sinmgxune W
informmiosy refeieg o aale of foed seseis dathersias Fan oo egusr sudion] medd 9 te chal esecutive officer, @

difailer, Bh exacutve of & sharghodder noking net less 1han 1an percan) of tha voiing shams of the Bank or ary redaled party a=
feapdned by i BEP'S BED Cirgulsr Mo 4 gated Feruary 17, 2005 & also gaven in fnneone 1

Hode IS 4
The ot of By daprecigied sstabs ihat s sHI inuse ————{Rigaas i 00—
Buddirg o land O, 154 BEL 154
Elechisl, oMca Bnd Compariar &g pmenls 033 FrE 220
Fuiniuie dgrd Eadurds 340,030 28,000
P e 58,6843 0,037
1,214,360 4,540,511
ﬁ T
REGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 2iEh P ]

| EI.IIII:IMEH- Il H-I.IIII:IHE |
smssnef Rupees in ‘00—

AL Jamaary 1

Cnat 3,038,737 237610

Fooumdlsisd Deprecasion 1,382,336 |1 OTE2FE

Mat Campng amaunt at Janusny 1 1,655,791 1,255 338

Acidilions duining e pear 121 1,718,857 B TAT

Dsletions during Ta. yaar {51, 745] [R5 540}
Dhape eialion ehdrge fiod he pags 286750 105G
Closing net camying amount T, 1585 781

B ]

The adcitions dunng the vear inciutes stamp duses paid Nor regeiraton of eases anouning o Bs 1B8524 milion, These stamg
ouAes hasa been can aised N Righl-Ofdlles. A&ser a8 &0 inilial dract cost
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134

132

14

25

INTARGIBLE ASSETS

Capdal wark-in-progress
Irtangibie sxsels

Intangitie assots

AL January 1

Cogt

Accumuliased amisakon
MWat boak walus

Year anded December 11
Opaning net book vahsa

Aaditions - dinazlly purchaged
Amicriiaslion charge
Closing net book value

Al Decambar 31

Ceasl

Accumulated eEmantizaian
Mal book valus

Rate of amaoniisation (pescantags|

Lizafal [ifz

The cosl of fully amansed a3sels IRal are 21 o use:

Irtangible asets

DEFERRED TAX ASSEETS

Diaduchitbs bamperany dillarecssss an
- R muatian al iseswmams

- Lmpiss ikl ban

- Ml gl Bas fepracasin

- Gradil loas digwnros

Tamaioha lEmponeny Mo rancos o
- Higt inveasctmpnt i fnance lease
- Rigie-oi-se pakets

- Reunision al resTmes

Hoite 2025 L4
Softaares Spfhwares
R Hup.n-ﬂ Im "M mv
480,701 31£,162
131 a7, 330 448,671
Jan, THe.a05
049 506 738,379
[501.325] (4485 285}
R -7 M A IS
448 8T 343,084
im.Bie 218,359
[141,151) {113,783
B e ] A4/ 671
1,231,813 S48 950
[64E 47 6] (801 335
579,336 440 671
o0 J 1428 200014 28
5¢T 5JT
2025 2024
——-— Rupeas in '000 -0
259632 62,940
0TE
Recogrbed Recogaized in
msiabement sktement of
S piand e S
’ Tk Comfrenans e .
BO Mcome
Frupeiis o B0 e e
R . 126,335 | :
- 41 667,568 - 1,567 558
25538 [15E74) - il
154 ST |54,078 3 1,750,451
AR Ry 1857818 {28,335 4 583 118
[SLIET) 5 - (LT
. (1388278 - {1,585 318
» = |43, 025) (#1300
{1858 540

108741
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151

182

Deduciible maporan; diferences on
- Rgvabiaiom of irdsesimanis

- foceerated iaK deprecmion
- Cradl o slgearcs

Taxatia lempansy alarences on
Mt irreesiment m inonoe Mase

OTHER ASSETE

26

oo | rark-up socrued n lecal curency
INGomE S matk-up accruad in famign cumencias

Agdvances. cepisns, sdvancs rant and othar prepayments
Mark to masal gan on faresrd foragn aschangs contracts

Acosptances

Recemable against sale of equily meestment

Dielared casl on stalf loans.
LHheds

Less: provision held against otber asseis

Cither assats (nef of prosasion)

This mcludes

2024
Balanca s Recognisen  Recogaisod in
Impast o ot Yy atalgmnnt af
"1"*::'::'? ademicn 01 aker  of prolitand cdhor “;“:;_':"’
; al IFRE 4 aidapling licrkck congrenansive !
IFRS B BoGourt mcome
Rugiss in 000

263,704 3B TEE W2 A5 = FHER o
LA . E5ATE (5.0 P 48 B

2.300 451 4R 3T T A TR . 1 Aty Ea

3.EB7. 731 523 118 3109 903 127 FHAEH] 1478 Ban
(8 TOE 24,254 (60,353}
B T TR+ ¥ MK T Vo7 K ] CERE P R - 0 P

Hode 2025 2024

e BIPRS00 -

3,79 128 4 732,90

0,716 40,307

205 448 265,445

044 522 520 495

1,340,181 1243126

215,667 -

812,270 §2h.223

181 184,168 342,368

TG TR &OTHTED

15.2 (144 483 1144.452)

7480 803 7532, 301

Ay an amaent of Re. 32,389 milion |{December 31, 2024 Fa 32383 miken) macorabe iom Inlerdsin Leasing
Limited In 1978, Barkars equily was eslablished by Slale bank of Pakisdan along with 5 Commensiad benks. In
180% Samba Bank Limited (Fammeriy known as Crescent Cemmercal Bark) Sormowad Re 32 589 Milton, Monay
recaivad fromm Bankar's eguily was uhmately given & lcan b inberasia lease Comgany which s feng slanding
amaunt which & wei o recemed hosever, bank has recognized a provisian of 10 Mdlian 10 date aid The iEmaining

Rz 22 M= recoeded in note 17,

o} an amaunt of Bs. 1 B47 millon {December 31 2024 R 1. 84T mallion| receivabie from Saud) Malional Bank - a

relsted party.

Prgvigion held againet olher sssols

Fag, coramision angd athar moahvabaas

Fraud and fergery

1521 Meverment in credil keas allowance held beld sgalnst other assats

Oearing balands
Winiba-af curng e year
Closing balance

2028 204
e RS i 0D e
TE, 382 78,352
68,140 5. 140
|l-l.l-ii [TEEA
e e e e
144 442 147,385
- (2,853
144 4493 144 453
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The Bari holds wariows praperies in &5 name which wene tranafarnsd by cpersiion of law. As per masier agresmen!
el Oclober 22, 2002 signed bessesn Mis Mesheaq Bank FSC. (LWAE]L. M's Crescent Inwesiment Bank Limited and
M's intmmatonal Housing Finance Limied, thess praparies wene gecress in tivee af M Mashreg Benk PEC and ars
heeld by fhe Bank as an agent of bs Mashreq Bank PSC beng pass ivough feclilies Any amauni realized on
dupesal of hese properies 5 1o be remilled o Masheeg Bank PSC fhersfare nol recorded in these finsncial

Sim|EmEnt

Kole 2025 2029
BILLS PAYARBLE sesssess Fapaes 0 OO0 s
In Pakistan 23190801 1,791 154
BORROWINGE
Secuwed
Barmgsarg s frgm the Stals Bare of Padaien
Export Refinarca Schame 2,231,435 || 3014944
Lang Term Financing Fachily 1.261 288 1,815 145
Financing Faciliy for Ranawabie Enagy 121,001 140505
Temporan Economic Refirance Facity 1.645.20% 2,565,534
Refinancing Facdity Tor Modermzation of (SMEE) 44 ¥
Refinance and Credit Guarantas Schame for Woman Entrepronaues 49535 B352
Wiorking capital Refinace schems 180,008 9000
Repurchoses ogroesmant borncsirgs A3 708 E
1T 4B 1ga 517 T.BEO5 743
Repurchage agnsement bormowngs 1,000,008 12700 524
Tatm secured 171 48184517 - 20.506 567
Urnngecirrad
Call barmowings 179 3,000,000 -
Bai muajal bormowng - 1,545 330
Bankars Equity Limited {undar ligusiabon) 7.E 23 138 24 335
Tatal unsecurad 3,02233 1 DETESE
52 30685 42 474 22F
Mark-up & Maturties of Berrowing Facilifies 2035 FruiFs)
Meark-up || Maturities || Mark-up per || Maturitios
pEr ujmnl FTRLET i upls
Borrowings {rem State Bank of Faklstan (securgd)
Erpon Bafinanse Sohama B 509 - T .0 BT e 10 R T -5
L[ll"alﬂ-TEI'l"I'l Fingnce FEGH[}' £ [FD%% = F 5 FOeTEp-Ml £ DO - T 50 BT p-20
Financiryg facility for renewable snsrgy prégdclis SO0 VA k) T 0o - 00 AN w7
Termgorary Economic Ralinence Facilly b0 rAprd 1.00% T
Refinancing Faciity for Modernization of (SME=) 2 Hon 13- din- 24 1.0 12 fan- 26
Refmance ard Credil Guaranbse Schame 0.00% L - {28
faf Wamen Enffepesanaund
Wilorking capital Refmace scheme e 25 Bep I 1w Tl - i
Repurchase agraemant barrowmge 10 B35, T-danas =
Ceher Borrowings (securned)
Repurchagse sgreermant barowngs 11 L-san 25 1050k - Lo 25
Unsecuned
Cail Bormowings 1125 Ioban 26 -
12 K- 1 IR0% FrEs o

Bini muagal borrawng

Thaae represent amauni payabie to Bankens Eculty Lim&ad (under igudation) on accaunt af eounber retsivabis fhidm
Inbardsia Leasing Lirvited (nobe 15.1) ang camas no matk-up

2025 2024
ssasmeas Rupges in 000 mesme

i!%

Particulars of bomowings with respect to Currenciss

In local curnency 42,474 723
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DEFOSITS AND | =i || 203
OTHER ACCOUNTS In Local in Foregn Tonsl n Losal fri Foresgn Teasi
| Cumency EurBncine CSurrey Cairancan
wranes Rupaes n'06
Cusiamarns
Crven degodis TH.471 AR ; “anT TG =g | i 2o03nz |
Eavings oapouis 2. 89T 0850 e S 2. T8 3T L ETE S8
Term depcails 1,538,133 SR E4AT a0 3.17E 545 SREIE 44T
T - magn e call| cepoait 13830 . L - o 13§
F1. 160 404 174373213 1G4 397 . BEG HRDEG, TED 1545 21 FRE202 341
Finaac sl Inibbubcrm
Clarey: depusis =R ASD LN R | 5A7 EAN. i
Zavirgs dapoaiis 4.1884T# 3T8.324 ITe32e
Term daposiy 20 32,50 122525
Cmaiy Fone- 10,1 1) 1,8TE AR 1078, 543 a 107A 84%
0,134 E.E 1857 M5 1EIL 6%
1igi Anan 11'4l i i 5 ?ﬁ’ 'I:ili' [ EE iE IEF 47T TR
2025 2024
Compasition of deposits Rupess in 100 ——-——
- Irdiaduiale 20,552,910 15,644, 155
- Governmert (Federal and Provincial) 11,888 662 17,083, 622
Publizc sechar entities 2,642 154 &28T TN
- Banking companias 811 1,076 535 1076 543
- Maon-tansing inancial insthdions B, 252 364 562,700
- Privale gestar 73,544 03T B&8,277 031

182 "FI'!EEW' Fobe 141, G

Thig includes deposit amourting to Bs. 1078 636 milkon (Cecember 31, 2024 B, 1.076.643 million) from Saud
Matianal Bank - a refated party

This includes aligicie daposits cOVErsd wnder INSURANCE ArTERg@MEnts amaunling bo Bs. 32520 million (2024 Ry
28 544 million].

2025 Z024
LEASE LIABILITIES Rugsess in 00} —--—
Cutstanding armaunt at the skar of the year 1,892,718 1,475,637
dddifions cuning the yvear 1,702,733 BOG, TSY
Lease paymants inclsdng infenast (E13,078) (476, 18T
Inmras expansa I23A50 A 0G
Leass fErminalion [93.681) L1186, 485
Cubtstanding amount at tha and of tha year 3,506 B61 1,692,718

Contraciual maiurity of Lakbilities

Anor-term lease Fabililes - within ana year 193 463 A4S
Long-term lease liabii=s:
119 & yoars 1,313,037 245 954
Sin 10 yaars T, 700 03T 1.5868 345

Toila! gl the year snd 3,206 861 1892718

SUBORDINATED DEBT

Term Finanoe Cortificates {TFCs) - Unseourad M _-!EEEEE;

[0 samcurs Fupeas & 050 maltan

M Warch 232!

Ry SRl Wewrh 2031

Sain; A

Frohl gayren figguescy Sami - anraially

s B 5 - 103 Mo DR 1 Bis and | 238 month, 48 2% asch

Mg Faganle s morinly ol b neniis WELH pus 1 055

Tal opion Tin 01 H1e hivm prses wih 200 SO0 GpEoeE

s ikih R Kty gralid nor prccapal may S0 padd @ such paymenta vl meutl m sharial n the Back's MEnmmem

i Cagrdil Reguraran | S0A 5 or Capial ddeyuacy SmacCaR"
Th dswmee] wil be b 10 (055 Jsrpion and | of Bny oher requTEmErls e SEF R feaal |
Ceofal Rues. pon Fe cooarence of 4 Pent of er-vaislly @aam 28 daload oy BB Bosai il Cepma

g R i Prube GBI ay ul Ha spties, Tl 000 perminanily oomens the TFCE inlo oamman, ghanes of the G2
|t b ap] wnd ot Pise B s iy el O |BANET parkaly of in full)
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Hote 20625 2024
OTHER LLASILITIES snmemnns upees in "D ———
Masteup § nelurn £ inberest payable
- in lpoak guerenoy 1,723,458 2249 477
= in fareign currences 55,358 B50.532
Acorusd aspensas ATT B0 1,176,967
Aecrual for WWSF ZFO526 235470
Acceplances 1,340,181 1,243,126
Payable agasinst purchasa of equify invastnant - B2, Bdd
Drividemnds payabie 2B 104 28,187
Lnclmmed divedends 3361 3.351
Provdeiagen for Bmeation - nel Ti5 246 443 A0R
Mark o market loss on foreard foresgn axchange conracks 1,229,380 3T0.755
Credil loss alloeanca | provision aganst off-bafanoe sheat cbligatians 211 138,083 138,703
Secunty daposile agans| lease 27871 27,825
ATH aatfiemeant account 51,423 B15,253
Ofemag 237,211 108 058
—gEEeri  GOELATE
Eradit loss allowanca § provision against aff-balarce sheet obligations
CDpaning balance 138,103 172, TdE
IFRS % transiBon impact - 47 452
Charge for the year SE0 =
Revarsals far the yaar = (B2, 1E0)
QEn (82 135}
Clasing balance 2113 130053 138, 105
This inchudes

A provision of B 71,124 milion (2024 Bs 71,134 mitson) made in respecy ol wo counier gueraniess smounting o Rs
71,9348 millign izsusd by Crescent Itvesiment Bank Linsed, an amalgamated enddy, an behalf of Mr. Reyaz Shah
favoring Prvatzation Commission of Pakistan (PC) The PC hed syvokedicaiied for paymant of both the guarantees
pricd In thiir expiry date. Howeyer M Reyez Shefi had obtained stay order for paymients against the guaranhees an he
greunds that the guarsniees ware cordibona! and fhe conddion had nal been mel Subsesuenty, the PC fled B suil
aganst Faysal Bank Liriked and Al-Beraka lslemic Bank, the gusrantass is5uing banks, againsl counter guasranzes of
the amalgamated eniity, in the Labore High Courl under e Privelzation Commission Ordinanca, 2000 for paymant
againat the guaraniees. The case @ =il pending for decision. &5 3 mater of prudence, ful prevaion of R 79134
rmilign (024 1 134 million) was madé by e amagamaed enlity in respact of g marer, which 5 being mantained

& provision of Re 48 million (2024: R= 48 million) = respect of a freud and forgeny claim. The matiar s slill undas
investigation and & sub judice, The managenent 5 confidan] (ke the case will be seiled in fevaur of ihe Ban,
However, a5 a mates of prodence. & pravison kes Deen netained in the financisl siammeants.

SHARE CAPITAL

Avthorized copital
2028 2024 2035 2024
meee B F Of BRAFEE —aeee smanee RUP0ES 0 J0R reees
1,500,000 000 1,603 000,000 Oirdinary ahares of R=. 10esch m 15000 D20
e ———
Issued, subscribed and pald-up capital
2025 2024 2026 2024
wane Mpmibor of §hares —ese —— E'LI'FIHI im D00 asaana
Drdinary shargs
BE3.317,458 BAAZ1T 458  Fully pesd in cash B.833.175 6833 175

1249212

1%&11:
10 T 1008 587

124,921,190 124.921.150

~T 05 F9B B4 T 108 138 BiE

Issued for congidenalion other tham cash




22,21 Shares held by related parties of the Bank

23

4.2

2421

Directors, thedr spousas and minor chikdran
Kir, Haliz Mahammead Yousal
WMa Zesbs Andan
Mr. Shafgoat Ahmed
Wir, Javed Kunaighi

Assopiated Companses, undertakings and related parties
Saudi Natiznal Bare (SMA)

SURPLUS [{DEFECIT) ON REVALUATION OF ASSETS

Surplus ! {deficit) on revaluaton of:
- Secuntes measared al FYOCi-Dabl
- Beaurilies measured at FUDC-Equily

Deferred tax on surplus § (deficiy on rewaieation of:
- Fmcuries messured &l FYOC-Deibl
- Becurilies measured al FYOCH-Equity

CONTINGENZIES AND COMMITMENTS

= Guararbaas
- Commmimants
- Cther contngant liahiltiss

Guarantoes

Finarcial guaraniess
Parommanca guaranises
Criher guaranieas

Commilments

Documentary credits and sheri-term trade-roiaied ransactions
- lBtlEs OF Creil

- farward foreign exchange conyacks
- foresard governmant securtas | equity transacors

Commitmants for acguisition of:
- gperating properiy and sguipemeani
= inkangible assabx

Commitments in respect of farward lareign exchange contracts

Purchasza
Sale

q1

14

249
22
243

24,21
2403

2026 2024
Mumber of shares
100,500 1000, 500
1,000 f.000
500 '

i 00
102,000 1002 000
H52.040,53 B5T ah B39
EIMEEF A5 M?|531

2028 2024

S | YTV (L | pr—

Frg.295 (432 055,
14892 381,410

T4, 287 (LR
[405,237) 22467
(7. 796] (198,338}
(413,029 o]
181,258 {24 206;
B.224,308 G L
245 473 890 15006ET 22
1.2,086.011 4,832 E7S
26:5_ 783,200 162 462 BO03
1,312,298 1446194
5,997,750 4.8400,137
B14.250 -]
8,224,308 BT 506
1392 084 1.%30.138
197,666,285 138, 30E 058
44,132,756 1%, 008 Ban
241795042 148 FHE G
148477 62 454
135 387 81,936
280,854 114,330
245 473 890 150,681.222
104,117,518 0. TE3EN
93,648, 368 B4 524 50

137 G6E, FRE 135,308,098
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2025 2024

24.2 .7 Gommitmenis in respect of forward govemment e FOLIPEEE B0 O -
securities | equily transactions

Purchaze 4.3 6%4a 088 12 710 436
Sake 11B5667 218 a0
4.1 3L 750 12 528 Bk

Mota 2028 2024
243 Diher contingent liabilities ———e- Rupaas in ‘000 -
Conbogencies i respact of Wxalion 24.3.1 1,601,544 1,801,544
Claima against the Bank not acknowiedged |9 debt 24.3.2 10,484 467 35.332.339
12088011 i T

2411 Centingencies in respect of taxation

Presently, tha Bank & camesting faxation mewes &1 vanous appeflale farums. The disalowances in respect of a Aember o
Bssassment years have been decided ! sgt sside by vanous appsllate authoaties for re-assessmant whilke the appeals filed
by the Bank and tax deganment in respect of the remaining assessmant years g currenily pending. Based on tha
professional adwves feceived from Bk addisors. e menegemanl & confidant that the eventisal cutioma of Ehs
pioremantioned matiers will be in favour of the Baenk. Accordingly, no provigion hag been made m ihees finanzial
shalaments in espect of (ke balow manticned deamands sggregating As: 1 B0 544 milkon {December 51, 2024 Hs
1,801 544 million) ramed by the tax suthonites as the meanagement in consultation with Bank's tax counsel baliaves that the
matiers will be dacided im Bank's favar The gatails of hese demands are 22 bllves

Tha Faderal Board ol Ravenua (FER} has raised an arstrary aggregade damand ol Rs, 60.987 malan (Decembsar 379,
2024 R 50.961 millipn) o tha assassimant years 2001-02 and 2002-0% o account of man-dedisciion of 16 on profil peid
wnges pertlfobs manogemen ssheme. Thie FER has @sa ralked arbdmry apggrogate demand of Rs. 525.554 milicn
Dacember 31 2024 Bs 525 554 million) fot sssessman) years 2009-02. 200203 and fax yaar 2008 on account of
taxabifity of invastment hanks as banking companies and taxation of dwedend ncame &5 normel Banking insome and
cengn olber fems The aforementoned demand relsies fo panding assesemants of the Bank and amalgamaied anlily
namey Crascen] Inwestment Bank Limifed

Tha FBR has alsa raised an arbilrary aggregats demand of B3 20.0652 milkan (Decamber 31, 2024 Rs 25052 milion] for
the assessmert years 2009 2090 & 2011 en sccaun] of Faderal Exciae Duby. Further, the FBR has raised arbitrary
Bagragats demand of Rs 5458 million (Cecamber 37, 2024 Rs. 5458 milion ) on acsound o monienng of wilhhakling
tawes Tor ihe tae waar 2014 Provecial Tax suthorites haee ssued grdars under Sindh Sales Taw on Seriees Aol 2071
and Purab Saks Tad o6 Sendoas Ast 2092 thershy cragting arbitrary aggragate dermand amounfing (o Be 132 milicn
Decamber 31 2024 Bs 1,32 millon) ke e yeas 2015, 815380 milkon (December 31, 2024 Rs. 15380 millian) for
the year 2096 end Rs.8.505 million (December 31, 2024 8505} for the year 2016-2017 respeciively, Federal Board of
Revenus has issued orders (o amend assessmenis for ax yass 2095, 2007, 2018, 2015, 2090, 2042 and 2023 raising
mrbiirary sggregale demands of Ra 64845 mdlon (Decamber 31, 2024 Rs 64845 milon), Rs. 527064 milicn
[Dacambar 31, 2024; Rs §37.084), Rs, 133374 milkon [Decembar 31, 2084 Rg 133,374 milkan}. Re 177 117 milicn
[Decembar 31, 2024, Be 177117 milion), Rs 4 784 million (Decambar 31 2024 Ra, £.734 malban), Ba 41.00 mulion
(Decamber 31 2004, Re41.01 million) and Re.5.980 milkan (Dacembar 31, 2024: § 980 respocively

24.3.2 Claims against the Bank not acknowledged as debt

These represent various cases filed mqainst ihe Banw for recovery of darmages | setlieneand o deposil bolances by vangus
parties. Manpgemant balavan tet the pessisility of any cutcoma against tha Bank is mmale and accardingly ne praviaion
has BEen mads in hete linancial siglemsnis
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MARK-UP | RETURMN { INTEREST EARMNELD

Cin

B Losns and edvances

By Invesimonks

Bl Lendings io financisd instiudicrs

di Halances with banks

gl  Onlslamic Maya Fakisian Cerlllicais

MARK-LP | RETURN ( INTEREST EXPENSED

oin
gi Deposis
b Bomowings

ch Finance coston lease lisoilly sgaenst rightof-lise BEsets
di  Coaslof forsign urrency SWaPE Bgainsl Feegn currancy Jepasits

#)  Subsrdnated deat

FEE AND COMBMISSION INCOME

Branch bankng customer eas

Consumer finance reiated fees

Credil nalnted faps

Dbt cand refated lees

Commession an irade

S TSR O JuBSanieas

Commission on cash management
Cammiasion on ramiliances inguding home remittances
Commissizn an bancassurance
Cammigskn an Maya Peiustan Cartificates
Oiheas

GAIN ON SECURITIES

HRealsad gain
Unrealised geen - maaswed at FVPL

Realsed gain on

Fadeal Government Securisas
Brares

Mel gain on linaneial agseis | llabilites measuned:

ALFWPL
Dezmnatad upon nilial racagaition
Mangabanly messurad al FWPL

Af FWOIC
Mas gainon financal assels measssnad al FVWOC) - Debl

Mote

18

281

2025

2024

S e 1 pe—

6,354,154 11,671,609
14,868 18T 16,184,210
235,806 B4 ErFa
60615 65 883
a7.824 224,105
22,111,696 EEI'.’EEI.EHE
B,011,463 15,054 552
B, 359,880 4 164,570
321,150 203,010
31,344 B71,615
602,518 1,160,475
15!51 2,155 21,354 529
55,448 50,742
44 558 BT
24,391 10,673
24,782 20,348
69,308 55 473
88,133 B3, 730
20,806 18 8559
78,682 G G54
4,230 5,175
11,845 12 EEE
4,153 4174
yilnm 365 063
TOE, 372 21224
67N 41
smalms 212258
454,206 158,581
44,076 53823
T2 212,214
351,550 113070
B, 731 41
361,290 1137111
448 813 R E
B0 103 12,355

E
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This amourt inclutes Employees Secial Sscunty & Refocalion Cosl.

Gender Pay Gap as on December 31, 2025
The mean and median pay for the women is around 72.03% and 84.78% lesser than that of men respectively.

2026 24

Donatices mace tunrg The @ar weess as follows: smmmes RUpnes in 00} ==
Thg Indus Hospilsl 2,100 el
Enaukal Ehanum Memarad Trist oon 2500
Akhaaat 1,700 FOa
This Keinay Canler Pot] Graduats Traming Insitide 1.500 1,780
fhe CHipens Foundatian 1,110 2 1E0
Patenis Aid Foundaton (JPMG) 1.040 2670
Kiran Foundahon 1040 1500
Fhe Layion Ranmatule Benevoleni Trus| 1,040 1003
Salmem Memcrml Mogpilal 1,000 "
Lirangs Trea Foundaion a0 14008
2005 Chidren’S Vilages Of Patistan 540 a0a
Aja Khan Liniveraity 500 -
Labard - Lahore Bissingss Haseckaion for Rehabidiation af the Disabled iieta) -
Andam Trust 330 -
Pink Riinon Pakskan kil K [11]
Kanechi Dhown Sndrome Program (KOSP) Fa] aEd
Véarid Vilss Fund for Maure-Patistan 2ud 1,100
Banjan Magar Putilic Educatian Trisl - 1004
Cand Wislfana Sweraness Foundadion - Ana
PERS - Pakisian Eye Bank Saciely - G0
Foshr Trusl - A5
Hiunar Feandaban - 540
The Red Cesoam - 500
MALE - Mane Adeloide Leprosy Centre - 450

15“!! 1.830
Faane of the direciors, executives and 1heir spouses biad sy Rleresl n (ke dongas.
fditors’ remunoration
Siatulany audil fae 10,000 & 861
Fag for naviave of the half yaar inanceal salemanis 3,000 705
Hpacial caridicalicns and ofars 2.FeE 4 GAR

15,286 13814
Oui-of-pochet eapenees 1,490 1,256
Sinch sales tax on sevices 1,336 1.213

16,032 15,382

———i T

WORKEHS' WELFARE FUND

Lindes The Warkars' Wellars Ordinance 1871 Bia Eank hiag accraed Workars' Walfere Furd a8 2% of proft befoie lax a5 per
lhan finaicial slabamanis or dectred mcome as pef Be incoms e reluin, whichavar & nigrses

The Bank has made Tull pravision ol Workers” Waelfars Fund based an profi far the respeciae years.

Thie Supreme Sourl ¢f Palgaian vide ¢35 order datad Movember 1 2016 has held thal the amendmacts mads in the s
Introduicad by $e Fadersl Govesniman for the ey af Workers' Welare Fund wers nol wdul. The Federa Board of Revenoa
tas fied roview pelilions agans! this andereanich are cumeniy perding

Legal alvice clEamed on B matier indcatEs thal consequent to Mling ol hese review peliions, The pdgemenl mey nal
curroniy b ircaled ps concluaive, Ascondingly. iha Bank maniains is proviston in respect of WiFE

2025 2034
e Ruapers in H00 e
Workers' WeHane Fund 1,056 55.000
OTHER CHARGES
Pamallies wnpased by State Bank O Pehistan 330 -
Fangiies smposad by Pasistan Stack Exchange = ZB0

350 =80




OTHER INCOME

Gan an SAle ol propedy and equipmen
Gian onre-messwemant of Ease Rty
Fgr on propeny

thers

OFPERATING EXPENSES

Total compensabion expanse

Property expenseo

Renl and la=es

gudantln

LHikfies cosl

Epcuréy {including guards)

Fepar z2nd manienarce (induding @niorial charpes)
Dprecmasian on oramid finsd aesals

Deprecatan an right of use assels

Infoarmation tachnolegy axpanaes
Software mainfanance

Hardware mairtenance
Deprecadnan

AiMorigaiog

Malacck chargas

MR AMNCE

Dthar spoTating sxpensas
Dweidpre” teas and allrwances

Lagsl and profeseional charges
Trawsiling. coreyanca and offcial enleramman

Champes pad o Cenfral Deposilery Campary of PakElan Lrrded and NIFT
ke Lry Ry

Deprecitian

Traming and developmeni

Pasiage mnd courier chames
Commainicatian

Sealinrsry B0 peniing

Bepair and mainlenancs

surance

Parkating. acverlisamean and pulicly
Fes commindion and brabarsgs pad
Dpnations

Sudilors remirsralion

J&harg

Total compensation cxponse

feas and alowances sic
Banagerial rermuneralion
i) Fimed
m} Wariable
al which
g} Cash bonis | ewards B
&) Incontive paymants
Croninbution 1o defred conbritnon Plan
Reni & houss manbanance
Utilibes
Medcad
Cooweyancs | kel | alioweance
Eta¥ msurgncs
Llub membarship
Caher support stall salaries
Leawve fare nssistence
Cribers

Slaf loars - noliongl ol
Grang Taolkad

31

Haode 2025 2024
B T T i R
16,560 1,780
42,418 20,840
8,224 B.385
161 5
53,824 34,027
301 3,509,218 2,683,043
41 436 48, 355
2,444 3,084
172,104 192,585
162,931 123,040
109,723 103,370
42 18,902 15,630
iz 286, 758 310644
01,466 THT, 228
B05.454 404,540 |
80,518 65,534
128,518 93,432
141,154 £13,782
258,147 88,097
1 GRS
1,125,644 BEE. 31
FTRET] BE 540
72,574 G344
132,188 HEATE
27,699 21,206
1TH 545 1MZa
24,657 11,309
8,518 5133
25 867 27,738
4617 B2 Gy
B4.518 B0
66,015 55380
34,268 &7,101
0,160 61,700
0.7 15,500 21,920
¥ 14,032 16,382
52,304 20,783
954,636 B50, 363
1. - 1 | —r =
o7 84 34 20
159,000 50000
1,995 LR
75,438 75,845
435,601 421070
B7.64% BaEET
97,644 03 553
LLONTE 353788
81,710 61,564
8,745 TATE
123,653 11T
%11 2073 e
2387.049 7 SEE G4
121,218 114053
ZE08,215 e
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341

361

48

30

CREDIT LOSS ALLOWAMNCE & WRITE OFFS - NET

Credit loss allowance against cash and balapce with reasury banks
Credit loss sllowancs against balance with oiher banks

Credil loss allowndg againsl endings 10 inandial nsiutions
Credit loss allowance for diminution in the value of mvestments
Credit loss allowance against loans and advences

Fixad asaats writban-off

Recovary of wattan off / charged off bad dekis

Credit loss allowancs sgainst off-balance shaet obkgations

TAXATION

Current
Priar yaars
Dafarrad

Relationship bebwaan taa sapense and accounting profit

Frofil before taxstion
Agd: plhar rxpenss - Iml:,r

Efiecis of

- Tax caeulated a1 the apglicabla rate of 43% (2024: 44%)
- Super tax st applicable rate of 1056 (2024: 1006}

- Effect of rate changs on deferred tas asset

- Permanent diferences

- Prior years (net of releted deferrad f2x)

- Crinars

Tax charga for the year

EARNINGS PER SHARE - BASIC & DILUTED

Profit for the year

Weighted average number of ordinary shares

Basic and dilvied eamings pee sharg

Nate 2025 2024
ks Hupgag 15y "000 sesmenns
2 BE8 -
[Z,Z¥3) {18035
17 -
432 {181) (2313
106 Bd4 DE4 1.B43 276
1,462 =3 Ji]
(3,513) :
211 oD B2 125)
B3, 554 1,767 845
TaT B4d 1,267 870
234,055 .
203,38 (BT ATE)
B28,563 850 34
1,565,B17 1,540 724
= 354 000
1,555 847 1.8903 724
6E9.001 8337 B39
155 582 190,372
= (186 .5593)
19.628 151
4014 *
{9.876] 11 0750
iiﬂliﬁ HEGIEEIE
TiTiHE 888 332
Humber of shares
‘IIMEIEHEEH 1.008 238 648
Rupeaes
0.72 .64
ST TERY

Cikded eamings per share has nol been presented separataly as the Bank does rol have any convertible

instrumants i issue,

CASH AMD CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and batanoas with treasuery banks
Balances with othar banks
Lendings to financial instititions

Mot 2025 2024
———--- Rupees In '000 --------
5] 9.632,990 8210300
) 818,147 1.387.5M
] 1455 983 -
11,851,120 10.5677.814
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35,1 Reconciliagtion of movement of liabilities o cash fows arising from inancing activities

7

T |

Balants 85 @t Januasy 0F,

Changes from Financing cash flows

Principal repayment of cabt sacurises

Markup pavment on fabt secuntas

Paymeed of leasa iability agairs)
raghi-af-uEe-aRsaEls

Devidend Faid

Tolad changes from financing cash fiows

Limbility related
- Cash basad
- o cxsh basea

Todal hanilby reftated pahar chenges

Tois equity raleted other Changes

Balamce as at Demsambar 31

Balance 84 At Janwary 01,

Chamges from Financing cash flows
Printpsl rapayment of dalil securilies
Meriup paymant on delit sacuriles
Fayment of lease liabdity pgeinst
righl-el-uge-agsals

Dividand Pad
Taia changes fram Enancirg cash fows

Liabifity ralatod

Chamgas in Other Habilities

- Cath hased

- Mon cesh besad

Total kabdity ralsed olher changes
Tolsl eguty relaled other changeas

Ealance as a6l Dacember 31

ETAFF STRENGTH

Farmaneni
Conrachig

Bank's cwri 52af strengih &l ihe end of ihe year

1026
Liabilities
Eub-
Loase Othier Telel
ordimated !
liahilities liakbikiriss
loan
£ OLE 000 1.80F T8 & EEF BTE 13853 5601
{2,000) - + (2,000
: - (BT 429 ) | BOT 421
3 818375 - (816 07E]
. - {83} {B3]
|2,000% |E1B 378} (BOT S04} (1427 563)
- - (1,348,249} (1.2498.341)
. 1.682222 BATSA4 || 2616766
- 1.532.223 (361797 1670425
000, _SGRET __ SWREETI TAGOEASE
2024
Liatlilies
5““’“"“"“ Lemee o ke
lomn limbilibes I
4,995 000 1478827 9173430 15644 05T
24003 - - {000
MBS AR 41,182 450)
" {478, 18T} (476, 187)
% ¥ (3] [35)
i2 0053 (4FEET) B SEY)  (1.BET.T10)
3 . I[ (330837 |[  ¢330,837)
2 EQ3. 278 {6E3,085) 208,133
B, 2TE £1.0718,0%2) (122, T54)
R 7 43853503
4'=' M AL TR 13,850 559
A02E 2024
{NUMEBGr] ssssmmmm
638 G448
7 144
L TH] e

In- agditen ba the abowe. 148 (2024 143) employess o QUIBOUTCING BBNVICAS COMpanEs wire assigned o ihe
Bank as at the end of ihe year fo perform services other than guarding ard jandanal sanscas

DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN

The Bank cparabes 8 cantrizutony provigend lund plan for 784 employess {2024; 723 emplayses). Boih emplayer
ard empiopess conibute B 33% (2024 8.32%) of (he basic salaries o the fund every mont. The epase

changed in respect of this banefil is dissiagsd in noba 30 to thesa financial stalemens
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COMPEREATION OF MRECTORS AND KEY BMANAGEMENT FERSDNNEL

0TS
Exeretag
. By Other Watariad
Chavman St Hbm:’ cIn _” Maragemeri || Rk Takensl
i sded) Pamarnal Gontolier
CED)
R — YT T —
Fess anc afowsnices eic 3,840 - a1, TED - . .
Manaaerial remeneration
il Fred - . E EF AL §5.99) 226102
i) Cash Bamia ¢ Bwarde - - = TT.0ED 83,003 8,719
il Bncentve: Faymeni . " - - - &85
Certibution 1o dalinad conlrbulion pan = - - ZETE 1,163 18,402
Rgr} ang figise iman e rs Fl 2 . 14468 30637 100,544
L 3 s . 1z LS 13410
acheal a - - 3.2 B.595 22410
Cenvayanca @ Figd = - . 2,064 11,200 ad 054
Leawe fare assistance - - - - - s
Car sliwanis - - - 11,507 24,831 60,402
Onie Tieno Prymant {Irfatisn sllowansa) 5 i i > . "
Tohal 5EM < 41,760 146 701 F77 541
Mumber of Pesans 1 - _“!_-I_
T T T DT
plar ]
Execuinve
iy Cabar Mmenial
Chaisan || Dometers | |HonSawsulhon) | PSSl || Management | | Rk Takesi
Pamaraal Coningllar
CED)
P 111 L1 = s
Fieas and alidwances eic. §.240 - Sz 2 c L
Manageral remunesation
1p Fied - - - 24 545 14ac,mas 2N A2
) Casn Borws ! SAwards - A7.6oa 104,300 100 B30
1K) Incamive @ayment - - - . a1l
Conlibaalad [ Salingd soriribulicn gian - - 2,45 £.380 AT 587
Rl A Ncess i ndan anca . 11,045 45,318 $5084
LiFlies: ] - - 2455 1G0T .1
FSed il - - - 2,455 1007 21,132
Convoyance ! Fual . - - 1,430 14,123 av2hn
Leave e assistarce - - - - : .
Coar sl msen oo ] - - 8.758 ALERS 65015
O Tima Paymang {infalion slcwanca) - . - ] = ;
Toial Bael . 52,320 EIEEH 330,567 R
Misrribioe oF Parasie e T 7 i 3

* Mr, Ahmed Targ Arsm eaygned a8 Presdan & CED of the Bank on May 21, 2025, Mr. Rashid Jahangir was sppeinied s Acling
Frasitan] & TEQ of 1hie Bank with afiec] irom May 22, 2023

“Delalis ol non-esecuiiee directons who retied, resgned o ywens ngaly sppsnied Pave Deen manlioned in Mole 35.2
Tha teem “Hew Managamanl Personnal means e tallweg funciional responsbilibes:

fah Bey execullve or kiey sxeculive, acing 83 second to CECL By whataver name calked, and ircluding the Chief Cperateg OMcer
|CCar anad Drespuiy Managing Cirecior

k- Ay axacubiva or kay eoecutive reporing direclly fo the CED ¢ Pragigen oF Tie gargon mendioned n (@} above

The 1erms Dweclars | Exscuiye Dwaclers ¢ Mon-Executve Qineciors, CEQ and Wey Execulives héwe S4iMe meaning A5 safngd in
Prudeniial Raguiations (PR5) for Corparate ard Commerciad Bankmg, For ine puippsa of inese disclosires Key Managemend Pesoane
also indute Execulhves wha hawe direst reponng lins o the Presdent / CED or BoD o its Commithess.

Thi term Watesial Bisk Taser and Tolerial Fisk Sordrolls hdve ha fama maaning &6 detinad 0 revised I;Uhﬂﬂi'ﬂﬂ o rEmLEE AT
practcs meuad Ty e 518t Bank of Pakistan wde BPRD creular Mo, 7 of 2007

3.1 The Chef Evsores OMcer s proeadsd willy Phie wse af Bans mainlased cor
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40.1

FRIR VALUE MEASLIREMENTS

Fair waise measuremant defines far vaue as the proe hat would ba recevad fram the sele ol an eesal o paid 10 rarshar a
baizility in an orderdy fransachon bebasen moarkst parboipants at the measuremant dofa. The fair value of quoted securtiag ol
thar those classifiad as amartiesd cost = based on quoted market price. Ousied debl securilies classfed as amarfised cost
are camiad Bl cost Tha fair vake of unguoied squity secunbes. othar than Fvestments in associaes and subsidiary, is
determmined on the bagis ol vaualion melhodologes. Tha fair value of unguoisd debd securities, fizad berm loans, ofher ss5eis.
other liabiltis, fwed term deposits and borowings cannat ba caloulated with sufficient reliabdity dus fo tha sbsence of a
current and ackive market jor these agseds and labilibes and relisbls deia ragarding market rabes for smilar nsruments,

In the cpirian of the mansgemand. §ie fair value of the emening rarciel axsals ard liabilies are not sgnilicanth’ dilfarnt
from their casrying values sinoca thesa are aither shori<lem i mature or. in the cese of customes lsans and deposils. are
fraquartly mpricsd

Fair valug of financial assets

Thie Bank measures fair values usng the following far salee hiefarchy thal rilecis e signiicenca of e npuls used in
making the measrmenis

Lewal 1 Fair value measuemanis using quated pnoes dunsdiusied | in aslive matkats far idantizal assats or liznildes

Level 2 Fair value measuremens using npuls other than guoled prcas ncheded wilhin Laval 1 thal afe obaervasie for ihe
assals or liahilty, sihar deecty (i g &5 prices) ar indinecly (Le, derdved from pricea),

Lenwal 3 Fair valus messuramsenls using npol for 1he aseel or Bability thaf are nof besed on chservable market data {Le.
urpisAreable nputsl

Tne ieble Delw analses fingncal meirumenls measured ai the and of the reponing paripd by e Igvel in the fair value
hierarchy wmito which the far value rmessurement is categarised:

LIP3 ]
Lot || Lew2 || Lowd || Tels
O Balanss shpal frarcial gy B T 1 T LUK L T T
Firsancial dusesm - rspsured of fai wilug
Frepkimgnth
FEim Goegnmei SerriEi : 1EAAD T . TIRAB BT
Shawr - gied 1,FB733 - . 1Az
Marramrromn [ Zeconsey . ; ~ :
Franclal assas - decloses but ret neasured of fak value
IFPETIENG - A3 DOVDYTITET 200 Coeuri b 3 = &
CFT. by gl o ghesri Magen g gl gl masvis - meggund &5 lair yakie
Forward porchase of foreg e astiange " P1LE15.244) ' (R219.344)
Fonead sae o foreg s aoch o - ¥4 1B 4 FI448E
o]
Leveit || ieedd || leewid || Totsl
O palanay ghpsl fraedial mgpmarlg B . I
Frarclal asses - measured o firaalio
IFPREIENE
Fooerd Do iR mEn] S - BT TG EEE : BT Tl BED
Shases - imiat 150 S . . |30 855
Pk s e Spcariber MB.TE) DL el
Firclil dsers - duchiaar Bul pel fidasunsd of Tk vl
Ivasimaniz - ase-povaTTeeT dobl socinias ORI e R

CFhaksrce shes] Reancial sty mens - re red & lale vakis
Forwrd prarchass of Fonogn Eecmangn | TR TS iy Bk
Frorwand e ol firegrs socammge kLl L) 1 o
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#1.1

(0

The Bank's policy & bo recognise bansfedss into and ouwt of the differant fair valye hiearchy levels ai the dabe the ewen| or
chasgs In clrowrslances thal causad (ha tanslar octured, Thare ware o ransters batwaen Evels 1 and 2 during the year

ial Financial inglrements i level 4

Financial insrresmanis ncluded in leved ¥ cempess of invesiments in sed odinary shanes.

(b Financial insiruments in vel 2

Fimancial instruments included n level 2 comprses of Marke? Treasury Bils and Pakistan investmean] Bands &8 81 year &0,
Las] year lpvel 2 insiurmans alsa comprised of Team finance cernficates ard Sukuks

Yakuation lechnigues and inputs used in determminatson of fair values within level 7 and 2

g

Pakaian lveasimant Borus / Markat
Treasury B

Farken Treaaury DA Ara Oerwnn e e PRoW]
3 (H:-ul.nl-rl |:|a;|:|| Floating raie Pifls ans revalued using PKFRY rales Thess raies dencde an
; ' H‘lnedn' mu:ﬂ:leﬂlm.'l:mlar:

Tidly Pamd-um Lules ardinary sname,

Term financs cethficaiss and Sukuks

Forsamd famigr sechange cortracts

BT A G e o alag and conparalia pokoks ana
slued on e bass of ailable S uﬂﬂwu

valkue hias been desermened by interpaiaing T mad roles snouncsd oy e Blate Gark ol

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Sagmani Detais wiln respect 10 Busnass ACTivilies

Eramanidind of Profil dnd ke sioais
e e i profl

Wil dipremi| i - m|

Vian ek | miare ke ncorma
Todwd mroeee

Tisgrestl anecd papenises

Vi STQTETT OETEE AR
Tpisd gazampnn

Dol b ellcwpins
Frofit b

Eranamail & Faaak il PesiiEn
Casm 300 ogna balanoos:
L=

el et e Kl
Laegdingh b Inw o sudidubome.
AaRCan - PETTR
ideancies NN LETTTLERY
Ly

Tofal dssats

brromrm
[mpomdr and ofer acoounin
faizorinawd reb

Hodl min Ban et frrimiag
Dingiy

TetalRahEies

Eguty
Trital sepuity s kabisen

Cenlingaacisn ad comiminans

FEF)
Tabar
i o | pr— - Todai
Bnkirg || Banking :Emm
Pl g i TAED n
240070 M EMAN| 75T 46T ; A1
EIE TANAT .7 ) : -
241351 A% 55 114 : FXFIE )
158497 17 14818 2ITiTE C FI21.mM4
paRpEll (239638 T R TR 1 (R B ]
s i LT Y
TAmaE] snan R : |BS2EXT7)
517 51} 1 71, 185) . Hd154)
A 1H58,174) 1,700, 5 ¥ TSSEENT
— ______J
. 12538 T i 4S5
. i F, 0 50 . 147581 510
3 73 41 454 X {4 B 2
2 ; 180 ¢ 1808081
S4ET SAM2S 1144 . RIME ST
14 1,933 ; i w142
BT 781,124 14,195,201 i LR

Eﬁiﬂ §1,54,577 LR [MAMESH  MEMILTTE

5461 E - 45,741,298 : §2 260
ABDASETE FRTHMLEM 1,838 450 [RLE R RO H
- . 15140 1891

B 95343 ' BLERANT  RamESh -
[T1AF ] 1,158,541 1708 - 11515508
JRErEE MG ENIATE [AALEsE  EETRAEAEE
: - E, s . 1RSI

TREIEN RAMAT | WL (VIS SEEAGTTE
= 8 —

! LN 2 1,795,347 - LTI
——— —
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Fr
Waplesde Real laier
Hann Dol Maikiss ¢ Tobal
e T e T

Blateral ol Frof and W88 sl
i mvrie.p { relam) prod B [l il (RFC R F TR,
Iiar SOOI MRaRE - e g A EEE) i S T
N R | IR | Pk e 7 505 NPT B &7 - 158716
¥olal mroma B T T T T Efe
GrsgredT AT st (Ea TR TR R-RE] 111538000 BEITIE SR
Flan ey Sarerse akoc mon 5'!?&'-!."2-JI [t ] cHaET A3 -
Telal kepiniig (1TEEE| (AL | (813 ) : ETIE |
Credil loss sbowancs (9TH2 T [T 28T - {1797 )
Prode i i Ii?i.ﬁ A 2H 1.0 872 5 1557

—_— e e
Sttt f Finansial Paaelian
L2ah ard bank balasces 13505 3,1 A IGETT R
repEimEai - TS 4 . 1R EE 430
it k1 sy g i T AL {20 56
Leidinids 1 Nl sy boas - -
bk - R 51391 s 1HITH iy 1] SETM T
L - ReE-oRrieT g m0m 21343 o R
(ten 130151 51255 13750 VBT AT
Tedal BEsals mBaEd  ardnad [ T L
Bevirvisge TI05TaE 20 A5 AT I
Jeposils and niver aocoeniy ETIETY AT AM g - 10F 1417182
Cubyich royeedl i = 2 EE=h | 457 0
Y i BOCFTONG b1 D) IS - BATaSH (AR
Dheis Ly EF LR A A0S L rrh B
Totatiahsting “EBMEM WAGEE R 0TE  (AENm  EmCEN
Emprly . L7z a1
Toka aepally s  plelia THRALE. NAROE | Al gL | Hesasas

—_— . -
Laningencies and cammiTers L35H0TH - Lrargloo] - IE2 202

Sugrnent detabls with respect to geographical locations

The Bank does not have any, overseas operabons. tharmfore its enlire gecgraphical dispersion arises nside Pakislan

TRUST ACTIVITIES

The Bark commenly 3585 a5 2 tresteq and in oiber Tducary capaoty hal reaul n the holding ar plecing of assats on behalf of

individuats, frusi, retrement bensfil plans =nd ather instilufiors. Thass g@re nol a0t of (he Bank and, (sredong. ame nal
inaluged in the slatemant of finanzial posdion.

nun il B
Baariit Fald (Fak Vakie]
Cadwgary P akisan
Barkal re Emimm Wakel Trrsauy L -
Treamry Suwuba Tital L 3
Biis Baonos Faoerd it ] Pt ol
HFME r Lo
Hopaes iz "]
Cowpmiaba 6535 540 . - BERSFHD v . .
Fraplopss Funm : 40 004 : A 0 D ATa e gL
Ioiatumly LAIF AR ] &8 3D 1312 6 1 280 L | il
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Eank has related pary relationships with #s holding company, employes contribution plan, #& directors and kay
mEnagemeant peregnne|,

The Banks enlers imo Iransacting wilth re@ied panies in ihe ordinary courss of buginess and on subsmansally e
same berms ax lor comparable transacbons with pesson of similar standing. Sontributions o and accrualz n respect
of siaff refirement bencfits and other benefit plans are mede in acoordance with the 1grms of the contribution plan
Remuneration to the executives ! officers s detsrmined 0 accordanse with the ferms of their appaintment

Caontributons o the contribwinry provident fund schema are made = accordance with the terms of the coninbutian
plan. Remunaraiion to the Chief Exacutive Officer, direciors and key managemant parecnnel ara disclosed in nole 39
to these financial staltements and are detarmined in accardance with the terms of their appoinimand

Bey management personnel are those persons having authorby and responsibiity e panning, dirscing and
confrolling fhe acliviies of the Bank, The Bank considers & members of #s execulive leam. including the Chief
Executive Officar o be kay management parsonnel

Ceetails of transactons with related parties are given below:

| I Il EIH] |
Fiy rean agm- Ko ranage-
Parert  Direciors et heTRNW bt Dl reei t”"“' 'Hm”
pernens i pasr #

s LA I D] sssnansn e snmumInEnIUUENn TN

Blafidn'sl i & W ith o1 Ld2ds

= LUTET S00LH TR 113,45
Batwances
g esnm AL . ; g am
Afdkmn g The wi 16 AR + 1&TH
R dunieg o veal - 138 £ . . {28.445)
Ciagng caance = 1R P I
el trma e e Pl s EfLEnCEY = = s JED . . a 22T
Ofer Angpis
i e aeq i 1847 1847
Wlarh b ek e on i [oeeinn sarkamon aorons . M

LT t
e Leabilition
WA S 7t i Lar) 13 i g
Wk e ekl Fogd on Btword Krmpe Sashanon COAP RS - - - - P - - i
Depesils 3ad piter ooty
Taawng talaaod 10T 1540 A 77 10T %3 L1 na E
Rpoersed cuneg the oo H.438 137 RERRITE 1ERDEDS 541 A MR METH
e doang Fie vem -'1" b ||1 Eﬂ |E'£ﬁ - b} |'|.4-.':'.'IB€.!I_ RE] [ | ML 5EH L |
(g Bilanee Illiﬁﬂi IH"“I EH'I IFEHEN TR 543 154 kol 1 4278
Goskingeicies and Canmimarts
F-:lrﬂrli‘:rui'lmra:_ﬁ rrrbvEly [hoderal - cuesianang - e . !IESE
mcans
B gz e ! mieresi pomes 11§17 . ; . |1| ﬁ ;
Eapmius
Warbup | rator | S| pad : k1 L] LA Hi] 1051 11574
TTerEd N and benais LEL Rk - - 434 9 -
o e 45 550 - ]
BT ETEETE R rd = L
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Forex transactions during the year « Saudi Natonal Bank

2025
CURRENCY READY [ SFOT [ TON FORWARD
BLN | SELL auy SELL
L T L t————
AED 2334 - = -
ELIR S2.000 31,750 . 250
CEP 24 S1H) 11334 15{F -
s 441 583 76013 17,236
S0 TOA1E 1688 7RE 44878 T84
FER = R 2 >
Forex deals outstanding as at the year - Saudi Natienal Bank
. TOM
READY | SPOT [ FORWARD
Y BUY | SELL BUY |  SELL
Currency in ‘000
ELI - ; = -
LSO - - - -
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CAPITAL ADEQUACY, LEVERAGE RATID & LIQUIDITY REQUIREMENTS e s b 000 e
MEnimum Capital Requiremant (MER):
Pad-up capial et of icsses) 1I].EIE3EH" lgDBE.EIE-.'-'
Capital Adeguacy Rafio (CAR:
Elgitse Comman Equily Ter 1 (CET 1) Capstal 16317 082 14,742, 087
Eligitée fddionad Ter 1 (ADT 1) Capilal = -
Tatl Elighle Tier § Capisl 16,317.032 14742 057
Eligitde Tigr 2 Capitad 5870972 54834913
Tatal Eligihle Capital [ Teer 1 + Tier 2 22,164,004 20,236,005
Rk Weighted Azzsels (RWAS)
Credit Fims 55,253, 504 B4, 748 224
Markes Risk 9.675.665 8562 200
Ciperaioral Risk 16,207,859 15570 122
Totsi 31127073 A 5E3 35T
Camman Equiy Ter 1 Capltal Adegaacy raba 17 B 175375
Tizr 1 Capital Adegascy Ralio 17 G b i
2 355% ol = ril ]

Tatal Capital Adeguacy Fatio
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The oojective of managing cagial i i safeguard the Bank's abikty 1o canlinue &% a geing concern, o thal il coulg
conlinue o provide adequabe returns o sharehicéders by pricing procucis and services commensurately with the kBvel af
rish. | @ the policy of ihe Bank [ mainksin 3 sireog capils! base 4o as b maintain nvesion. cadilor and marked canfigence
ard to sustain futura dowelopmenst of the business. The mpact of the lavel of capital ¢n gharehodam’ aturn 5 aleo
recegneed and the Benk racognises the nesd o maintain a balance bebwean the ligher refums thal might be peasible with
greatsr geanng end the sdvartages and sacunty aflomded by & sound capital position

The Bank's Bogrd of Diractors arvd tha management i commiiod i mairtaning a ssund baarce bebween depoadors’
tatulity ard sharghalders’ furds 5o thaf cotmal capital | debt rat & mairiained. The aplimal capilal | dend ralio wHl provide

rascnbile aasurance o depesilors aboul sabely ard securily of ek funds and at ihe same time grevide iImpetus 1o the
managemant b imvest thar cepositors’ funds mbo proffable verlures withoul somprorresing the nek poolile of 1he Bank
Tha capital requiramant of the Bank has beern datermined based oo the projecied growth plan io be scheved in he rext
three fw fiva wears o all areas ol business operstions. Furbar, @ also fakes o sgcounl a road map lor Capilal
grtancemenl & direcied by e SBP vide le vanous cirgulers issuad from tme to ime

Tha Bank prapams an annual budget and five year glan for perpase al i growth map and fulee direction. Sotiom up
dpproach & usad 1o papare annual bedge! and detalled delberslions are held whis prepereg the five year plan. The
growih prespects takes inks cangderation prevailing esenomig ang pablical factors in Pakistan and abroad

The Banks ane nequired o maitlain Maimen Capilsl Requirsment (MCR| a2 pracsibad by the State Bank of Pakistan
fhnaugh its BED Circular Mo, 7 dated Apnl 15, 003 which required the menmum paid up capfal net of sccumulstad
nesesl 1o be reiad to Re 90 bdlion by tha vesr anded Decambar 31, 2013 Az at December 31, 2028 the Bari's Pasd up
Capial s fs 10082 bilion, In additien, the Benks are alko required v mainiam 8 minmum Caglial SAdequacy Ratie (CAR)
of 11 8 percant of thair risk weighied evposure. The Bank's CAR a8 af Decamber 31, X255 24.35 parcent (2024 23.85
parsenl) of da rigk waighbed exgoains.

The Bark calzulabes capital sdeguasy rabe lor cradi risk, makat rigk and oparatonal risk based vpen e recuirements
uncer the Basel Accord as per the gudeines issusd by the State Bank of Pakistan from time to time = this regard

WMaor credit risk’ in respect of onoand off-batance aheel exposwes are mainly Claans on Danks, cofporajes, retail
puslomers, residantial margages. Market nsk exposunes ane mainly in fued income securitms and lomigh sochangs Tha
Bark's potanlis! nex expasunss shall remain in iNeSs axpasure iypas

The Bank has 188en ints Bocount credit nsk, markat rsk, liquidiy rek and oparatmaral Ask when planning 18 assals

The cepitsl to nsk weightad asset ratic, calculated in accordance with SBP guielses on capital adequecy, under Bagal N
iredirment using SHaodardized Agpraach of Credi and Marked Risk and Bassc indicalor Spproach for Cperadional RSk s

praspied above
Z0ZE 2024
‘Hl.lj.liﬂ Bl "D =ssasa

Leverage Ratlo (LR}

Eligkle Tiar-1 Capital 16,317,032 14,742 037
Tois! Exprswes Z10.298.811 153,132 04
Lavarage Ratg I 05% 7 E3%
Liguidity Coverage Ratio [LCR);

T High Qualify Lguid Assats BO.DBZ 214 TN B0
Tl Met Cash Cubfows Z2. 700510 232 11,280
Liguedity Coverage Ratia 352 77% 333 01%
Mt Stable Funding Ratio (NSFR):

Tatal Availabiz Stable Funding 124, 582 327 124 645,554
Total Requred Stable Funding 54,818, 1440 47,171,124
Mat Stable Funding Fano 295.08% _ __pSagat

Full decioguie @ evalanls g hitps iwive samba.com peovenaesvsTnanciakreports.



RISK MANAGEMENT

Rigk can be d@sfined a8 o coerbination of e prabablity of a0 eesnt and 116 consaquancas. bn all yypes of undertakings.
ihare i= & potential lor evenls and consaquendas hat conslibule oppartunitas for panafit {upside) or threals fo success
[deenside), Rsk Maragemen! is inceasingly recagrsad as being concemed with bolk posfve snd negative aspects of
risk. Howpemar, as 3 mathar of prndance 11 is generally recagnised (a1 cansequencas are only nagatve and Ihesefone e
managemani of nek & focused on prevention and mikgation of harm

Tha types ano dagree of nsk an organisaticn may b asposed (o dapends upan ilS sine, compleoty in Bussness sclivilies,
volume ebc Lindass risks are assessed and measvred d wdll not be possibie b condral rEks, Futher, an accurals
amzpssmant of rek gves management 8 clesr view of 1he Bank's slarding and halps n decding future action péans,
Mianagernent of risk by banks in Pakistan g gowernsd by rules and regulstons sad by the State Bark of Pakistan n is
cegaCily &5 & Reguletr of e banks

Tha Bank mentams 8 dedicgtad Risk Management crganisstonal unil indapandart fram ary business and reporting
giresily o the Fresigant & CED through the Chief Credit Cffcar

The: Bank & expased 1o a number of rsks such a8 credil, maikel operabansl, quidity. &c The Board of Direcars is
ultimedely responsible for the fsk manogement functon. in ardar to find an appropriate batance babewesn riek and the
amsirad lavel of return, the Board has formed certain specidlised commsSess guch as Inlagralsd Risk Managermsani
Commitiee (IRMC), Managemant Credit Committes (MOC], Asset ang Liabiity Commities (ALCO} and Country Risk and
Compliance. Committes (CRCC) fo manaos hese arpas. These comeritiees ach wehin the Bank's averall pokcies and
Eoard calegated authoiities. Integrated Risk Management Commithss & & managemean comimilize which reveaws and
moalons nsks associeted wian actvilies of specfic areas Cawnry Risk and Complkance Commities Drovedes samion
managemeant aversight an all maieddal issues periainng 1o Opatabonal Risk and Comphancs, Thas Bosrd Rigk Cormmiling
pearseas the sk managament funchon, induding credil freks, maket risks., louidly nsks. and operabional reks thal can
cause lpsses (o the Bark, ta ensure appropeiale supenigion and governance of the risk management Linction

prrr—Trr— ! I Internal Audit
Iniegraied Fisk Managarment Couniry Risk Risk Ry
Managerreni Cradit Compmitsers and
Gurrtrnln-ae: Compliance

Commitiee

Riak Managamenl Groud

| Corporate Credil
1 Commarciall SREF)

Coasumar Rak

kst Fssh £ Middia
Cifice ! Basal

Opesaiional Risk

Credit Risk

Cradil rizk is e risk ol 1088 25 & regull of failure by a client or countepary 16 meel s confraciual obligations. In the
exisiing operations of $e bank, his sk s whanant o loans. commitments 13 lend and conlingent kakliles feuch as
Ietters of credil / guarantess), in certain iraded products and lending transaclions
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Thie bank saeks 1o MBnage it credit nel eposun: by ansuring mai fs casbomers mesl (ke mnenum sedit standands as
par the approved Cradll Policy and procedurss and Hhegugh diversification of lending aclivies ensurng thet ilhere is o
wundus canceniration all naks wen ndvdduals, of wenin graugs of cuslames in specdic iocabans or Dusinessas

Taking credit sk is eentral 1o lhe business tharefare ha Bank conbnualy and conslenty ssses588 and moniors thess
expasunes. The CIBG group is monitored Ihraugh the Management Credit Commitiee (MCC) which includes senior
members including Group Head CIBG, Ghief Gredit Dficer, ang Fresigent & CEQ!. Aa far as Credi Risk Management is
concamad, MECs responsibilives inciids

- Rawawing and appeowing ndiedial credit decsions with credit exposures up D the rmis delegated by he Board of
Directors The raview process include e ransaciion risk siruciurs, raling and clasg#cabon level

Tre barenl fatuig aof e fetal businEss waimants managemant of 8 large cusiomer base WwWilh dreersiied pooduct
porifchcs. Honce, & systam diven snvropment supplamanted By hamen dessan making and judgmant, asgacally in
ursiricured mankets = regarded as ihe best teal fo managing ek 6t largs, Gredit decsions ara faken =mg a proguct
piaiarm aporeach which inchedes laeal enviranment knoaledge. market compatibian, and currart best praclices

Loans and acgvances are classied as non-peroiming in accordence wilh e tima basad cniora specfied 0 the
Prudenliai Regulalions alangwith susjecive wigrmenial crilesa alss sppkcable for early dassification ¥ nasded, Provision
= made aganst loars and advances in stcardance wilh e Bank's poficies and guadelines provicdad by the State Sank of
Palcstan (SBF)

T Boarg Risk Committas (BRT) aso regulady monitars the overall fisk Portfalio al ihe Bank including Cradil, Markel
Liguidity, Cpe@tonal Risks and Compllance Risks

Thie approved proceduns dofine (he Classifed Credd procsss 1o 08 loliwed in ordar bo #stablsh 3 consishent approach
0 probiem recogniian, proiblem [abelng . femadial schon. lpan loss provisianing and tha intiation of cradit wote-oifs
Clear resparmsibililies are defined parigining to all pracesses that e reguirad bo be folowed, in order to have an eflaclive
remiedial management 581-up N ace.

A Remedial Ssset Commiltme campnsing Head of IRMD, Chal Credit Cificer, and Prasidant & CEQ, under the nilialve
al the Instilitonal Fermedal Manageman! Departreend. conducts regular raviews of ha clessified porticlio and also
recommends meovery Swirk-ouf plans, wanerd and weibe-ofa

Tha Bank follows & very sbingent lean loss reserve policy and as a resull the impared portfolic o the Bank 5 almost fully
provsEianed.

Pariculars of bank's E@'I-i-ﬁl'.‘arl'l on-balence shed! and off-balance sheet credit rsk in vanous sesions. are Hﬂﬂl}'ﬂ-ﬂ’d B
Tollowe

Lendings 1o financial institutions

Credit rige by public: | privabe secbor aross lendings Mai-parfanrming londings Crodit Inss allowssoe held

1NIs 034 2036 e B nas o
Rupoes w00 e

Frasie sscior 1,500,000 - - : 1r
7

Investmant in debt securitiss

e ik Ay Il Iy o Gross investmers Hz_ln;::mrr:rﬂ Crocit loss. allowanee held
025 7024 2025 2004 025 204
i e e e P O 0B S
Testie = =
Conskrugon F 00000 - - - 183
Finanzal . BELTT D - - s *
Fagsra Gowamman Secames ‘-'H-.'HII-EI!I'I'I - &

144,710,076 BETTT A0 v - -
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Credi risk by public I private secior Man-pertorming

Gross Invesiments

Credil lass sllowance held

immskmEgs
2008 Hra IV 204 ikl 0274
Flupsss. in 000
Pybix | Gorvenmmant M4 06ME 582 30 . .
Prismie - EED 300 L x "
11&!1!& :El o o) - - - -
Advances
S rhck: Wy Inhesacir iy ator Gross nowanGes Hon-porfamming sdvances Grodit lons sllowanss hold
2028 2E mar 2074 Foti] 024
e e e - Bupsses mn 00

TeEanile X0ATTETST 12 ORA430 1,498, 14] 1. 333, 3T 1, G006, 08T 1 42 550
Manidariuing 1S SERETT  PEOOT 115 5 G683,350 4, 1R7,518 5,320,357 4307 534
Charrics and phanrmaceulicaly 408 558 G20 a4 118,94 (R 155,510 167 433
Irdrviduala BASE04E 4TRSS Ja4,10 352870 7T 606 253,42
LT 1] 2 Tra 3,831,381 18,5510 18,980 BLE AR 2 RhE
Elechmonics and slacincal gpplancan 2,250 08 1,791,950 - - PER T ¥, ¥e2
Firar’ {alechiolph, QB wdil, sANIENy 1103414 1,505,032 159,944 153,048 162,158 163,678
Ciarlnucin 1397513 1489, 135 934,753 505 340 904,745 231 353
= S A2 133,499 - - 7,134
Saraces 3,135,148 1,880,400 331,904 3745, BDa 348 480 S5 48
Foatedar arad laather girmenis 16508 Bl 206 - - 3ATE 2 D47
Transget dlorsgs and commuyncaian 28353 LOTL T 475,652 475,832 481,657 £520.798
WEaESE A rebad 1hade [FET ) BT 134,954 e Bal 148,344 Tod s
CH mprketesg snd defingny " = = = 3
F i 17 Z 408 iTE. ROE . = = =
Paps ard alled $17.040 A8.4907 73,901 45,801 THAZE 45 (85
Ciinars %‘HE“ B, 408,715 1,083, T4 1. 754, 237 1,085,841 1851, 018

EFiH 15.!!'.5“ B iE.Bgi.iﬁ 10,0531 272

p— ¢

Crodi risk by public | prisate sacior

Gross sivances Hon-pedoiming sdvances

Eradit loss slinwancs Bl

ERFS ik HIZE oo BOZE FIET]
L LT L T K111 Ly I I 1 F ]
Pubke J Dovememe - - - - - -
Privala TIAG38T4  GE 20, 138 10, 77E,074 b2 045 0,80 2T 10051 273
T T =N W G 7+ 4.6 I < - S
Contingancies and Commitmanis
Cradi rink by nduriry snctar froe k] ana4d
——e—s Ruipacs (00001 ———-
Frnproad 242,001,514 148 230 ETE
IManufacieng 230 R3S 135185
Textil= 262053 1553158
Inssranca 173N 243 BEE 1Es
21 Mrhidrg ewdl Refrary 1,006, 738 LR
Sericns BR1 AE4 BeR &7
Chemical. Worcanis ang ghamracauicals G071 GEY A0 1TE
Consirucion A0k ATE 274 MG
Elchcsrets and sy 5l Apnipnoas a47 1k A%l BT
Camgni 366 551 e 2
Prags (aacingiyl, gas, wiakar and sndany 300,000
Aghisallig, bragry. Biuming s f5hng 234,679 13,51
TIANaDo, F167as S ehmmuifazalsn TaR.227 2243
Auiomabes o anspoiatan squapmeT 13,741 5. 23T
Sugar L0 10400
Wholeisa g retad trade 1,088 &0 hED
Paper s alked . 53,117
Cihers 15,071,530 ¥, Ta5 BAT
Z5E.TERA08 _VE.ed 603
Cradii risk by public [ privais saciar
Prvai=

265,783,200 152,452,503
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451.8 Concentration of Advances

45.1.51 The Bank's top 10 sxposwres on the tasiz of i@l (lunded and non-funded expasures), sggregsied o Fso11 05400
miicn (2024 Rs 10,7086 8972 millian} and ame as folloeing:

028 e
e RUpEes in '000 ccmem
Furmied TN ARS8 53
Mun Firred L8001 £,2110, 740
Tk Emposune ”IEE 10,105,973
45.1.5.2 The senchoned s ejainst these fop 10 ssposures sgpregated o Rs. 20 3E2365 million (2024 Hs 11,877 004

milkang.
45,1.5.3 This includes non-perfarming loans of Bs 1. 135 milion (2024:R8s.1.973), Cradil ioss: afowance maintasned aganst ihees

loars Is Bs. 1132 milion (2024 Re1.97%)

45.1.84 For ihe pupose of this nota, axposure means ouisiznding funded facilities and ublised non-funded lfacildiss and rade
accEptancas a6 8t tha raporting dale

45 1.6  Advances - Provinoe § Region-wise Daburgement & Uilization
2025
Isliratsan
[asbyirssmanks : HPE b AR sl
Provinoe | rogan e Punjsls L FJ.T:“ Balozhiztas klanakad Pty dng
AT H-.lenm......-._...u_ ........... s 111
Funpe d8 735,253 |[ Bez2doTds . - - 450 3
Einch 44 TH3 Ana 163,854 || 44,483 816 160 - L= L] e
KPE inchuding FATA A 085 - 20.085
Isiarmabad 5 A2 b [ . . +
Tota T8, 305, 048 §3.7311457 - Ad.403 815 0283 - a3 15 265
E——————— e e
2024
Linkaagon
Csburmsaments . EPE noiding A inchudeg
Prowence { regran Furph S EATL Elocnigian R amaha CighBakism
« Hupoes in T -
Funpbi 3B, 706667 38 203577 = = k 2.080
S 4 2580 757 SAT A8 | b 24, TEA 344 552 158 1017 br.
HPE mchging FATA 1T . 1,733 - - -
lelgrraled 2514, 784 - . - - 2514 THE -
Toka 33, THE 981 2330500 2d,THa 348 1,908 418 2 538 045 Az
e =
Diisbursermsnis mean fhe amoons disbuersed by banks aithes in Pak Rupea ar in foraign curranoy against loans
“Dispurzements of provings | region wea” eters o the place from whare the funds aie beng issued by schedubed banka
ta the barrowers.
“Utilzation of pravinee | region wise” relfars o fie place whese the funds a2 being Hilzed by bormowar
45817 Foreard-lpoking informaiion contaimsed i ECL

The assessmsent of Expected Credil Loss (ECL) celeulaton incorporstas forward koking infesmation, Forwand-loaking
aspect inlioduees an exira dimensisnwhich & often caplurad by relatng sxpeched losses 1o (he macre-ecenomic
varigblgs The mcorporation of macreecanamic factars increases the accuracy of lbs fesulls praduced and makes | rdre
rekabis fo predict esimaied furune resulis mare accurataly,

Thie Bark usas Mistoric and forecastes data to debarming the impacs of macrosconomic facioes o estimate Progabilily of
Defzult (PD) ard Loss Giwen Dafaull (LE0; eto. Further. statistical mededs based on histaneal correlation is pefamed 1o
wealily mosl signilcant macro-econcmie varsblels) that hawe been recagrized as contrbuelors (o (ke defzult
pedormance of any peiticin. The macro-ecenamic variabks (ncluding tnfiation. GOP} used in fhe ECL caldulatian are
fetched from $e IntEmational Monstary Fund (IMF) dalsbase ard e malesan] magre-eoonemic varables are selected
oeRpd on sansitivity of sach of the parifoliss 1o specihc macmo-scanamic varabke Thies mEcrosconomic sosnaras heve
bean ceveloped basa. improwvad, and warsl wilh assigned scenarls probanllily waiphtngs of 58.7%. 17.9%, and 22 4%
e pachualy.
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The Bank conduched B sersifvity analysis on macre-econemic mdicsions which ane dilbed o fonsand-teaking
ealculabeas, A al Decambar 31, 2025, when (e maoro-economic indicators m the nedlral scanaric was  adjusied
upwards or downwands by Mair respectivg siandasd orviation rabes, the ECL shawed e lallowing varialion:

Segment Upwards  Downwards
Wunchagaks -1 54% 1 G,
Consumer Auio -1 87% 3, 10%
Consumes Housa 1 16% 1.17%
Consumss Persomnal -2 72% 2. 75%

Sensitivity of ECL 10 Future Economic Condilions

The ECL are sersilive @ judgements and assurmplion mads regarding farmulalion of laraard-leaking scenarics and how
much such scenancs ane incorporetad into calcustions. Thie Benk parforms sansitivity analysis on the ECL recagnized
an sach of ils segments

The table bedow shows the loss sliowance on esch ssgment aseuming each ferward-acking scandria (ag Canlral,
upsde and downside) werg weighled 100 peroant instead of soplying scenano probability across fhe hree peensnog

Sl m:qEHE:il-;:" " Tn1:.IHEI:|..I'MrI o twlgn.:-,-h | i
pir FB anshysia ABTIBEEE Y% _'I'FI IEI” dacroacn in % anabysis decroace in %
Vitwin e 0400 718 || 100agT! | 3.8%|[ 10,351,504 EETY 10501 b6 CHL
C:crsumer fulg 42 180 3Tat 1. 2% 41,447 -1 6% 40 672 1850
Cionsamer Houss 24§37 31,606 1. 4% 3.504 1T 20 T 15 0%
Consamer Personal 218 81 181,708 15, 8% 212,638 -1 .59 | 263714 22T
TOER3 T DZTad14 A 4% 10,639,563 0.5 R 6%

Markot Risk

The Bank is scposed o madeel risk which is the risk thst the value of on and ofl-Batance ahael axpasunas of tha Bank will
be adwersely affecled by moverments in makel fates or prices such Bs Interest rates. foraign exchangs rates, aquiky
pricas, credil spreads and camemadiy pices resulling in & loss 1o earmings end caoital

Principal sources of Market Risks in both Trading Book and Banking Book
Frica Riak

Prica ngk | the sk thal fiers may be @ financisl 1255 &% & raswl of change in the lovel ar valadilly of inlenest raked
foreign exchange rames. and eoeemodily OF sguily orioas.

Liquidity Risk
Liguidity nsk 5 tha risk that any bank. busiress ard &3 enlibes will be urable o mesl & fnancial commimant when due.
Differentiaticn between Trading and Banking Bock

Trading Book
- Paositions thetd are assumed ba be hald for short famm
- Bacuribes afe b be aold within 90 gaye from the date of their classdicaton as held for trading under nommal
CTCUMIFIBNCES,
They &a makead-1e-manat | MTIW) dailp

Banking Book
- “Securities haldng intenicd is for long erm
Fale before maturity & permiiied
= Pomgilsond ang Maned-to-rmarksd (MT) penodcaly
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48.2.3

45.2.4

45.2.5

45.1.6

Markiet Risk Management
Cbjectives

Mareat fick is the fsk o & Banks financial conddicn rasuling from adwarse movenenls in makel prcas, Accuralely
reasuring & bank's rmarkat fsk requies trely informatian soout the current markel values of its assets. liabiities, ard ai-
balance shesl posilions. Markel risk anses from feciors such 8s changng inerest rabes and curency sxgnange raks. the
liguigity of mamkets for spaciic ;ermmedilies o mancis instruments, 8nd 1ocal orwaorld poltical and economic events. &1 of
these sourcas of poiental marke! rsk can affect the valua of e inslilulien and ahould be consiiznad in tha marksd risk
MEISLIrEMmani procass

MManagement of markat sk aims 0 coninal relaled nsx saaposure while sasunng thel eaminge commansaie with leeeks of
sk,

Thia Bank has approved markat ek poicy encompassing market nsk Bmi framesork whene all relev@nl marked Tacions
have bean kKienliied and takan Inke corsideralion in the establishment of the independent mastel mek Imil frarmsworks.
The palicy afso arficulates siendards for dafning, measunng and communicating marke? rek.

The Bank has esiablishad guaniiaire Imits relzed o market rek and has &80 sef limds for the mexmum amownt of
sEER arising Iroim marksd aclivilies 25 under:

Price Risk Managamant

Trading Bock is contralled Shrough
- Faciar Sensitivity and associaled limés
« Wakue 8 Risk (VaR) limis
= Trading = Aciion triggers

Banking Boak s condrolled through
- Faciar Sensitvity and associaled limis
- Sensitity of bonds using L0 lmils
« Trggers — SEnplilied aclion trigpers

Structung and Organisation of the market risk management

Head of Market Risk / Middle
Office / Basel / IFRS3{ECL]

Risk Maragsr - fiisk Managar - fisk Manager - Basal [
Mar ket Risk Middla Office IFRS% (ECL

Market Risk Management Funclion

- MDﬂﬂl:ll'll'Iﬂ complisnge wilh gl | markal n&k rmeanagErment palicis and procaduras of the rEasuny function as
epproved by the Bosrd of Directors.

= Idenlifyng and spachyng all rebevant markel 1actors far each rigk-taking wnit
= Monilonng the day-lo-day deaings of the front offcs agains the pee-dederrined lokrsbe limits
= Enguring thal e Taliowing & refackad in the pencdic (o least quanedy) proff end lss BGeauH

- &l rransactions execuied; and
- Guirran irdapardant markat data vsed with respect 10 revelustion
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Deafer limds monitaoring and excess repaeing

Random redeaw of recondsd eepnone conversebans for Glchal Market [(GM) actvibes and relaisd (elphors
racordings ihrough Telecard woice racarding sysiem

=1 BT N Ram Hﬂﬂunihii[}' Revaw Process dacumanl, =l ransackon outside the Egraad iclerance Dand wil be
raviewsn and highighted by Markat Risk

Raview tha factor sensitvity. WaR and slrass testng metrodsogies and rmeuls for rassonablaness, consislancy and
cormplebeness

Preganng ferecasts (simulations) shawing tha etfect of vargus possitle changas in marked condbons mlatng o rsk
expraures and endure 1heir integrily

Prepanng Marknl Access Reparis (M&R), malurity #nd inferest rate ek a9 reparts

Peepradiiy market nsk daskbaard for Assed Labidy Commibies (ALCDY) IMegrated Risk Management Cammilees
[IRMC], Baard Risk Cammilies [BRC) 8nd senior management

Prepanng GAP analyaie mpart o reviseing methossiogies b catoulats nsk under Pilkar | and il of ICASR Framewark
Preparng Business Canbinuilly Pragram (BCP) for marked risk,
Finalsmy maihodologies o caltulale nsks unoes Filar | & | for ICASP Framesork

Jointly cavaloping, wih business, ssandard shess esl scenarios ‘ad reviswing the slandRnd sirass last oracy &t
laast annualy

Reviewing the Bark's capital sdequacy

Scope and natere of Rizk Roporting

It = e polcy of {he Bank thal & comgrehengive set of markat sk gata. generated theough the businesses’ risk-
taking actmvdies. is identified and cormmunicited throwghaul he applicable business, IRMG and Senice Maragament

i is the responsibdity aof Marksi Rk Mansgemanl b define, construct and mairgain  an independent market
g rEpnteg framewoi that eflecivedy, consslenty and meanirgiilly commanicaies neks, sk appetiie and tha
guality of eeenings

&1 & minimurm. marked risk repors gre produced for esch risk-taking wnit consislend with the kevel al wich the
independint manksl rek imil lramesoss ans eslabished Howaver, aodilional market risk reports may be produced §
Marzt Risk Management dedemines thal the kel ardiar nature of S Bk within @ busingss, warrani inchision in the
rgfkat rak repoming packADeE

Troe masket isk data and other data used o populsss e noependant markat risk reparts should be from ndependernt
risk sysiarmms or ather ndependen) supgon systams (. gensral iedger) i fhe informabon availsble ino ihe
independent systems is ool suffcently corprehensive, any othar data used to populate the reports must be subjsct bo
a rooonciement process bo ansure s iregrily.

it i5 the responsiiby of Maret Risk Management and the business o assk1 in the gually contred process by redigwing
the repornts for reasonablaness, consistency and comgladiensss

Market Risk Managamant Sysiem

The Bark has markel risk softaare 10 mangge the marked risks from ils frading and nen-reding echvibies.

Al mach lewel, checks sad belences are maintainad lhrough a sysbermn in which back and rmisdie offices operat
meependenty from front offices. In additon, ALCCH, IRMWC and BRC reslings are neld eapaciely Evaly mon | guarter
1o deibembe importan! malbers rekalsd b waee) risk and coniral,
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Eoard of Direct
ars | Executive feam f ALCD

Diefegration of . : Morket Rak S Basel i
Traging resuits repor M Reporis £ ECL reparis
b=
Front Market Risk/ Middle Office/ Baseld/ IFRSS
A el {Market Risk Management)
Office- Quanfitania rek

Markel Risk Measuemant Mode|

Since daily wvariation n marke? nsk 8 significenty gresber than other fpes of rish, the Bank meesures and managas
maniat nsk using VYal on a dely bess

Marcat risk for trading and non-fragng acivieEs is measuad usng a uniformed market fisk messweeran model Tha
principal model used for Ihese actvites is Varanos-Covariance matix madel [hokfing period, 10 days; confidence
imenval, G9%. and obserdabon perod 365 busness deys) The model calculaies WaR amount Dy applying achial
fuchiaione n the mark=d mbas. and pricas over @ foosd pesicd in (e pasl Howaver, T Bank i3 naf UsIng This modal 3
calculale Based (¥ regulatory capital adequacy ratias which are being compuled using the stendardisad approach which |5
it EEesAEanoe with (e aeguldtary Fequinement

Thie Bank is usng the folawing comgonants for maaswing markes rss fastors:
- Facior Sensivitiee
= Walatibty snd Comelation Calculations
- \Malug-ar-High (ViR
- Sirzgs Testing

Balance sheet split by trading and banking books

Firi] i)
Barding book  Trad ng boot Total Hastong Book Trarlinsg B Temad
smsnsnne=ne REpees 080

i aind Ledasias ik Fraay Bk ERErE-c] - 9,003 LR L] LELTE ]
=T FRTPES R O =0 A r . LiE R 1,375 . 1387454
Langags b bronca nssabocs 14830 . .27 9%]
WhEsITEITE - 1T M58 117 350 519 a IRie ] 2RO ] EROATEAZD
arwmTEs LR ] ] 1510400 B BER P BREE
Tepgrdp ird mjmpram| A A5 T - A0 AT 1. B 451 1345521
Higkiof i5e asipis AAFT A4 - 15T 484 1, B85, 1555
inlSrggide sank THANA . 4305 MLER L R
Divdirrac] L Wik AR 1 1 15T 36T
e ST T P | EE] - 7291 411 T.532 3 bl ) |
T BARIE | T EEN mﬁ“_lm T BRI BN TEZ Al IA0
- - | B e ———————

Forsign Exchange Risk

The Foreign exchimnge sk (g fhe fsk ihal the valug of a fmanciel merument wil fluciuate due to changes in forsion
exchange rabes. The risk is mansged thoowgh State Bank of Pekisian’s fornward cowvers &nd other hedging insirumants
Cresrall foregn suchange nek = managed by dealing in sullerised curmancias, Sevising separate authonty matrices for
differant fypas of foresgn currancy farsactons and assigning the celmgs of sxpoaures 1 parkiss. Foraign axchanga
cpan and mismatch positons are controlied through internal lmils and are mareed 10 markat on & dally besis fo contain
fanasrs Seposres
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Equity position Risk

Equity posiion risk in Trading Book arses due bo changes noprices of ndwidued siocks o leveds of equily indices.
Caurrantly, the Bank's eguiy investmenis comprises of sedunibes claasilied ai Falr value firough ofner comprenensiva
income (FWIICH The FYGE partialic = maintsned wah 8 mediam-2em vy of capital geins ard divigend income

s frer
Eanking bock  Trading ook Eanking bosk Trading book

Mupees 10 OO0
mpomct of % chance m wgwby proaeon
- Prgld and v acesosd 11025 L L8 L
- diter comarehanampe nooms - 17,762 L5 ]

Winld ! Intorest Rate Risk in the Binking Book {IRRBE)-Basal |l Speoific

Wigdd risk & the risk of decling in sarmings due o advarse movamaal of the yeid curve. Intarest rate sk 15 She risk that tha
value of & fnancial meirement will Nucteate due 1o changes in marka? interast rates. Tha Bank is exposed fo inarest rabs
risk 35 @ resufl of mismaichas o gJapa i thE amounts of Asssts &nd NEDiMes and af-Delance she# Insiruments NEl
mAUTE O TEICE N A given penod The Bank moniloes this ek &nd manages it by eprcing of asscts and liabfites with
they shjackwa of Imilng the potential sdverss afiacs on tho prafilability of the Bank.

FloE] ik
Bamkiag ook Tramirg hook Haraing oot Trarding brach
Hapas i T s mrererrer—

CROC | 0 | D I TR YRS SN T
Pt ared etz 555 807 E45.097
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45.3.1.1

Operational Risk

Oparaionsl rek = the sk -of loss resubng from insdeguade o faikd internal pFOCASERSE. GIMOrE o Mislakas or frauds
committed by pacple. inadeguals systems and from exiemal svenls: The Bank hae an Oparationsl Fek Fremework duly
aporoved by the Board which is reviewsd afiar avary thres years The Bank has & well davelsped Opergtonal Risk
System g5 dafined under the Cperatonal Risk Framewark, whach is aligned to inderrabional best practices, The Bank is
wsing Key Risk indicates. Risk & Cenbrod Self - Assessment, capturing operabonal nsk incidenss and conduching Qualiky
Aszurenca Raviews as 1sols for igentilicalion, moniforng, maasunng and management of oparafional rek. Key Fisk
Indicatons and coeraional Iess inckdanis are caphued i hie Operalional Risk System

A gound imemal govemancs siruciure anhances the afiectiveness of tha Bank's Operdlional Risk Managerent and s
accompished &t the enterprse level through formal gwarsight by tha Board, the Chief Risk QOficer, the Operabonal Risk
Hazd and Fsk Maragemant commaieas,

The Bank has el up an Operalional Risk Management Departmenl (ORMO), hougad within the Risk Menagemsn Group
which & entrusied with managing condrals and processes in an efficient and efiecive mannar. Tha Operotional Riak
Managemant Depafmeant [ORMO) averseas the processes for sound Oparaticnad Risk Management and ako serves as
aa ascalafion polnl Far oritical Operational Risk mabiers within 1he Sank. The ORMD mports Cperational Risk aclivibes io
ke Board Fisk Cormmities, Coundry Rek and Complisnce Commeties (CRCG) that mviews &l nsk araas of tha Bark, an a
halislic bass, The main actyities af ORMO include:

- Opmretienal Risk Mansgemeant
. Frawd Risk Management

- Quality Assuranca Rgviees

- Whisila Blpaing Linit

- Graan Banking

Wilh respect ta Basel 1| for Operatanal Bisk, (i baik curranily uvses 1ha Basic Indicalor Appraach [BIA) for detesmining
ihe Qpeationsd charge far WCR caloulpdan purpases,

Green Banking and Emvirenmental, Secial & Governanea (ESG)
Samba Bank's Green Banking & Ermvitonmental, Seclal, and Governance (ESG) Cemmitrmant

58L recognizes that Enveonmantal Social and Gowernance (ESG] principles are essentmsl for createg long beem
siakeholder value and sacuring a mestanabhe fubue, Aecordingly, the Bank has crafled an ESG Framework that embeds
systanzbilily Boross all busness Aoiwviies B enhance rsk manppemend, caplure cpportundias. and generaie posiive
spcialal impact SBL iesls suslainable banking a6 @ core busingss imparathea, nat merely a compliance requirement The
Bar# has ihareioe imegrased Graen Banking and ESG principkes inta its furdamartal operations 85 part of & broadar
gorramitmert o arvironmanial stewardship, sacial reeponsibdity, ard robosi governance

SEL s dedcated 1o premoing sustaingble devaleoment while minmaaing the negabes amvironmanial and secal afecly &f
its finanzial activilics. In alignmant with the State Bank of Pakislan's Gaesn Banking Guidalings and Envirenmantal &
Sacial Risk Managament (ESRM) Marual, the Bank has eshblished a Green Banking Oifice undiar Oiperational Risk
Managemnan This office oversaes the implesreniation of the Grean Banking (GBI Palicy, which was mfrcdeced in 205
and updated m tne wih SEF s ESRM Manual, The palicy encompasses Ervirpnmental & Sacigl Rsh Managemant
Gregn Busmass Facillation. and Cwn Impac! Aeduction, ensieng camgpliance with national envircnemandal and sooial
legisEnn and BdvaRsing reseansile corporate cilizenshio

4%.3.1.2 Environmental Stewardship: "Managing Climats Risk and Fromoting Sustaina biling”

Susitainable Finanecing. The benk = committed to supporhing the transitan lo @ low-caribaon sconsmy and supoon
rational climate chjeclives by offering green financing apliens such as rensweble ararmgy progects and enangy efficancy
lcans

Climate Risk Managarmaent Bark's Clemebe Risd SAseessment is undor development and will be implemenied shertly,
irhagratng climats ralased neks intg lending decisians ba make s portlolio resilend b anvirormantel challangss and in lng
willh glabal bast pracices

Oparational Sustainability: Thir bark is sireamiining i op2resars o shrink emvirenmental fooipnnd, emphisaeng anergy
elficiansy, promoling digitahzatan, waste redugtion, and sustainabin procurement prachices.

Awaranoss & Capacity Building: The bank muns regulas wakahope and rainng sassons on Grear Banking and ESG
for & ampiopans, pOSE sockl media wodates o rase arvironmenial awarersss and Selebraie ervronmantal days o
generales @ pasitva sacktal impact
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45.3.1.3 Spcial Responsibiity: “Fostering Inclusive Growth and Empowermmsant’
Diwersity, Equity & Inclesion and Sccin-Economic Development

Samba Bank Limdad (SEL| wpholds s commilment 1o Diverssy. Eguily & Inclusion and Socio-Economic Developmien
through 8 mullifacated progrem of parnemships, iranifg, capaciy buiding and sutreach sclivibes undaraken by tha
Bank's HE and Training Groug

Cammunity Engagpemant

The bank irvesls in niliatves that suppor educaion healthcane, and communily Sevelcprment and walfare, cominbuling
ta thia wall-baing of the communities & seees.

#6314 Governance Excellence: “"Ensuring Accountabifity and Transparency™

Board Oversight SBL Board of Dirsctors provide strategic guadance and oversight on ESG metiess. gnsuning that &5
gustainatlily gopls we signed wilh b Business sirasgy

Policy Alignmant Full adharence 1o SAP Gresn Banxing Guidalimes, ESRM Manual and emerging ESG requiatinns

Risk Management The bank hes implamentsd robusd risk managemant frameworks o ldentify. assass, and mitigata
ESG-related risks. snsunng the resilience of its operations.

Transparency and Disclosurs: The bask & comeitied o ansganant E54G reporting. slgning with glebal standards such
as GRIand IFRS 51732 and provoing slakehoides with clear insights inlo 15 sustainabilty performancs

Ethics & Compliance: fero inlarance for comupton
45.3.1.5 2025 ESG Highlights

Chur Bank mmans committed to fastaring posfie social impast through contribubons te organizalions dedicated ko
creabing sustanatility, In ling with cur commemant b social conscausnass. wa have supparted the following estesmad
oiganizationg

Healihcare & Well-being' Incus Hospral. Pk Rinbon Pakislan, Kxdney Centre, Ealeem Bemccial Hospilal, Shaukal
Kharum Memoasl Canced Heapitsl snd Research Centre, Patient Aid Foundation (JPMC), Layten Rahmatullah
Benewalent Trust (LABTI, Labare Businessmean Assaciation for Renabdilaion of the Daeabed (Laoard) . Karachi Down
Syndrame Program (KDEP) and Aga Khan University

Education & Empowerment Skhowet Faundshon The Chzans Foundation (TCF), Kiran Foundation Orange Tree
Foundabon and Zindagi Trusl

Community Support SO5 Childen's Vildoes and WWF
Tree Plantation Activity: Plantatan of 530 natwe saphng in Lahode was donz in collsboratan wich WWF Pakistan

E&SG Risk integratiom: All credit proposals wnderga ESGE nok soreening using the S8F EERM (Envronmental & Sooml
Rigk Maﬂap&mnlb matnra

Sdopban of Climae Ak Sress Testng aligned with Task Force on Cimate Reiated Fnancsl Disciosures (TCFD)
Oparational Eco Effclency - Digital Transfermation; Paperess anboasding and e-slaternents

Energy Conservation: Conversion af 03 of SBL branches wlo Salar Poeer.

In 225 we reitersted pur commiimen 1o econamic empowessmand for Women, Yeoath, and Persons with Disabdibes
thicugh Firancial Liaracy and welugion. Sambe Benk lawnched s frst intarnal "Women in Laadership” Awards in
paringiahip wall Aural Foundstion and conducied mobwabanal sessions for women staff on the lhoma VWomen's
Empewsarment throuph Self-Developmert” on Inlernataoral Wemen's Dy, Samba Bank slsd panicpaled acivaly in Giale
Eank ol Pakislarns 2nd Matienal Financial Lilerscy Week by omponizing fickd camps. campus visits and siaff fsemily
engagemerd events in multple Silies. In @ misstans, e Bank earned an sward for Gendar sclusiety thraugh fraining and
gccoinl apening for women undar Staie Bank of Pakisian's Malional Financial Lieracy Program Threugh (ks campaign,
the Bank parinared with ASSA Schieal & Callegs for the Deaf | JS Academy far the Dagl. LABARD and cthar irslibees b
deseminate awareness of Digtal Banking. Womes's Banking Sedufions and Banking for Persons wal Disabiites. Samga
Bank alss parbcipated al verious farums 1o pramese financing salutons for wamen eniregrensurs and SMES. The Bank n
ils o~y pannershig with Lahone Busmasemen Assaciation for Rehabilitaion of the Gisabien (LARBARD) completed ds
annual Internship program for differently-abled yowng man and womar. Thess carfrbuliens rpflact cur dedicalion to
driving susisinakie gavalzpment through financial ileracy and inclusion.

In acdilion b Ihe sheve irsbitubion wide Cpemmbonal Risk. Fraud Risk, Green Banking. DE, Sensi#zalien and \Whists
Blow grwareness Lainngs wene undenaken regulary
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Governance: Refer to " Statemant under Coge of Corporate Governsnce/Corporam and Firanciad Repotang Framework
ard “Indepsndend Audbors’ Feview Report %o the Mern@ers on fhe Stalemenl of Cpmplianca Containgd In Listed
Camparmas {Code of Coporats Govemance) Fegalatons, 2019 Seclion

Informeation and Syber Sesurity

Irdermalian and Cyber Sacurily in all aspects ramaing @ ibcal ama of mmpotance o safeguard Bank's critical mformation
assats. To sirargthen fhia cvarsd Inforrnation En-l:unl;'f posture. SBL has taken defense-modepih spproach whemin
mriiihipde Ieyars of contrals encompassag lechncal sdministatye snd physieal sacurity cannals have been daplayed

568L = PCl PS5 comalisnt and conducts rabus! raviees and assessmants to identify amy gap and implements
couriermeasurs{s| as moy be neaded, A techrolegy deployments mre meviewad by vangus furslipns within the Bank
throwgh a detalad Information Sacursy Risk Assessment process

S8L has also estabiishad Sacurty Operatons and Moniborng mechansms 10 mdRale any amengng or acive cyber
thrasts. The Bank's siaft am alsa ragulardy treined on infosmagion and Cyber Secunity aspects thiowgh a campretenive
gealrily awaransss program and spesalzed trainng programs using different methodologies

Businass Continuity Managemant Program of tha Bank = aligned wilh indusiry best practioss and reguiaiocy guicelings,
wilch = peridically reviewed and tesiad b0 ensure the readingess and effectvenass of afternate arangements dunng
wAceman siuatons. BCM irgmings and 1esling dills e 8fso condecied requiarly io ansure that stelf members are wall
traned #nd urdersiand thek mokes and esponsibities in case of any deesirous sfuslion

Liguidity Resk

Liguidhty Fisk 18 the potenbel for loss ooan nsliiodon ansng e alibar s ineoilitg 0 maal itk obligaions or 1o fung
increass in &2s5etE as thay fall dus withiout incumng unaccapiatie cosl or logses

Leguiiey risk is Daing monitored through tha folipwing
fa)  Gap Analysis: Markel Accoess Report (MAR)

Btgrked Access Raport is 8 Key 0ol in menitoring the current bquidity pasibon of the Bank and § measunes lhe
gaps’ ower variaus fime honzons, besed on & bosiness-as-usual assumpEon (hal Be assel lewels reman constant
MAR guanbfas the dally end cumulaive gap in @ bosimoss-as-usual emviranment. The g lof any given
1ened buckel repragerts e berswings from or placements o, tha markes (intermnal or eeiernal), reguined io replace
maturng lishilifes o assats MAR Limils  esiablish 2 boundary for bhow  much incramendsl funding =
appropnate, relatse 1o he se2e of siztemant of fnencial position and markel capacty

(b} Siress Scenario

Stress test s Intenced o quantfy fhe Bkely impact of an event on the balence shesl and the nel poienbal
cumulative gap oved 8 3-monih period, and o ascemain what incremental fundng may be reguired under the
delined stress scenano. The scensy (& proposed by the WMaked Risk Managamant af a minimum an an annusl
bagis. endorsad by tha treasurel, and spproved by the Board of Dirschors,

(£] Scope and nature of Rizk Reporing

it &= the poicy of the Bank that the comprehersive set of bedity nsk data, gonested through e
buginesses’  fak-taking  Bcihalas & dentfied =nd communicaled froughout  the applicable
huginess,  Ireasury. &nd  Seniar management

= Markal Risk 5 rasponsibla 1o consirus and maintn an moepenoEnt Guidily fisk-raparing Pamesaork Ihet
affectively, sarmmlanly and maaningfully cammunicates risks and risk app=tite

- Traasurar is resporsitie ooenswa the competenass and integnly of the liqguidity nsk dsta. &nd that the data
cen be elfaciwely repaned inle tha indapandant risk sysams

- ALCD, tha Treasurar and tha market relk managers are responshle Tor assisling in he qualily coniral procass
by ravienving the reports for reasonablaness, consisiany and compsianess.

id} Mitigating Liguidily risk and processes 1or continemes monitoring
The fellowing tooks are belng vead in grdar ko menitor the liguidily risk:

- Marhet Access Repart (MAR|
- Siress Scenaio

Liquidity Rabas
- Sgnéficent Funding Saurcas (large funds grosvdens )
- Contngancy Furding Plans
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48 GENERAL
459 Figraries hawa Basn finrshad o o Bha rearesl ousand iupees

d5.2 Comesponding faures have been re-clessded. re-arranged or adoiliceally incomparaled in these financal skalemenls,
whensuer nocesseny io fxoiilate compansian and {o cordanm with changes inpresessation i he corment year. Mo sgnifcanl
peArEngementa or clagsificalicns were mace © hese inancial slatemants. Deteis of rearmnrgamenls witn cashfow
slabement e as blkres

[Reclassifization from Reclasaification o Amoasnt {000}
[[Gain) | 1oas on sake of Fvesiment - nal Gecirilies classied 38 F wPL 113,060
[iGain floes an sske of kweatment - net Bl invesimeni in aecunlies clessfied s P21 4
[Imerasl expersad on debd sacaribies Bt AL | inbarasl income 1,700,878
Direr asgets iExciuting athvants [axaion arid man-up H P
|rq|:.gluahﬂ| Siaf notonel cost g
|Du'-ar ¥abitia (exciuting Cumen Eafon and markup |, oo e e b i0g 55 0
payahla)

47 DATE OF AUTHORISATION
These financisl slaiemenis wane approved and auifoisad foreseon 000200 by ihe Boand of Direciors of tha

Bark

AN ){{\“M'%\M“E” gt =gy A

Chief Finsneial ONicar Prasidant and Direotor Criraeiar Chairman
Zhiof Execwtive Officor
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Pattern of Shareholding

As At December 31, 2025

Number of Shareholding

1,701 1 100 70,799
1,903 101 500 510,898
816 501 1,000 612,991
913 1,001 5,000 2,199,234
198 5,001 10,000 1,520,483
82 10,001 15,000 1,039,367
41 15,001 20,000 758,154
28 20,001 25,000 652,104
28 25,001 30,000 785,092
9 30,001 35,000 296,616
15 35,001 40,000 566,323
6 40,001 45,000 259,291
25 45,001 50,000 1,237,316
8 50,001 55,000 422,277
7 55,001 60,000 397,285
4 60,001 65,000 254,837
2 65,001 70,000 135,079
3 70,001 75,000 225,000
2 75,001 80,000 154,526
3 80,001 85,000 248,07
2 85,001 90,000 179,701
3 90,001 95,000 272,549
14 95,001 100,000 1,398,040
8 100,001 105,000 812,867
2 105,001 110,000 216,683
2 110,001 15,000 225,357
1 15,001 120,000 120,000
1 120,001 125,000 123,000
2 125,001 130,000 253,955
1 130,001 135,000 133,200
5 145,001 150,000 745,986
1 150,001 155,000 155,000
1 165,001 170,000 170,000
2 170,001 175,000 348,848
2 175,001 180,000 351915
1 190,001 195,000 191,476
1 195,001 200,000 196,858
2 210,001 215,000 425,437
1 230,001 235,000 230,720
2 235,001 240,000 472,143
5 245,001 250,000 1,250,000
1 250,001 255,000 253,843
1 270,001 275,000 273,513
1 280,001 285,000 281916
2 295,001 300,000 595,664
3 300,001 305,000 904,048
2 305,001 310,000 617,040
1 315,001 320,000 317,604
1 325,001 330,000 329,750
1 335,001 340,000 335,307
1 365,001 370,000 369,374
1 375,001 380,000 376,326
2 395,001 400,000 800,000
1 400,001 405,000 405,000
1 425,001 430,000 429,290
2 475,001 480,000 955,271
1 495,001 500,000 496,000
1 505,001 510,000 506,388
1 560,001 565,000 563,832
1 620,001 625,000 622,532
1 660,001 665,000 661,376
1 795,001 800,000 800,000
1 1,015,001 1,020,000 1,018,548
1 1,065,001 1,070,000 1,065,923
1 1,165,001 1170,000 1,169,000
1 1,385,001 1,390,000 1,385,804
1 1,650,001 1,655,000 1,652,306
1 1,690,001 1,695,000 1,690,620
1 2,575,001 2,580,000 2,579,313
1 2,760,001 2,765,000 2,76413
1 4,010,001 4,015,000 4,014,458
1 5,175,001 5,180,000 5,178,843
1 6,655,001 6,660,000 6,659,509
1 7,080,001 7,085,000 7,084,706
1 7,795,001 7,800,000 7,800,000
1 8,995,001 9,000,000 9,000,000
1 14,995,001 15,000,000 15,000,000
1 20,785,001 20,790,000 20,788,998
1 35,830,001 35,835,000 35,832,424
1 852,040,001 852,045,000 852,040,531

0]

5,898 1,008,238,648
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Category of Shareholding

As At December 31, 2025

m Shareholding Number of Shareholders |[Number of Shares

1 Directors, Chief Executive Officer, and their spouse and minor children 3
2 Associated Companies, Undertakings and related Parties 1
3 NIT and ICP 2
4 Banks, Development Financial Institutions, Non Banking Financial

Institutions 20
5 Insurance Companies 4
6 Modarabas and Mutual Funds 25
7 Share holders holding 10% 1
8 General Public :

a. local 5731

b. Foreign 1
9 Others m

Total (excluding shareholders holding 10%) 5,898

102,000 0.01
852,040,531 84.51
25,297 0.00
33,852 0.00
1,291 0.00
17,945,562 178
852,040,531 84.51
80,351,426 797
196 0.00
57,738,493 573
1,008,238,648 100.00

Additional Disclosure on Board of Directors under Revised Guidelines

on Remuneration Practices

Date of Joining Status of Director (Executive,
“ Name of Directors the Board Non-Executive, Independent)

Member of Board Other Directorships
Committee

Mr. Mustafa llyas 21-0ct-22 Chairman / Non-Executive + Board Nomination & None
Director Remuneration Committee
: B o + Board Audit Committee ) ) o
2 Mr. Fahad Ali AlHunaiti 17-Apr-25 Non-Executive Director + Board Risk Committee * Pillars Holding - Saudi Arabia
+ Board IT Committee * Beyond Pharma - Saudi Arabia
+ Board Executive Committee
3 Mr. Mazen Ali AIDhabi 17-Apr-25 Non-Executive Director + Board Audit Committee + Abu Nayyan Holding Company - Saudi Arabia
+ Board IT Committee
+ Board Executive Committee
4 Ms. Kholood Khalid Al-Khelaiwi 30-0ct-23 Non-Executive Director + Board Nomination & None
Remuneration Committee
' e ' * Board Audit Committee * Kot Addu Power Company Limited - Pakistan
5 Hafiz Mohammad Yousaf 20-Aug-19 Independent Director + Board Nomination & + Pakistan Security Printing Corporation - Pakistan
Remuneration Committee + Security Papers Limited - Pakistan
* Board Levet-Gevernance Committee | + SICPA Pakistan (Pvt.) Limited - Pakistan
. f . : f + Cherat Cement Company Limited - Pakistan
6 Ms. Zeeba Ansar 16-Jun-21 Independent Director ‘ Eggﬁg ﬁséocmonTi[t?etetee + Cul Ahmed Textile Mills Limited - Pakistan
* Lucky Investments Limited - Pakistan
* Lucky Electric Power Company Limited - Pakistan
* YB Pakistan Limited - Pakistan
Mr. Shafqaat Ahmed 17-Apr-25 Independent Director + Board Risk Committee + Gharibwal Cement Limited - Pakistan
7 + Board IT Committee + Security Papers Limited - Pakistan
+ Board Level-Gevernance Committee
+ Board Executive Committee
. . o President & CEO / Executive + Board Risk Committee
8 Mr. Rashid Jahangir 22May-25 Director + Board Level-Gevernance Committee None
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Information as required under Code of Corporate Governance
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2025

Shareholders' category Number of %
shares held
i. Associated Companies, Undertakings and Related Parties
THE SAUDI NATIONAL BANK 852,040,531 84.51
ii. Mutual Funds
M/S. ASIAN STOCKS FUND LIMITED 99 0.00
M/S. SAFEWAY FUND LIMITED 263 0.00
CDC - TRUSTEE HBL INVESTMENT FUND 317,604 0.03
CDC - TRUSTEE HBL GROWTH FUND 1,018,548 0.10
CDC - TRUSTEE AKD OPPORTUNITY FUND 100,000 0.01
CDC - TRUSTEE HBL - STOCK FUND 7,800,000 0.77
CDC - TRUSTEE HBL MULTI - ASSET FUND 100,000 0.01
CDC - TRUSTEE HBL EQUITY FUND 6,659,509 0.66
CDC - TRUSTEE HBL PF EQUITY SUB FUND 250,000 0.02
CDC - TRUSTEE NATIONAL INVESTMENT (UNIT) TRUST 1,385,804 0.14
CDC - TRUSTEE GOLDEN ARROW STOCK FUND 300,948 0.03
iii. Directors, CEO and Their Spouse(s) and minor children
SHAFQAAT AHMED 500 0.00
SOHAIL ANSAR / ZEEBA ANSAR 1,000 0.00
HAFIZ MOHAMMAD YOUSAF 100,500 0.01
iv. Executives* 75,500 0.01
v. Public Sector Companies and Corporations
vi. Banks, Development Financial Institutions, Non-Banking Financial Institutions,
Insurance Companies, Takaful, Modaraba and Pension Funds 670,462 0.07
vii. NIT & ICP 25,297 0.00
viii. General Public
a. Local 80,275,926 796
b. Foreign 196 0.00
ix. Others 57,115,961 5.66
1,008,238,648 100.00
X. Shareholders Holding five percent or more Voting Rights in the Listed Company
THE SAUDI NATIONAL BANK 852,040,531 84.51

During the year, No trade in shares of the Bank was carried out by the Directors, CEO, CFO, Company Secretary and other
executives or their spouses and minor children, except, Hafiz Mohammad Yousaf, Independent Director, sold 900,000 shares
of the bank, and Mr. Shafgaat Ahmed, Independent Director, purchased 500 shares of the bank.

*Executives of the Bank
Employees from the cadre of Vice President ("VP") and above are determined as "Executive".
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Samba Bank Limited

Form of Proxy
23" Annual General Meeting

|/ We, of being member(s) of Samba Bank
Limited holding ordinary shares hereby appoint of

or failing him / her. of who is / are also member(s)
of Samba Bank Limited as my / our proxy in my / our absence to attend and vote for me / us and on my / our behalf at the Annual
General Meeting of the Bank to be held at 12:00 p.m. on Thursday, the 26th March 2026, at Margala Hotel, Islamabad and at any
adjournment thereof.

As witness my / our hand / seal this day of 2026.

Signed by the said

in the presence of 1.

Folio / CDC Account No.

Please affix here Revenue
Stamp of Rs. 5/-

Important:

1. This Proxy Form, duly completed and signed, must be received at the Registered Office of the Bank, 1st Floor 19-Saleem Plaza,
Blue Area, Jinnah Avenue, Islamabad, not less than 48 hours before the time of holding the meeting.

2. No person shall act as proxy unless he himself is a member of the Bank, except that a corporation may appoint a person who
is not a member.

3. Ifamember appoints more than one proxy and more than one instruments of proxy are deposited by a member with the Bank,
all such instruments of proxy shall be rendered invalid.

For CDC Account Holders / Corporate Entities:

In addition to the above the following requirements have to be met:

i) The proxy form shall be witnessed by the persons whose names, addresses and CNIC numbers shall be mentioned on the form.
i) Attested copies of CNIC or the passport of the beneficial owners and the proxy shall be furnished with the proxy form.

iii) The proxy holder shall produce his/her original CNIC or original passport at the time of the meeting.

iv) In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors resolution / power of attorney with specimen signature shall be submitted
(unless it has been provided earlier) along with proxy form to the company.
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Samba Bank Limited

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
At 12:00 p.m. March 26, 2026
Margala Hotel, Islamabad

ADMISSION SLIP
Name
Folio No. (Non CDC) Signature
CDC A/c. No. Signature

No. of Shares held

Verified by: FAMCO Share Registration Services (Pvt.) Limited

Note:

i) The signature of the shareholder must tally with the specimen signature on the
Company'’s record.

ii) Shareholders are requested to show the admission slip at the time of entrance

in the meeting premises.

This Admission Slip is Not Transferable
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